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Dear friends, potential investors and business partners,

You hold in your hands a publication that has been published by the Regional Development Agency South Moravia for 17 years already and which, 
over the time, has become a useful means of assistance to foreign investors, an important vehicle of promotion of the South Moravian Region and 
an inspiration to other regions in the Czech Republic and abroad.

Throughout its existence, the content of the publication has evolved, from the provision of necessary basic information for companies that wished to 
locate their production and development centres in South Moravia to the existing form where the publication is oriented more towards employees 
of foreign companies and opportunities for partnership with research and development institutions of the South Moravian Region. This is an area where 
we see great potential, particularly due to the long-term focus of the South Moravian Region on innovation, intensified by newly built science and 
research centres of both regional and European relevance.

Given the high degree of specialisation of the publication, we work in the long term with a number of partners – professionals who guarantee that 
the individual texts and chapters provide reliable information and experience.

The chapter covering practical information from the South Moravian Region was consulted with, and written on the basis of feedback from, individual 
companies active in various parts of the South Moravian Region, with the objective of identifying the experience of various firms with the services 
provided in South Moravia and sharing it with others. It should be noted in this respect that the Regional Development Agency South Moravia is not 
responsible for services as such; on the other hand, the Agency believes that recommendations from other foreign and domestic firms are in themselves 
a sufficient indicator of quality.

In conclusion, I would like to add that we welcome all comments on the content and structure of this brochure, which is regularly updated. If you have 
any tips or ideas you would like to direct to us, we, and others who use this publication, will be very pleased to receive them.

 Vladimír Gašpar 
 Director, Regional Development Agency of South Moravia 
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Regional Development Agency of South Moravia

The purpose of the Regional Development Agency of South Moravia (RRAJM) is to support the regional development on the territory of the South 
Moravian region. RRAJM therefore provides services to public sector bodies (putting emphasis on entities in the South Moravian region) as well as to 
other parties needing consultations concerning regional development.

Our services include

• Subsidies and EU projects – consulting and application writing
• Educational events on regional development, structural policy and project management
• General grant advisory 
• Advisory in preparing entrepreneurial zones and properties, management of their portfolio 
• Services and writing strategic and programme regional development documents 
• Writing feasibility studies and cost-benefit analyses for prepared projects 
• Assistance to investors (locality selection, organisation of visits, help with establishing a company, after care)
• Support of brownfield regeneration
• Advisory in EU innovation activities 

Support for Investors

• Providing information on local conditions for entrepreneurial activities, tailor-made situation analyses
• Selecting of suitable localities respecting particular requirements 
• Mediating contacts to land/property owners, labour offices, universities and local institutions involved in research and development;  

negotiations with local and regional bodies and institutions 
• Organising and planning visits 

Since 2000, when we started offering assistance to foreign investors, we managed to place nearly 50 foreign companies. Our “clients”, who have 
successfully established themselves in South Moravia include Honeywell, IBM, Daido Metal, Daikin, Alps Electric or FEI Company.

Regional Development Agency of South Moravia 
Královopolská 139, 612 00 Brno, Czech Republic, www.rrajm.cz

Jan Hladík, phone: +420 541 219 282, +420 541 212 125, extension 120, e-mail: jan.hladik@rrajm.cz 
Jan Kuchyňka, phone: +420 541 219 282, +420 541 212 125, extension 118, e-mail: jan.kuchynka@rrajm.cz
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I. South Moravia: Geography, Labour Force, Economy

I. 01. Introduction

The South Moravian Region (Jihomoravský kraj) spreads over an area of 7,188 sq km, located in the southeast of the Czech Republic and is the 
country’s fourth largest region. The region consists of the following seven districts: Blansko, Brno-city (Brno-město), Brno-district (Brno-okres), Břeclav, 
Hodonín, Vyškov and Znojmo. The neighbouring Czech regions are Zlin Region (Zlínský kraj) to the east and Olomouc Region (Olomoucký kraj) to the 
northeast, Pardubice Region (Pardubický kraj) to the north and the Vysocina Region (Kraj Vysočina) and the South Bohemian Region (Jihočeský kraj) to 
the west. South Moravia has also two international borders – with Austria to the south and with Slovakia to the southeast. For the purposes of European 
regional policy, the South Moravian Region and the Vysocina Region together form the so-called cohesion region NUTS II Southeast.

Geography

The geographical conditions of the region are fairly diverse and can be divided into three principal types of landscapes. The northern part is characterized 
by hilly terrains – eastern slopes of the Czech-Moravian Highlands (Českomoravská vrchovina), Moravian Karst (Moravský kras) and the Drahany 
Highlands (Drahanská vrchovina). This part of the region has a large share of forested areas and very scenic countryside suitable for hiking and cycling 
and in the Moravian Karst also for caving and rock-climbing. On the contrary, most of the southern part of South Moravia belongs to the Dyje-Svratka 
Valley (Dyjsko-svratecký úval) which is characterized by mildly undulating landscapes often covered with vineyards or flat but very fertile agricultural 
landscapes with the warmest climate in the Czech Republic. The lowest point of South Moravia can be found here – the confluence of Dyje and Morava 
rivers - 150 m above sea level is also the southernmost part of the region. The City of Brno is located right in the place where these two types of 
landscape meet and thus enjoys a combination of both, a scenic and forested hinterland to the west and north, as well as a pleasant, mild climate and 
the proximity of wine and fruit producing areas to the south and east. Finally, the White Carpathians (Bílé Kapraty) located in the south-eastern part of 
South Moravia represent the highest elevation within the region (highest peak is Durda with 842 m above sea level). They form a natural boundary with 
Slovakia and represent one of the most pristine natural areas in the whole of Czech Republic with terrains suitable for cross-country skiing and also with 
very interesting lively folk traditions.

Population and Settlements

With a population of 1,183,207 inhabitants, South Moravia is the fourth most populated region in the Czech Republic. The population density 
of 165 inhabitants per sq km is somewhat higher than the national average.

Tab. 1: Population and settlements (as of January 1, 2018)

District Number of settlements Area (km²) Population Density of population (Inhabs/km²)

Blansko 116 862 108,545 126

Brno-city 1 230 379,527 1,650

Brno-district 187 1,499 219,903 147

Břeclav 63 1,038 115,757 112

Hodonín 82 1,099 154,353 140

Vyškov 80 869 91,325 105

Znojmo 144 1,590 113,797 72

South Moravia 673 7,188 1,183,207 165

Source: Czech Statistical Office, 2018

The capital of South Moravia is the city of Brno – the largest Moravian city and the second major city in the Czech Republic with a population standing 
at around 380,000. This number, however, represents only the number of permanent residents and does not include another approximately 150,000 
people commuting to Brno for work, study or entertainment. The number of inhabitants together with the city’s economic importance clearly makes Brno 
a dominant centre of the entire region. However, there are other important cities in the South Moravia and 9 of them with more than 10,000 inhabitants.
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Tab. 2: Towns with a population over 10,000 inhabitants (as of January 1, 2018)

Town Population Town Population

Brno 379,527 Blansko 20,650

Znojmo 33,719 Boskovice 11,635

Břeclav 24,797 Kyjov 11,295

Hodonín 24,683 Veselí nad Moravou 11,116

Vyškov 20,999 Kuřim 10,981

Source: Czech Statistical Office, 2018

I. 02. Universities

The role of the South Moravian capital city is further strengthened by Brno’s important position in higher education – with 6 public and 7 private 
universities comprising thirty faculties is the second largest centre of higher education in the Czech Republic. Moreover, having some 70,000 university 
students, Brno has the highest rate of university students on the total number of residents.

Tab. 3: Brno Universities

University Number of students Number of graduates

Public

Masaryk University 31,667 7,407

Brno University of Technology 19,240 5,227

Mendel University Brno 8,743 2,536

University of Veterinary and Pharmaceutical Sciences Brno 2,878 527

University of Defence in Brno 1,622 508

Janáček Academy of Music and Performing Arts in Brno 660 237

Private

Newton College (Business and Management) 855 200

Sting Academy (private university of economics) 890 200

Karel Engliš College (Business and Management) 399 170

Brno International Business School (Economics and Business) 300 57

Pan-European University (Economics) 50 27

Frank Dyson Institute (Real Estate) n. a. n. a.

The College of Regional Development (Economics and Management) n. a. n. a.

Total 67,304 17,096

Source: Annual Reports 2017; approximate data

Tab. 4: Brno Universities – students in chosen sectors

Sector Number of students Number of graduates

Economics, business and management 11,745 3,196

Natural sciences 10,306 2,479

Civil engineering and architecture 5,069 1,449

Engineering 4,671 1,239

Medicine 4,817 846

IT 4,233 914

Electronics 3,190 786

Pharmacy 868 154

Source: Annual Reports 2017; approximate data
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I. 03. Economic Branches

South Moravia ranks among the regions with significant economic potential with its general domestic product representing one tenth out of the national 
GDP (regional GDP per capita in purchase parity power was 84.9 % in 2016, EU28=100 %).

Service Industries

Brno is undoubtedly the natural centre of administration and services of the South Moravian Region. More than 70 % of its workforce employed in various 
service sectors as well as its significant knowledge potential (the highest share of university graduates in the Czech Republic, availability of workforce with 
foreign language capabilities etc.) ranks the city among the most competitive locations not only within the Czech Republic but also within the Central European 
region. The city thanks for this reputation to a strong inflow of significant investments such as IBM and Siemens, both have their software design centres here, 
or companies such as Honeywell (Global Design Centre, automation and control solutions), Red Hat Czech (software development), FEI (electron microscopes), 
BMT (medical technology) with their research and development centres in Brno. Altogether, there are more than twenty development centres established by 
multinational companies in the region. An important player in the service industries in Brno is BVV Trade Fairs Brno (Veletrhy Brno) – the largest company 
specialised in fairs and exhibitions in Central Europe makes Brno an important hub of international trade. However, the most significant employers in the sector of 
service industries are The Faculty Hospital Brno and Masaryk University (both with more than 5,000 employees). Major companies have established their shared 
service centres, customer support centres and research centres, such as: Vodafone, SolarWinds Czech, Lufthansa, PPG Industries and Zebra Technologies.

Tab. 5: Representatives of IT sector in the South Moravian Region

Company name Location Specialization

Representatives of IT sector in the South 
Moravian Region:

Brno network and information systems

Asseco Group Brno GIS solutions

AVG Technologies Brno security software products

CGI IT Czech Republic Brno IT end-to-end services and solutions

Infosys BPO Brno infrastructure management and package implementations

Moravia IT Brno software applications, operating systems

Natek Brno IT outsourcing and consulting services

Red Hat Czech Brno software development

Unis Brno control and information systems

Y Soft Brno intelligent enterprise office solutions

Source: RRA JM, 2018

Biotechnology

The South Moravian region is turning into a central European biotech hub. The current initiative - a biotech innovation cluster – is based on the 
120 million USD campus of Masaryk University (www.muni.cz) fostering science in the fields of medicine, chemistry and biology.

The university’s integrated laboratories for biomedical and environmental technologies and a large research and teaching hospital have already been 
built and opened. Biotechnological incubator (INBIT) for more than thirty biotechnology start-ups is ready from 2008. The area of nearly 3,000 square 
meters contains labs, offices, meeting halls, kitchens and necessary technical support and infrastructure, and other 7,000 square meters of operating 
premise for the beginning perspective entrepreneurs.

Brno’s position in the field of biotechnologies was also significantly improved through project such as Central European Institute of Technology 
(CEITEC) becoming a supra-regional centre for innovative research in the field of nanotechnology, structural biology, molecular medicine, genomics and 
proteomics of plant system, veterinary medicine and many others. The Operational Program R & D for innovation (European Centres of Excellence) is the 
major source financing this project of estimated costs exceeding 200 mil. EUR. For more information see the chapter VII.

Another project financed through this operational programme is International Clinical Research Centre (ICRC) of St. Anne’s University Hospital Brno 
which represents a new generation research centre focused on cardiovascular and neurological diseases. The centre with total budget of approximately 
220 mil. USD for the period 2011 – 2015 is being built up in cooperation with American Mayo Clinic (www.mayoclinic.org) and other Czech and foreign 
partners. For more information see the chapter VII.

More information about biotechnology can be found on www.gate2biotech.com.
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Processing Industry

In spite of the fact that several big, traditional, Czech-owned engineering companies faced serious financial difficulties during the 1990s (esp. Zbrojovka, 
Královopolská, Zetor) and thousands of employees have been dismissed, the region’s most important industries are still engineering and metalworking 
(especially power engineering, mechanical engineering and electrical engineering) and electronics. These are followed by chemical and pharmaceutical 
industries, food-processing and textile manufacturing which, however, does not reach its former fame.

Tab. 6: Representatives of processing industry in the South Moravian Region

Company name Location Specialization

Engineering and metalworking

ABB Brno power generation solutions and products

Alstom Brno air preheaters manufacturing

ČKD Blansko Holding Blansko water turbines

Daikin Brno air conditioners and accessories

IFE-CR Modřice automatic door systems for railway vehicles

Jihomoravská armaturka Hodonín armatures and fittings

Kovolit Modřice non-ferrous metal founding, forging

Královopolská Brno crane and hoist device

Lear Vyškov automotive seating systems and electrical power management system

Minerva Boskovice sewing machines

OTIS Břeclav elevators, escalators and moving walkways

Siemens Industrial Turbomachinery Brno steam turbines

Šmeral Brno forming machines

TOS Kuřim cutting machines

Zetor Brno tractors, agricultural machinery

ZKL Brno roller bearings

Electronics

ALPS Sebranice electronic components

Andrew/ CommScope Modřice communications equipment

AVX Czech Republic Bzenec tantalum capacitators

Gebauer a Griller Kabeltechnik Mikulov cables, wires and cable harnesses

Honeywell Brno control technologies for buildings and industry

Juli-Motorenwerk Moravany electric motors for handling machines

Motorola Solutions/Zebra Technologies Brno shared service and high-tech repair centre

Siemens Electric Machines Drásov synchronous generators

Tyco Electronics Czech Kuřim cable and connector technology

VUES Brno special and non-standard electric rotating machines

Textiles, wearing apparel, leather and related products

DINA–HITEX Bučovice surgical drapes

Kordárna Velká nad Veličkou cord fabrics

Nová Mosilana Brno wool yarns for knitwear

Pegas Znojmo synthetic nonwoven textiles

Food-processing

Delimax Hodonín fish products
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Company name Location Specialization

Hamé Podivín jams and fruit mixtures

Moravskoslezské cukrovary Hrušovany nad Jevišovkou sugar processing

Penam Brno bakery products

Starobrno Brno beer production

The Candy Plus Sweet Factory Rohatec candy production

TPK Hodonín dairy products

Vodňanské kuře Modřice production of frozen chickens, small meet products

Chemical, pharmaceutical, plastic

Bioveta Ivanovice na Hané veterinary and human products

BKR CR/ Velux Group Vyškov plastic components for roof windows

Fosfa Břeclav fertilizers

Gumotex Břeclav polyurethane foam and rubber products

Hartmann-Rico Veverská Bítýška cotton-wool and bandage materials

Lohmann & Rauscher Slavkov u Brna cotton-wool and bandage materials

Ceramics and glass

Českomoravský cement Mokrá building materials – cement, concrete

P-D Refractories CZ Velké Opatovice refractory products and raw materials

Saint Gobain – Adfors Hodonice glass fibers

Vetropack Moravia Glass Kyjov glass containers for the beverage and food industry

Paper and wood-processing, printing

CPI Moravia Books Pohořelice printing

Unilin (former Magnum Parket) Vyškov ply wood floor

Moraviapress Břeclav printing

Source: RRA JM, 2018

Agriculture

Despite being one of the most fertile parts of the Czech Republic with a relatively important role played by agriculture, the overall importance of this 
sector in the economy of the region is relatively small. Currently agriculture employs less than 3 per cent of labour force. Poultry breeding dominates 
livestock production followed with pig farming and cattle breeding (especially in the hilly areas in the northern part of the region). Crops cultivated in 
the region are mainly cereals (wheat, barley), maize and oil-seed rape. Viticulture is an important regional specialty whereas 93 % (16,336 hectares in 
2018) of Czech vineyards located in South Moravia. Contrary to the overall trend in agriculture, this sector has been on a steady increase - especially 
due to the growing popularity of wine among Czech consumers but also due to an increased export abroad. Production and processing of fruits (share 
out of total Czech Republic harvest – peaches 70 %, apricots – 79 %) and vegetables (cucumbers – 82 %, tomatoes – 96 %) and oil seeds (sunflower – 
55 %) are also important and employ a considerable share of population in the southern part of the region (more than one tenth out of the total 
number of employees).
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I. 04. Labour force

The economy of South Moravia is predominantly based on services (59 % of total labour force) and manufacturing (28 %) whereas total gross value 
added is 36 %. There is, however, a substantial regional variation within South Moravia. The city of Brno which represents the most important economic 
centre of the region, is mainly a centre of service industries (almost 75 % of its labour force, 80 % in Praha), whereas some South Moravian districts have 
over 40 % of the labour force employed in manufacturing but less than 50 % employees in services.

Tab. 7: Employment structure in South Moravia, Praha and neighbouring regions 2017 (%)

Region
Czech 

Republic
Praha

South 
Moravian

South 
Bohemian

Olomouc Pardubice Vysočina Zlín

Agriculture, forestry, fishing 2.8 0.3 3.1 4.9 3.5 4.8 4.7 2.7

Manufacturing, mining, energy supply, waste 
disposal

30.5 10.7 28.1 30.8 34.1 38.6 39.4 40.5

Construction 8.9 6.6 8.9 9.0 8.1 6.6 7.9 8.3

Wholesale and retail trade; repair of mot. veh. 10.5 14.1 10.5 11.2 10.2 8.8 11.0 12.1

Transportation and storage 5.8 6.4 5.8 6.6 6.0 5.5 4.8 3.6

Accommodation and food service activities 3.1 4.7 3.1 3.9 2.2 2.7 2.7 3.2

Information and communication 3.6 7.0 3.6 1.7 1.1 2.5 1.0 1.9

Financial and insurance activities 2.0 4.9 2.0 1.9 1.6 2.0 1.1 1.3

Real estate activities 0.9 1.5 0.9 0.3 0.6 0.4 0.6 0.4

Professional, scientific and technical activities 5.4 11.3 5.4 3.7 3.7 3.8 3.3 3.2

Administrative and support service activities 2.1 4.5 2.1 2.2 2.3 1.7 1.4 1.2

Public adm. and defence; comp. soc. security 6.9 6.6 6.9 7.4 8.0 6.4 6.5 5.0

Education 7.4 7.7 7.4 6.4 6.8 6.9 5.9 6.6

Human health and social work activities 7.5 8.6 7.5 6.6 7.0 6.3 6.3 6.3

Arts, entertainment and recreation 2.3 3.3 2.3 1.0 1.6 1.0 1.3 1.0

Other service activities 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.2 1.6 1.5

Source: Czech Statistical Office, Labour Forces Selective Survey, 2017

During the 1990s the region went through a major restructuring process characterized by break-up of a large number of formerly state-owned enterprises 
several of which employed well over 10,000 employees. During the privatization process in the early 1990s these have split into a number of smaller 
enterprises, some have been reduced to several hundreds of employees and many others have disappeared entirely. At the same time, many new 
enterprises have been established, especially in the service industries. No structural changes of a scale comparable to the 1990s are expected in the 
near future, although the strategic aim of the region is to attract more foreign investment which is likely to contribute to a share of employment in the 
high-tech branches within the regional economy. At present the economy of South Moravia is very diverse and its most promising segment is represented 
by foreign-owned companies and Czech-owned small and medium-sized enterprises. In 2017 there were 251 industrial enterprises with 100 and more 
employees located in the region.

Traditionally South Moravia has been dominated by engineering and textiles industries, but over the past two decades a dramatic decline of textile 
manufacturing and a substantial reduction in engineering changed the balance and new sectors are favoured – especially high-tech industries, such as 
electronics and software development. Much of this change has been due to the steady inflow of foreign direct investment. Electrical and mechanical 
engineering also received a substantial amount of foreign investment either through joint-ventures, takeovers or greenfield investments and they are still 
important sectors of the South Moravian overall economy.
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I. 05. Unemployment

Within the whole Czech Republic, South Moravia is a region with a long-term above-average level of unemployment. This is a trend that has been 
apparent since 1998-99 when traditional pillars of the region’s economy – especially textile and many engineering companies started to go bankrupt. 
Also, the leather and shoe-making industries faced substantial job-losses, as well as the brown-coal mining and metal working branches. Since then, 
the negative tendency of unemployment growth has been partly offset by the foreign direct investment that has been flowing mainly to the electronics, 
engineering and automotive sectors. After its peaks in early 2004 (unemployment rate of 12.1 %) and 2010 (reaching 11.4 % due to a worldwide crisis) 
the unemployment rate decreased to 6.5 % in 2016 and to 4.0 % in 2018. And now is the lowest since 1997.1 The unemployment tends to fluctuate 
during the year with rates being the highest in winter months and the lowest during the late summer or autumn. In absolute figures it means between 
30,000 (June 2018) and 39,000 (January 2018) jobless, of which little less than a half are usually women (48.8 % in winter, but up to 53.3 % in summer 
months). The share of unemployed is generally regarded as higher than national average (+18.5 %, 2017).

Unemployment rate trend 1994–2018
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Source: Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, Regional Development Agency of South Moravia

From the regional point of view the most affected areas are Hodonín district and Znojmo district with average year unemployment almost 6 % in 2018 
(some 6,000 unemployed in Hodonín, 4,500 unemployed in Znojmo). The unemployment rate in the City of Brno during the crisis rose up from 5.5 % 
(2008) to 8.7 % and in the first half of 2014 the share of unemployed people was higher than 9.0 %. Current rate is steadily around 4.5 % (with some 
12,000 unemployed) thereby has become the third highest in the region. Among the unemployed in Brno there is also the highest share of university 
graduates (almost 15 per cent in summer months in opposite to the regional 11.2 % and national 9.3 % average; 07/2018).

1  since 2013 the share of the unemployed in the population aged 15 – 64 years is monitored instead of registered unemployment rate 
(ratio of the number of job applicants out of work to the number of employment – annual moving average)
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Average annual unemployment rate in the South Moravian Region (share of the unemployment rate in the population aged 15–64)
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Source: Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, Regional Development Agency of South Moravia

Tab. 8: Unemployment rate in individual districts of South Moravia

District 2005 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018*

Blansko 8.4 5.5 10.2 8.7 8.8 7.1 6.9 5.8 4.9 3.5 2.8

Brno-city 9.5 5.5 8.5 8.1 8.5 8.3 8.9 8.0 7.2 5.8 4.6

Brno-district 6.9 4.2 8.3 7.7 7.6 6.6 6.7 5.6 4.7 3.7 2.8

Břeclav 10.6 6.0 11.1 10.8 10.1 8.1 7.7 6.3 5.3 4.1 3.4

Hodonín 14.3 9.9 15.0 14.0 13.9 10.7 10.4 8.8 7.8 6.4 5.2

Vyškov 9.1 4.4 8.9 8.2 8.3 6.8 6.3 4.9 3.9 3.0 2.3

Znojmo 13.1 9.5 13.2 12.6 13.4 10.2 10.3 9.1 8.1 6.7 5.6

South Moravia 10.1 6.2 10.2 9.6 9.7 8.3 8.3 7.2 6.3 5.0 4.0

Czech Republic 8.9 5.4 9.0 8.5 8.6 7.7 7.7 6.5 5.5 4.2 3.3

Source: Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, Average annual data (* January–September average)

– 5.0 %

5.1–6.0 %

6.1–7.0 %

7.1–8.0 %
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Tab. 9: Job opportunities

District 2005 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018*

Blansko 586 831 205 197 194 277 385 666 828 1,081 1,156

Brno-city 2,548 6,950 1,370 866 965 780 1,422 3,110 4,091 5,803 7,977

Brno-district 602 3,059 536 647 557 434 800 1,455 2,519 4,051 7,327

Břeclav 419 705 237 183 227 321 611 1,046 1,268 1,297 1,713

Hodonín 537 827 339 384 343 335 432 812 1,041 1,355 2,181

Vyškov 280 552 159 204 195 225 255 543 770 1,103 1,466

Znojmo 642 1,267 417 333 360 448 418 906 761 1,052 1,397

South Moravia 5,613 14,190 3,262 2,813 2,839 2,819 4,322 8,536 11,277 15,741 23,216

Czech Republic 54,677 133,485 32,992 36,982 39,597 39,874 51,396 96,038 131,191 189,282 290,390

Source: Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, Average annual data (* 1Q – 3Q 2018 average)

I. 06. Wages

South Moravia can be rated as one of the most favourable locations in the Czech Republic from the employers‘ point of view. Qualification levels are 
among the highest in the country (Brno itself having 23.7 % of the workforce with university education, in comparison to the 23.6 % in Praha) whereas 
the wages are still substantially lower than those in the capital city (approximately amounting to 75 %). This is the case with the managerial and middle 
management positions throughout the region. As for employees in manufacturing and related services, the wages in Brno tend to be slightly over the 
national average, but they are significantly lower in other parts of the region.

The Czech law stipulates that employees must not receive wage that is lower than the minimum wage. The minimum possible wage is declared by a decree 
of the government of the Czech Republic and published in the Collection of Acts. As of 1st January 2018, the wage for employees remunerated by a monthly 
wage is 12,200 CZK, for employees paid by hourly wages was 73.20 CZK/hour. This wage for that purpose does not include overtime bonus, premium for 
work in difficult and harmful-to-health working conditions, premium for night work and work on holidays (a premium for an hour of night work is amounting 
to 20 % of average hour income, it quotes at least 14.64 CZK). The minimum wage is valid for any employment (both for limited and unlimited period of time, 
for full and part-time employment), however, it does not apply to contract work agreements concluded outside the employment contract.

According to the national statistics, the average monthly gross salary in 2017 was 29.504 CZK in (annual increase +7.0 %), the average monthly gross salary 
in the South Moravia was 28,549 CZK (6.7 % growth) but two thirds out of all employees have their average earnings below this level. From the regional 
point of view the highest salaries have been paid in Prague (about 26 % higher than the nationwide average but 31 % above the South-Moravian average). 
The city of Brno achieves overall wage level just about the nationwide average but the rest of the region has wages lower than that.

Although the labour costs in the South Moravian Region are still distinctively under the Western Europe level, in general, neither the whole Czech 
Republic nor the region are no more indicated as low-cost. It is due to the progressive wage increase (wages have been doubled since 2000) and Czech 
currency strengthening (+36 % compared with EUR, 2000).

The actual labour costs, however, will depend on the overall remuneration policy and the benefit package offered to employees. People in South 
Moravia, just like anywhere else in the Czech Republic, are willing to commute to get a good job (normally up to 30 km a day; for managerial positions 
even more – up to 100 km is not exceptional). However, Czech people are quite reluctant to move permanently which is fact that every investor should 
keep in mind.

Tab. 10: Average hourly wages in South Moravia by the educational level (CZK)

Level of education 2002 2005 2008 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Primary education 63.09 68.74 89.04 97.94 103.56 102.92 104.35 112.39 115.87 130.71

Secondary without final exam 73.88 85.77 106.13 110.21 117.19 113.91 114.90 120.49 126.32 139.10

Secondary with final exam 95.54 113.48 140.93 143.82 153.74 150.50 150.75 155.05 162.55 173.36

Higher secondary and bachelors 103.77 125.36 156.97 164.82 177.10 178.62 179.43 189.11 200.07 214.25

University degree 172.83 191.75 239.95 237.21 261.72 248.90 252.86 254.37 264.10 276.51

Total – private sector 88.09 105.37 136.12 141.79 152.71 151.15 152.73 158.93 167.24 179.85

Source: Regional Statistics of Labour Cost – Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs; private sector data
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Tab. 11: Average hourly wages in South Moravia by main employment categories (CZK)

Main employment categories 2002 2005 2008 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Managerial positions 205.80 231.01 281.98 308.72 352.19 323.41 328.98 356.66 352.23 357.84

Researchers, specialised expert workers 134.28 161.02 201.57 217.72 238.25 239.43 241.78 257.98 271.03 287.35

Technicians, workers in health-care and education 104.49 129.03 159.04 158.92 169.94 168.88 171.49 174.87 183.56 195.49

Lower administrative positions 73.96 88.00 107.93 121.81 132.54 131.33 132.10 133.01 139.90 151.43

Operators in services and trade 58.05 67.81 85.05 82.69 91.85 90.14 90.62 93.20 99.15 108.46

Manual workers in agriculture, forestry and fisheries 59.07 66.21 80.11 90.82 100.53 n.a. n.a. 110.41 n.a. n.a.

Craftsmen and manufacturing workers 76.37 87.17 112.48 118.99 127.06 122.65 127.98 136.63 141.92 153.89

Manufacturing operators 76.55 87.92 109.48 115.02 121.54 119.46 119.18 125.31 133.15 146.31

Unskilled workers 54.38 62.69 72.42 86.43 94.54 93.23 92.76 97.03 98.91 108.38

Total – private sector 88.09 105.37 136.12 141.79 152.71 151.15 152.73 158.93 167.24 179.85

Source: Regional Statistics of Labour Cost – Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs; private sector data

Tab. 12: Average hourly wages in South Moravia by gender and employment categories (CZK)

Employment categories 2002 2005 2008 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Male 98.61 116.88 153.75 158.12 171.00 167.93 170.23 175.92 185.29 197.85

Female 72.56 85.09 108.24 117.99 125.38 125.33 126.08 132.18 137.82 150.12

Manual workers 71.75 81.43 101.39 105.73 113.27 110.62 111.91 117.98 124.84 137.09

Non-manual workers 117.50 144.71 178.39 182.67 197.65 194.53 195.81 197.81 208.40 220.65

Source: Regional Statistics of Labour Cost – Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs; private sector data

Tab. 13: Average month wages in South Moravia by employment categories in 2017 (CZK)

Employment categories Average wage
Of which

Basic wage (%) Other benefits, contributions (%)

Managerial positions in human resources 86,828 70.0 30.0

Managerial positions in marketing 74,790 67.2 32.8

Managerial positions in research and development 88,307 70.4 29.6

Managerial positions in manufacturing 59,178 72.5 27.5

Managerial positions in freight, warehousing 
and telecommunications

60,244 72.6 27.4

Managerial positions in ICT 98,156 74.1 25.9

Managerial positions in financial services 105,897 60.4 39.6

Mechanical engineers 45,568 79.7 20.3

Electrical engineers 48,012 79.4 20.6

Financial analysts, finance specialists 43,873 69.9 30.2

Programmers 57,309 75.6 24.4

System analysts 54,533 70.8 29.2

IT system administrators 51,311 79.3 20.7

Building technicians 30,976 69.6 30.4

Technical positions in electrical engineering 34,322 72.4 27.6

Technical positions in mechanical engineering 34,731 72.7 27.3

Technical positions in other industries 29,246 68.7 31.3

Specialists accounting, economics, human resources 28,683 74.2 25.8

Purchasing specialist 35,400 74.8 25.2

IT operators and maintenance 45,271 70.1 29.9

Secretaries 20,808 79.5 20.5

Emplyees in customers centres 28,524 73.0 27.0

Employees in accounting and budgeting 24,729 80.4 19.6
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Employment categories Average wage
Of which

Basic wage (%) Other benefits, contributions (%)

Warehouse clerks 26,736 75.1 24.9

Production clerks 27,273 73.5 26.5

Shop assistants 18,295 77.7 22.3

Bricklayers 20,615 75.0 25.0

Welders 30,641 66.7 33.3

Plumbers, locksmiths at construction works 23,465 74.7 25.3

Tool-makers and metal workers 26,196 70.1 29.9

Machinists, machine and device repairers 30,494 65.8 34.2

Electricians 28,084 70.9 29.1

Quality controllers, laboratory technicians 27,614 67.1 32.9

Skilled workers–metal tooling 25,130 71.0 29.0

Skilled workers – electrical engineering 27,485 66.5 33.5

Truck drivers 21,716 71.8 28.3

Unskilled workers 20,181 69.4 30.6

Source: Regional Statistics of Labour Cost - Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, 4Q 2017; private sector data

No doubt, the concrete remuneration policy is a matter of your company’s strategy. Yet, we also present the data on wages based on direct experience 
with companies (mainly foreign-owned) that have already established their presence in South Moravia. On top of this, remuneration packages offered by 
multinational companies to their employees in South Moravia are also stated, as well as a few hints and points for consideration that your HR department 
may want to know about.

There are several important factors that have to be taken into account when considering the remuneration package:

• Size of the company
• Production/service sector
• Location of the company (big cities, access to highway, unemployment rate)
• Level of working and professional experience 

Most companies offer salaries and benefits on the local market average level. We feel the potential Key Motivators for the successful attraction and 
retention of quality candidates could be as follows:

• All employees (both white and blue collars)
 » Realistic performance related bonus or premium
 » Company contribution for meals (vouchers)
 » Extra days of holidays
 » Training courses – language etc.

 » Sport, cultural benefits
 » Insurance other than provided by the State
 » A private or corporate pension fund
 » Full salary in case the candidate is sick

 
Better working conditions and professional growth, housing facilities and company shuttle-buses for people who cannot commute every day because 
they live in the areas where unemployment significantly exceeds national average, can be considered other attractive factors.

• Managers and Professional Staff
 » Realistic performance related bonus
 » Car
 » Mobile phone
 » Notebook
 » A private or corporate pension fund
 » Insurance other than provided by the State

 » Stock options
 » Business trips abroad
 » Training – MBA, ISO, VDA etc.
 » Relocation package where necessary with an accommodation, 

as well as possible work for family members (spouse), 
childcare support

 
Any combination of the above along with a competitive salary should help the investor to become a competitive employer in the region.
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Tab. 14: Expected wage levels for position of professional

Job Category Position Average Monthly Gross Salary (CZK)

Management

CEO/Country Manager from 180,000+ car

General Manager from 150,000 + car

Branch Manager from 80,000 + car

Administration

Office Manager 25,000–50,000

Assistant 22,000–35,000

Legal Counsel 45,000–80,000

Finance

Finance Director from 100,000 + car

Finance Manager from 80,000 + car

Controller 35,000–70,000

Finance Analyst 30,000–60,000

Chief Accountant 40,000–60,000

Accountant 22,000–35,000

Payroll 23,000–35,000

Human Resources

DR Director from 100,000 + car

HR Manager from 60,000

Recruitment Specialist 25,000–35,000

Comp & Ben Specialist 30,000–45,000

Generalist 30,000–50,000

Training and Development Specialist 30,000–45,000

Sales / marketing

Sales Director from 100,000 + car

Sales Manager from 80,000 + car

Key Account Manager 40,000–80,000 + car

Regional Sales Manager 40,000–80,000 + car

Sales Representative 25,000–45,000 + car

Marketing Manager from 70,000 + car

Marketing Specialist / PR 30,000–45,000

Customer service

Customer Service Manager from 70,000 + car

Customer Service 30,000–45,000

Product / Brand Manager 45,000–70,000

Call Centre Manager from 60,000

Call Centre Supervisor from 40,000

Call Centre Operator 17,000–25,000

Manufacturing

Plant Manager from 130,000 + car

Production Director from 75,000 + car

Production Manager 30,000–45,000

Production Engineer 25,000–50,000

Quality Manager from 65,000

Quality Engineer 25,000–50,000

Process Engineer 28,000–50,000
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Job Category Position Average Monthly Gross Salary (CZK)

Technologist 25,000–35,000

Facility Manager 50,000–80,000

EHS Manager from 60,000 + car

EHS Technician 25,000–45,000

Maintenance Manager 30,000–60,000

Maintenance Specialist 22,000–35,000

Planner 30,000–50,000

CNC Operator 25,000–40,000

Production Worker skilled 17,000–25,000

Production Worker unskilled 14,000–16,000

Technical Dept.

Technical Director from 75,000 + car

Technical Manager/Engineering Manager from 60,000

Project Manager 45,000–60,000

Designer (CAD) 25,000–45,000

Continuous Improvement Manager 60,000–80,000

Lean Manager 55,000–70,000

Purchasing & Logistics

Buyer Manager from 80,000 + car

Supply Chain Manager from 65,000 + car

Commodity Manager 55,000–90,000

Buyer 30,000–50,000

Logistics Manager from 65,000 + car

Logistics Specialist 25,000–50,000

Warehouse Supervisor 30,000–50,000

Warehouse Clerk 16,000–25,000

IT & Technologies

IT Manager from 100,000 + car

IT Project Manager 60,000–90,000

IT Specialist 30,000–50,000

System Administrator 40,000–80,000

Analyst 40,000–80,000

Programmer/Developer 40,000–80,000

IT Consultant 45,000–80,000

 

Regional Development Agency of South Moravia 
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II. Legal Regulation of Business Activities, Establishment of Business Entities
As of 1st January 2014, the formation and management of business entities (i.e., general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, joint 
stock company and cooperative) are in particular governed by the Act on Business Corporations and Cooperatives (Act on Business Corporations, 
i.e. Act No. 90/2012 Coll.). The formation and management of the European company, European Economic Interests Group and European Cooperative 
Society are in particular governed by respective provisions of the European Law and by the respective special acts (Act on the European Company 
– act. No. 627/2004 Coll., Act on the European Economic Interests Group – act No. 360/2004 Coll., Act on the European Cooperative Society – act 
No. 307/2006 Coll.). Some general issues related to the business entities are governed by the New Civil Code (Act No. 89/2012 Coll.). Some important 
issues are also governed by the Trade Licensing Act (Act No. 455/1991 Coll., as subsequently amended) and by the Act on Conversion of Business 
Companies and Cooperatives (Act No. 125/2008 Coll., as subsequently amended).

In order to engage in a business activity, foreign persons (both individuals and entities) may participate in the foundation of a Czech legal entity 
or become partners or members in an already existing Czech legal entity. Provided that Czech law permits a sole founder or a single owner with respect 
to a certain form of legal entity, a foreign person may also become such sole founder or single owner. To sum up, for the purpose of engagement 
in a business activity Czech law offers the following options to foreign persons:

• The establishment of an enterprise in the form of a partnership, corporation or sole proprietorship
• The participation in an already existing enterprise as

 » a partner, a member or a shareholder on the ground of acquiring a share
 » a silent partner (sections 2747–2755 of the New Civil Code)

• The establishment of a Czech enterprise of a foreign person or of a Czech branch of the enterprise of a foreign person

II. 01. Establishment of a Partnership or Corporation – Key Steps

Legal Form

When establishing an enterprise, the business ideas of investors and entrepreneurs determine the first steps to be taken. It is necessary to differentiate 
whether you want to do business in the area of banking or financial services, as a professional, or in the sector of social services. At this first stage, 
a decision on the form of the corporation or the partnership has to be taken.

The Czech Act on Business Corporations offers the following options:

• general partnership (veřejná obchodní společnost, v.o.s.)
• limited partnership (komanditní společnost, k.s.)
• limited liability company (společnost s ručením omezeným, s.r.o.)
• joint stock company (akciová společnost, a.s.)
• cooperative (družstvo) 

The legal form of so called European company (evropská společnost, SE) or European Cooperative Society can be used as well.

The most frequently used legal forms are the limited liability company and the joint stock company. The legal form of a general partnership is used only 
rarely in some specific areas of business activities (e.g. partnership of attorneys-at-law). The same applies to the legal form of a limited partnership, 
which is sometimes used by, e.g., international retail chains. The legal form of a cooperative is practically never used by foreign investors.

Thus, in the following text we will concentrate on the process of the foundation of corporations (limited liability company, joint stock company) 
in general, then on some specific information which applies either solely to the limited liability company or solely to the joint stock company. As this text 
concentrates on the legal forms used by foreign investors, we will not deal with the process of the establishment of a general partnership or a limited 
partnership, which is in many aspects similar to the process of the establishment of corporations.
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The process of the establishment of a new limited liability company or a joint stock company can be divided into two main stages: foundation 
of the corporation and its incorporation (entry in the Commercial Register). The process of the foundation of a corporation consists of:

• The execution of the memorandum of association (in the case of a limited liability company), articles of association 
(in the case of a joint stock company) or the founder’s deed (in the case of a limited liability company founded by a sole member).

• The payment of the contribution premium and of the specified portion of monetary investment contributions and provision of all 
non-monetary contributions. 

The new legal entity is incorporated (officially comes into being) only on the day as of which it is entered in the Commercial Register.

Although the corporation legally comes into being only with its incorporation, anyone (usually the founder(s), an appointed executive director 
or a member of the board of directors) can act on its behalf prior to the incorporation. However, such person becomes entitled from and bound by these 
legal acts. In the event that more persons act in such way, they are entitled and bound jointly and severally. The corporation can take over the obligations 
from these legal acts and notify the other participants thereof within 3 months of its incorporation. In such case the corporation is deemed to be entitled 
and bound by these legal acts from the beginning.

II. 02. Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association or Founder’s Deed

The corporation is founded by a memorandum of association or articles of association signed by each founder. Both the limited liability company 
and the joint stock company may be founded by a sole founder. In the case of a corporation founded by a sole founder, the sole founder executes 
a founder’s deed instead. The memorandum of association, the articles of association or the founder’s deed (jointly referred to as the founding 
document) by which a limited liability company or a joint stock company is founded have to be executed in the form of a notarial record. These 
documents may also be executed on behalf of a founder by a person authorized to do so by the founder. The respective power of attorney in the form 
of a notarial record must be enclosed with the founding document.

Compulsory content required both for the memorandum of association (founder’s deed) and the articles of association:

• The corporate name (in Czech obchodní firma). The corporate name of the corporation may not be interchangeable with the corporate name 
of another entrepreneur and may not be deceptive.

• The seat (registered office, in Czech sídlo).Upon applying for the incorporation of the company, the legal title for use of the premises where the 
seat is situated has to be documented. For this purpose, a written declaration of consent with the placement of the seat of the company issued by 
the owner of the real estate or unit or by another person who is entitled to dispose with the real estate, flat or non-residential unit where the seat 
is situated is sufficient.

• The object of (business) activity. The designation of the object of business activity has to be identical with the name of the trades for which 
the company will be issued the trade authorizations. The names of the trades are specified by Czech law. Therefore, prior to the specification 
of the object of business activity in the founding document, the following steps in the given order have to be taken by the founders:
 » informally decide on the business activities of the corporation
 » choose suitable trades for these business activities
 » set out the subject of business activity in the founding document.

• The amount of registered capital. The registered capital is the sum of all investment contributions in the company. For the limited liability 
company, no minimal amount of registered capital is required. The registered capital of the limited liability company with one founder thus can 
amount to CZK 1 only. The minimum registered capital of a joint stock company must amount to CZK 2,000,000 or EUR 80,000. 

The investment contribution means the monetary expression of the value of the object of the investment contribution in the registered capital of the 
company. In the limited liability company, the minimum investment contribution amounts to CZK 1. The object of the investment contribution is a thing 
which the future shareholder undertakes to contribute to the company in order to acquire a share in such company. The object of the contribution can 
be money (“monetary contribution”) or other thing appraisable in money (non-monetary contribution). Before the incorporation, the non-monetary 
contributions have to be provided and at least 30 % of the monetary contributions have to be paid up. The non-monetary contribution has to be 
appraised by an expert chosen from the list of experts by the founders. The founding document must state in which amount the non-monetary 
contribution will be counted as the contribution of the respective founder and as the issuance or contribution premium, as the case may be, or how 
many shares of a certain nominal value will be issued to the respective founder.

Prior to incorporation (entry in the Commercial Register) the manager of the investment contributions entrusted in the founding document manages 
(administers) the paid-up or provided portions of the investment contributions. The monetary contributions have to be paid up into a special bank 
account, which has to be opened for this purpose by the manager of the investment contributions. The bank shall not allow any disposal with the paid-up 

Legal Regulation of Business Activities, Establishment of Business Entities20



contributions in this account until the corporation is incorporated in the Commercial Register, unless it is duly proved that the payment shall cover 
the costs of the foundation of the company or the return of the contribution to the founders.

The manager of the contributions shall issue a written statement confirming the paid-up contributions or part thereof of individual participants 
(members, shareholders). The statement shall be enclosed with the application for registration (incorporation) in the Commercial Register. If the manager 
of contributions lists an amount which is higher than the amount actually paid up the manager of contributions shall be liable to the company’s creditors 
for the company’s obligations up to the amount of this difference.

• Identification of the executive director(s) and members of the supervisory board, if the supervisory board is established (in the case of the limited 
liability company) or members of the bodies who shall, under the articles of association, be elected by the general meeting (in case of the joint 
stock company). Both a natural person and a legal entity can become an executive director, member of the supervisory board or a member the 
body of a joint stock company who shall, under the articles of association, be elected by the general meeting.

Trade Licenses

Under Czech law most of the business activities in the Czech Republic are deemed to be trades (živnosti) in the sense of the Trade Licensing Act 
(Act No. 455/1991 Coll., as subsequently amended, hereinafter referred to as the TLA). Any individual or legal person may carry on trade upon 
a registration with the Trade Licensing Register. Under TLA, explicitly stated business activities are not deemed to be trades. Thus, for example, 
the business activities of professionals (lawyers, pharmacists, dentists, veterinary doctors) and some other special business activities (such as banks, 
insurance companies, pension funds, securities dealers etc.) or lease of real estates, flats (apartments) and non-residential premises do not belong among 
trades. Conditions for conduct of those business activities that are not deemed to be trades are mostly set forth by special acts. Usually, a special license 
issued by a different authority than a Trade Licensing Office is required.

As already mentioned above, the object of business activity has to be stated in the founding document. It is therefore necessary to look up the exact 
name of the respective trade, as set forth by TLA and governmental decree No. 278/2008 Coll., as subsequently amended. In the case of other business 
activities which are not deemed to be trades under TLA and which fall under special legal regulation, the exact designation of the business activity has 
to be looked up in these special acts.

After the execution of the founding document, the founders, the statutory body of the company or its members stated in the founding document have 
to register the trades with the Trade Licensing Register.

TLA differentiates notifiable trades and licensed trades. Notifiable trades are further divided into:

• crafts, whose operation is conditional on providing evidence that the entrepreneur or its responsible representative (see below) meets the skills 
(qualifications) stipulated by TLA,

• regulated trades, whose conduct is also conditional on the specialized skills (qualifications) of the entrepreneur or its responsible representative 
stipulated in Annex No. 2 of TLA, and

• unregulated trade whose conduct does not require any stipulated skills. 

The crafts are listed in Annex No. 1 of TLA, the regulated trades are listed in Annex No. 2 of TLA and the unregulated trade with its objects of activities 
is stated in Annex No. 4 of TLA. Licensed trades may be carried on only on the basis of an authorization by the state in the form of a license. Licensed 
trades are listed in Annex No. 3 of the TLA.

Notifiable and licensed trades may be carried on by any entrepreneur (including corporation) which meets the conditions stipulated in TLA. Provided that 
the stipulated conditions are met, notifiable trades may be carried on once they have been registered with the Trade Licensing Register. The fulfilment 
of the conditions laid down in TLA is confirmed by an excerpt from the Trade Licensing Register, which is issued by the Trade Licensing Office.

Notifiable trades may be notified to, and the application for the trade license may be filed with, any Trade Licensing Office (živnostenský úřad). In case all 
legal requirements are met, the Trade Licensing Office registers the notifiable trade with the Trade Licensing Register within 5 working days from the day 
when the application was delivered thereto. The licensed trade is registered with the Trade Licensing Register within five days of the day when the license 
came into force. In case of newly founded corporation, the authorization to carry on a trade becomes effective as of the day of its incorporation.

The contact data of the Brno Trade Licensing Office: Živnostenský úřad města Brna, Malinovského nám. 3, tel. 542 173 411. 
Opening hours: Monday, Wednesday 8 a.m.–5 p.m., Friday 8 a.m.–12 a.m.
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Under TLA an entrepreneur who is a legal entity – with the exception of those carrying notifiable unregulated trade – is obliged to carry on a trade 
through a responsible representative. A responsible representative is an individual who has been appointed by an entrepreneur to ensure the proper 
conduct of a trade and complies with the trade’s legislation and who is in a contractual relationship with the entrepreneur. Nobody may be appointed 
as a responsible representative for more than four entrepreneurs. A member of the supervisory board cannot act as the responsible representative.

An entrepreneur (including corporation) may carry on more than one trade provided that he/she has a (separate) trade authorization for each trade. 
However, a responsible representative for each such trade has to be appointed. Such responsible representative can be the same person, provided that 
he meets the requirements stipulated for each such trade.

Incorporation in the Commercial Register (obchodní rejstřík)

Once the founding document has been executed in the form of the notarial record, all non-monetary investment contributions have been provided and 
the part of monetary contribution stipulated by law or the founding document have been paid up, the corporation has gained the consent with the use 
the premises in which its seat will be situated and the necessary trade authorizations/or licenses for business activities which are not deemed to be trades 
have been issued, the application for incorporation (registration of the company in the Commercial Register) can be submitted. The applications for 
registration of the incorporation or other changes in the Commercial Register have to be filed only by means of forms.

The application has to be signed by all executive directors (in the case of a limited liability company) or by all members of the board of directors, 
respectively by the statutory director (in the case of a joint stock company), regardless of the way in which they are entitled to represent the company 
pursuant to the founding document. The application can also be filed by an empowered person, usually an attorney-at-law. The signatures on the power 
of attorney have to be authorized. The documents set out in the Act on Public Registries of Legal Entities and Natural Persons (act No. 304/2013 Coll.) 
have to be enclosed with the application for incorporation:

The application for incorporation has to be filed with the Regional Court (krajský soud) which is locally competent according to the seat of the 
corporation. As the court regions do not correspond with the administrative regions, the Regional Court in Brno is locally competent for the former 
districts of Blansko, Brno, Brno-venkov, Břeclav, Hodonín, Kroměříž, Prostějov, Třebíč, Uherské Hradiště, Vyškov, Zlín and Znojmo, i.e. the whole 
of South Moravia plus parts of surrounding regions.

The Brno Commercial Register is seated at the Regional Court in Brno, Commercial Department, Husova 15, tel. 54210 1111, fax 54210 9368. The contact 
data of all courts in the Czech Republic can also be found at www.justice.cz.

The court fee for the incorporation amounts to CZK 12,000 in case of a joint stock company and CZK 5,000 in case of all other legal forms regardless 
of the amount of registered capital.

The participants in the incorporation proceedings in court are the applicants (all executive directors in case of a limited liability company or all members 
of the board of directors, respectively the statutory director in case of a joint stock company). Other persons who shall be entered with the Commercial 
Register (founders, members of the supervisory board) are not participants in the incorporation proceedings. However, the applicant(s) shall provide 
the Commercial Register with a written consent of such other person with their entry in the Commercial Register. The signature of the consent has to 
be certified, or the consent has to ensue from a document executed in the form of a notarial record. An applicant – foreign person – shall provide the 
Commercial Register with an address for delivery of official documents in the Czech Republic.

The court has to decide on the application for incorporation or make a registration in the Commercial Register within five days of filing the application. 
If the court neither makes the registration nor decides on the application nor call on the applicant to complete the application within this time-limit, 
the registration is deemed to be made on the day following the expiration of the aforesaid time-limit. The court shall inform the participants in the 
proceedings by delivery of the excerpt from the Commercial Register. The court shall send away the excerpts within three days of the registration.

At the request of the persons authorized to file the application for entry in the Commercial Register, a notary can also register the company in the 
Commercial Register provided that certain conditions are met.

Winding-up and Dissolution of a Corporation

A corporation becomes dissolved at the date it is deleted from the Commercial Register. Dissolution of a corporation is preceded by its winding-up, either 
with or without liquidation.

Dissolution of a corporation without liquidation means company’s fluent transfer to its legal successor (e.g., by means of merger or division).
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A corporation can be wound up either voluntarily (e.g. on the date specified in a resolution adopted by the members or by the competent body of the 
corporation) or by decision of a court (e.g. if the company has no statutory body constituting a quorum, if the company is unable to perform its activities 
and fulfil its purpose for a period longer than 1 year or if the company cannot perform its activity because of insurmountable differences among the 
shareholders).

Dissolution with Liquidation

In the course of liquidation following actions have to be performed:

• A corporation decides on its winding-up with liquidation and on appointment of a liquidator (in a form of a notarial record). The powers of the 
statutory body to represent the corporation pass to the liquidator on the day of his appointment. Consequently a motion to register the liquidation 
has to be filed with the Commercial Register. A court fee for such a motion amounts to CZK 2,000;

• Without undue delay the liquidator has to notify all known creditors of the entry into liquidation. He also has to publish the decision on winding up 
the corporation in the Commercial Bulletin at least twice, no less than a fortnight apart, thereby inviting the corporation’s creditors to register their 
claims within a period which may not be shorter than three months;

• The liquidator has to draw up an opening liquidation balance sheet and a list of the corporation’s business assets;
• After completion of all acts in law necessary for executing the liquidation, the liquidation is completed by use of the liquidation balance, by take over 

of the liquidation estate by the creditors or by its refusal;
• Within 30 days of completion of the liquidation, the liquidator shall file an application for deletion of the company from the Commercial Register;
• Upon its deletion from the Commercial Register, the company ceases to exist.

II. 03. Limited Liability Company

The limited liability company is the legal form most frequently used both by Czech entrepreneurs and foreign investors. The Act on Business Corporations 
defines the limited liability company as an entity whose members are jointly and severally liable for its debts up to the amount of the unsettled obligation 
to provide investment contributions, in accordance with the state registered in the Commercial Register at the time the creditor calls on them to perform.

Throughout the entire existence of the company, the founding document of the limited liability company (i.e., the memorandum of association or the 
founder’s deed) has to contain determination of the members, determination of the types of the shares of each member (provided that the founding 
document allows creation of different types of share) and amount of investment contributions corresponding with the shares. Upon foundation 
of the company, the founding documents must also contain the founders’ obligation to provide investment contributions, including the deadline for 
its fulfilment.

Company bodies of a limited liability company:

• General meeting, which is the highest body of the company. If a company has a sole member, no general meeting is held and this member 
exercises the powers of the general meeting.

• One or more executive directors; if the founding document does not stipulate that the executive directors constitute a collective body, each 
executive director is the statutory body of the company. Each of the executive directors, if there are more than one, has the right to represent 
the company independently, unless the founding document stipulates otherwise.

• Supervisory board, which is established if the founding document so requires.

II. 04. Joint Stock Company

A joint stock company is another frequently used legal form in the Czech Republic. The Act on Business Corporations defines the joint stock company as 
a company whose registered stock (capital) is divided into a certain number of shares. The company is liable for a breach of its obligations with its entire 
property. The shareholder is not liable for the company’s obligations (debts).

For the establishment of the joint stock company, adoption of the articles of association is required. In addition to the above stated compulsory 
content of a founding document common both for the limited liability company and the joint stock company the articles of association have to contain, 
throughout the entire existence of the company, also:

• the number of shares, their nominal value, determination if and how many of the shares will be registered in name or made out to a bearer, and/or 
if the shares will be issued as book-entered (paperless) securities or if the shares will be immobilized
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• determination which of the systems of the internal structure of the company has been chosen; the founders may choose either the dualistic system 
(in such a case, the board of directors and the supervisory board are the compulsory bodies of the company) or the monistic system (in such a case 
the statutory director and the administrative board are compulsory bodies of the company). 

Upon foundation of the company, the articles of association of the company must contain also:

• the number of shares subscribed by each founder, by what contribution and for what price, the manner and time-limit for paying up of the issue price
• amount in which the registered capital has to be paid upon the company coming into existence
• an approximate estimate of the setting-up expenses relating to the company’s foundation
• provided that the shares shall be issued as book-entered (paperless) securities, also the numbers of the property accounts to which the shares shall 

be issued. 

Company bodies of a joint stock company:

• General meeting, which is the highest body of the company. If a company has a sole shareholder, no general meeting is held and this member 
exercises the powers of the general meeting.

• Board of directors, which constitutes the statutory body of the company. Any member of the board of directors may represent the company 
towards other parties, unless the articles of association provide otherwise. The board of directors has three members, unless the articles 
of association provide otherwise. Members of the board of directors are elected by the general meeting, unless the articles of association stipulate 
that they are elected by the supervisory board. In the event that the monistic system is chosen, the company does not have a board of directors but 
a statutory director (or other body with similar powers) who is the statutory body of the company.

• Supervisory board, which shall oversee how the board of directors exercises its range of powers and how the business activity of the company 
is conducted. The supervisory board consists of three members, unless the articles of association provide otherwise. In the event that the monistic 
system is chosen, the company does not have a supervisory board but the administrative board (or other body with similar supervisory powers).

II. 05.  Establishment of an Enterprise of a Foreign Person or of a Czech Branch of the Enterprise 
of a Foreign Person

A Czech enterprise of a foreign natural person or legal entity or a Czech branch of the enterprise of such foreign person has to be registered in the 
Commercial Register. However, such enterprise or branch of the enterprise is not a separate legal entity (person).

The enterprise or its branch is represented by its manager, whose name is entered in the Commercial Register. The decision on the establishment 
of an enterprise of a foreign person or a Czech branch of the enterprise of a foreign person has to contain its location (seat) in the Czech Republic, 
the name and residential address of its manager and its object of business activity. The description of conditions under which a corporation can carry 
on a trade or another business activity which is not deemed to be a trade also applies to the enterprise of a foreign person or a Czech branch of the 
enterprise of a foreign person.

 

CZERWENKA & PARTNER v.o.s. 
Minoritská 10, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Milan Chládek (attorney at law), phone: +420 542 422 811, e-mail: chladek@czerwpart.cz, www.czerwpart.cz
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III. Accounting and Auditing

III. 01. Czech Accounting Legislation

Act on Accounting serves as the framework for accounting for all entities (companies) in the Czech Republic. 

All entities having their registered office in the Czech Republic with their shares or bonds being listed on any European-regulated stock exchange 
are required to prepare their financial statements 

(both stand-alone and consolidated) in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”). 
Other entities have the option to prepare their consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS. If they decide to do so, all consolidated entities 
can use IFRS as a basis for preparation of their stand-alone financial statements.

Detailed accounting guidance for other entities is given in decrees on accounting and Czech Accounting Standards, issued by the Ministry of Finance. 
There are separate accounting rules (separate decrees on accounting and a separate set of Czech Accounting Standards) for:

• Entrepreneurs (most companies fall into this category);
• Banks and other regulated financial institutions;
• Insurance companies;
• Selected accounting units (e.g. State organisational units, State funds according to budgeting rules, Regional autonomous units, Contributory 

organisations, health insurance companies and others as listed in the Act §1 par. 3);
• Non-profit organisations, political parties, civil associations, etc.

III. 02. Changes in Czech Accounting Legislation for Entrepreneurs

As at 1 January 2018, there are some changes that need to be mentioned hereto.

Changes that impact the primary financial statements

• There is an obligation to present comparative figures in all the primary financial statements, and therefore also in the cash-flow statement that was 
subject to an exemption from 1 January 2016.

• The company can decide whether to present Prepayments and accrued income and Accruals and deferred income in a separate section of the 
financial statements as until now, or whether these items will be transferred in the category of Receivables and Payables, respectively. The company 
is obliged to decide on such treatment on the balance sheet date at the latest. A combination of both methods is not allowed. 

• In case the company has retained earnings and accumulated losses, its net final balance is to be recognised on one balance sheet row called 
Retained earnings or accumulated losses (+/-).

Criteria for the recognition, measurement and presentation of information relating to derivatives presented in the notes to the financial statements are 
directly linked in decree no. 500/2002 Col. for entrepreneurs to decree no. 501/2012 Col., that is dedicated to banks and other financial institutions, 
valid as at 31 December 2017. The exemption not to recognise the embedded derivatives separately is no longer valid.

If the period of the useful life of goodwill or other developments cannot be estimated, the company decides on the length of such a period as being 
between 60 and 120 months. The estimated useful life together with its reasoning is then described in the notes to the financial statements.

The most significant change for the accounting period starting on 1 January 2017 was the new requirement of the Act on Accounting concerning 
the disclosure of a fairly detailed description of non-financial information in annual reports, consolidated annual reports or in separate reports. 
This requirement only applies to large companies that are subject to public interest and only if their average number of employees as at the balance sheet 
date exceeds 500 employees through the period. The same criteria applies to an accounting unit consolidating a large group of accounting units. The fact 
of whether a company prepared and disclosed non-financial information in the annual report, consolidated annual report or a separate report is subject 
to the auditor’s verification.
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However, completely radical changes became effective from 1 January 2016, so the year 2016 has been quite crucial.

Changes in Act on Accounting:

• Introduction of the definition of public interest entities to include entities listed on a regulated market, banks, credit institutions, insurance 
undertakings and pension funds.

• Introduction of new categorisation of accounting units, depending on whether the entity has as of its balance sheet date exceeded at least 2 of the 
following criteria of total assets, net revenue and average number of employees:
 » Micro accounting unit (< CZK 9,000,000; < CZK 18,000,000; < 10);
 » Small accounting unit (< CZK 100,000,000; < CZK 200,000,000; < 50);
 » Medium-sized accounting unit (< CZK 500,000,000; < CZK 1,000,000,000; < 250);
 » Large accounting unit (exceeds values for medium-sized companies or is a public interest entity or is a selected accounting unit).

Where, in the first accounting period following its inception, an entity applies the legal framework for a unit category that can reasonably be expected 
to meet its terms and conditions as at the balance sheet date of the first financial year. Moving to a different unit category occurs when the entity 
exceeds or ceases to exceed the criteria in two consecutive balance sheet dates of regular financial statements. This transfer is effective from the 
beginning of the immediately following accounting period. The same time test also applies to determining the unit category of groups of entities, 
see below.

• Introduction of new categorisation of groups of accounting units (i.e. groups comprising the consolidating and consolidated entities), depending 
on whether the group has as of its balance sheet date exceeded at least 2 of the following criteria of total assets, net revenue and average number 
of employees (calculated on consolidated basis):
 » Small group (< CZK 100,000,000; < CZK 200,000,000; < 50);
 » Medium-sized group (< CZK 500,000,000; < CZK 1,000,000,000; < 250);
 » Large group (exceeds values for medium sized groups).

• The financial statements of all entities, other than micro and small entities, newly have to include a separate statement of cash flows and statement 
of changes in equity.

• Small and micro entities, whose financial statements are not required to be audited, do not have to publish a statement of profit or loss, if not 
required by another regulation.

• Accounting for events after the balance sheet date has been clarified so that events that have occurred before the balance sheet date but became 
known to the company only after this date have to be adjusted in the financial statements. Events that have occurred subsequent to the balance 
sheet date have to be disclosed in the financial statements, if material.

• Introduction of the definition of material information, the omission or incorrect presentation of which is likely to influence the decision of users of 
the financial statements. Materiality of individual facts is to be considered in conjunction with similar pieces of information.

• Rules for the mandatory verification of financial statements by an auditor: While the criteria for mandatory audit remain the same, there is a change 
in their calculation. Total assets category is newly represented by a net instead of a gross amount. In terms of turnover, implicit change was 
implemented by moving activations items and changes in inventory from own business from revenues to costs. Such calculation used for 2016 will be 
applied also for the previous period. 

• Medium-sized, small and micro entities have been liberated from the need to include non-financial information as part of their annual reports.
• Change of the definition of provisions: Provisions are created to settle liabilities or expenses, the nature of which is clearly defined and for which 

as at balance sheet date it is either probable or certain that they will be incurred, but their amount or timing of their realisation is uncertain. 
Czech Accounting Standard further allow accounting for provisions based on special legal acts, i.e. Provisions Act. It is for example an accounting 
for provision for repairs of assets. 

• Fair value definition has been amended to also include values calculated based on valuation models.

Changes in decree on accounting:

• Information in the notes to the financial statements should be ordered in alignment with the order of individual items in the balance sheet and 
profit or loss.

• The structure of the balance sheet and profit or loss have been changed and a new condensed structure has been introduced (§ 3a and Appendix 
1 to decree on accounting).
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• The extent of information required to be disclosed in the notes to financial statements has been amended based on new categorisation 
of accounting units:
 » large entities proceed in line with §39, §39b and §39c;
 » medium sized entities proceed in line with §39 and §39b;
 » small and micro entities, whose financial statements have to be audited, proceed in line with §39 and §39a;
 » small and micro entities, whose financial statements do not have to be audited, proceed in line with §39.

• Establishment costs can no longer be activated on the balance sheet.
• Extraordinary income and expenses have been abolished. In this relation a new requirement was introduced based on decree no. 500/2002 Col., 

which expects the unit to state in the Notes amount and nature of each revenues and costs item, which is extraordinary based on its nature or 
volume. 

• Definition of expenses eligible for capitalization to inventories has been amended to include all relevant costs incurred in bringing the inventory 
to its present location, i.e. also proportionate share of relevant indirect fixed costs.

• Movement of the activation items and changes in inventory from own business from revenues to costs.
• Introduction of newly required disclosure of items which were compensated in the balance sheet in accordance with the accounting methods.
• Extension of disclosure requirements in the notes to consolidated financial statements (§ 67).
• Introduction of following exceptions from the mandatory disclosures:

 » Information about remuneration of board members, controlling and administration bodies, if such information would lead to a disclosure 
of the remuneration of a specific member of respective body

 » Information about a division of revenues from sale of goods, products, and services by category of activity or market regions (required only 
from large companies), if a disclosure of such information could significantly harm the accounting entity. 

III. 03. Basic Accounting Principles

Apart from exceptions, the substance-over-form concept, as it is known in IFRS, is not applied in the Czech accounting legislation. Other underlying 
principles – going concern, materiality and accrual principle – are consistent with IFRS.

III. 04. Statutory Financial Statements and Annual Reports

Contents of Statutory Financial Statements

Act on Accounting (Article 18) defines the compulsory contents of financial statements. Further rules and requirements are included in decrees 
on accounting. For entrepreneurs this relates to decree No. 500/2002, Articles 3–44, Annex No.1 (the balance sheet) and Annex Nos.2&3 
(the income statement). 

Act on Accounting (Article 14) prescribes specific groups of accounts for a nominal ledger with defined content. Additional rules and requirements in this 
respect are included in decree No. 500/2002, for entrepreneurs Articles 45 and 46, and Annex No. 4.

Publication and Filing Obligations

Companies can adopt a different financial year end, provided that they inform the Financial Office at least three months in advance (Act on Accounting, 
Article 3, paragraph 5). The financial statements must be submitted, together with the income tax return, to the Financial Office within the first three 
months of the next financial year. This deadline is extended to six months for all companies that require an audit or use the services of a registered 
tax adviser. 

Companies that do not require a statutory audit can use condensed notes (Act on Accounting, Article 18, paragraph 4). Additionally, all companies 
that require a statutory audit must prepare an annual report and make it publicly accessible by filing it with the Commercial Register (Act on Accounting, 
Articles 21 and 21a). Statutory Representatives of entities controlled by another party must prepare a written report on relations with related parties. 
This report must be prepared within the period of three months after the end of the reporting period. This report needs to be prepared in accordance with 
Article 82 of Corporations Act. If an entity has an obligation to prepare an annual report, the report on relations needs to be appended to it.
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Decree no. 500/2002 Coll., limits the obligation to publish non-financial information in the annual report of micro-, small- and medium-sized entities. 
However, for the accounting period from 1 January 2017, there is an additional requirement to provide a fairly detailed description of non-financial 
information is established in the annual report, the consolidated annual report or in a separate report. This requirement applies only to large companies 
that are subject to public interest and only if their average number of employees as at the balance sheet date exceeds 500 employees through the period. 
The same criteria applies to an accounting unit consolidating a large group of accounting units. The fact whether the company prepared and disclosed 
non-financial information in the annual report, consolidated annual report or separate report is subject to the auditor’s verification. This information is 
subject to the same rule for disclosure as in the case of annual reports and financial statements.

Moreover, companies with equity or debt instruments traded on public markets are subject to more demanding rules in terms of publishing financial 
information, mainly in annual reports and through filing interim financial information semi-annually. The semi-annual report includes an interim 
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income and certain additional financial information. This report does not need to be 
audited. Extended requirements for these companies are defined in Act on Undertakings on Capital Markets, and the Prague Stock Exchange (“PSE”) 
has its own public filing terms for companies traded on individual markets organised by the PSE. As mentioned above, all companies that have their 
shares or investment bonds listed on any European regulated stock exchange are required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with IFRS 
(Act on Accounting, Article 19a, paragraph 1). The annual reports of listed companies have to disclose the remuneration of the Board of Directors and 
Supervisory Board members and other top executives individually for these three groups.

III. 05. Consolidation

The requirements to produce consolidated financial statements are included in Act on Accounting (Articles 22 – 22b) and consolidation rules are specified 
in Article 23 of Act on Accounting, decree No. 500/2002 (Articles 62–67), and Czech Accounting Standard no. 020 – The Consolidation. The consolidation 
rules are similar to methods required by IFRS in most areas. So-called “consolidation difference” (active or passive) booked in accordance with Czech 
accounting legislation is, unlike goodwill under IFRS, charged/released on a straight line basis over the maximum of 20 years to profit and loss account 
unless there are reasons for a shorter period for it to be charged/released to the profit and loss account.

Exceptions from consolidation were moved from decree no. 500/2002 Col. to the Accounting Act §§ 22a, 22aa from 2016. Companies that are controlling 
parties of a group (except for entities exercising joint control) (“consolidating accounting units”) do not have to prepare consolidated financial 
statements  if they:

• form a small group of entities, unless there is a public interest company within the group, or
• are at the same time a consolidated entity included in a consolidation group of a different consolidating entity, which is a consolidating accounting 

unit or a consolidating foreign company regulated by EU member-state legislation, on condition that this other consolidating accounting unit holds:
 » all shares of the consolidating accounting unit (shares held by directors are disregarded);
 » at least a 90% share of the consolidating accounting unit and the fact that the consolidated financial statements have not been prepared has 

been approved by the remaining shareholders of the consolidating accounting unit;
 » less than a 90% share of the consolidating accounting unit and other shareholders holding at least a 10% share of the entity have not requested 

the preparation of the consolidated financial statements latest 6 months before the balance sheet date;
 » and at the same time, the following conditions must be met:
 » the consolidated financial statements of the other consolidating entity include all entities consolidated by the consolidating accounting unit;
 » the consolidated financial statements and consolidated annual report of the other consolidating entity are audited in compliance with the legal 

regulation of the country which is applicable for the other consolidating entity;
 » this consolidated annual report, consolidated financial statements together with auditor’s opinion are disclosed in compliance with annual 

report disclosure requirements in Czech language;
 » the notes to the financial statements of the consolidating accounting unit include the name and registered office of the other consolidating 

entity, which compiled the consolidated financial statements, and also reasons for not creating a consolidation group.

Act on Accounting (Article 23a) allows companies to prepare their consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS (instead of Czech 
accounting rules). As described above, all companies with listed investment shares have to use IFRS for their consolidated (and stand-alone) 
financial statements (Act on Accounting, Article 23a, paragraph 1). 
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III. 06. Auditing

Auditing is regulated by Act on Auditors from 2009, as amended (93/2009 Coll.). This act, among others, determines the auditor’s obligation to perform 
the audit in compliance with International standards on auditing. Act on Auditors also regulates the position of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech 
Republic, competences of the Council for public supervision over an audit or establishment of an Audit Committee for public interest companies.

Act on Accounting (Article 20) regulates the obligation to have annual financial statements audited by a statutory auditor. The following entities must 
have their financial statements audited:

a. accounting units, where this obligation is required by other regulation;
b. large and medium sized entities;
c. small entities, which are joint-stock companies or trustee funds and have exceeded at least one of the following criteria for the current 

and immediately preceding period:
I. net annual turnover of CZK 80 million;
II. total assets of CZK 40 million;
III. average recalculated number of 50 employees;

d. other small entities that have, for the current and immediately preceding period, met or exceeded at least two of the three criteria stated in letter c) above.

The total assets category is represented by a net instead of a gross amount. In terms of turnover, implicit change was implemented by moving activation 
items and changes in inventory from own business from revenues to costs from 2016.

Annual reports containing audited financial statements must also be audited by an auditor. The auditor has to state in his report whether information 
included within the annual report that relates to information included in the audited financial statements is stated in all material respects consistently 
with the financial statements, and that the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the accounting regulation and does not contain material 
misstatements of fact. As the Corporations Act does not require the report on relations to be specifically reviewed by the auditor, the auditor reviews 
the report on relations only as part of their review of the annual report, as the report on relations forms an integral part of the annual report. In addition, 
the auditor also verifies the consistency of the consolidated annual report with the consolidated financial statements.

The amendment of Act on Accounting from September 2015 also requires the auditor to issue only one report, where they opine on the true and fair 
presentation of the financial statements and the consistency of the annual report with the audited financial statements.

All entities with a compulsory audit must have an auditor approved by its general body. If the entity does not have a general body or its general 
body does not determine the auditor, then the auditor is determined by the entity’s Supervisory Board. The entity can only conclude a contract 
on a compulsory audit if an auditor is appointed as described above, and only after an appointment to this role.

 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, s.r.o. 
Náměstí Svobody 20, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 542 520 111, www.pwc.com/cz

Marek Richter (Partner), phone: +420 542 520 170, e-mail: marek.richter@cz.pwc.com 
Petr Mališ (Director), phone: +420 542 520 210, e-mail: p.malis@cz.pwc.com
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IV. Tax System in the Czech Republic
The current tax system in the Czech Republic was introduced on 1 January 1993, with the exception of VAT legislation and energy taxation. A completely 
new VAT Act, harmonised with EU directives, took effect as at 1 May 2004. The principal taxes in the Czech Republic are corporate income tax, personal 
income tax and value-added tax. Energy taxation was introduced in 2008.

IV. 01. Taxation of Corporations – Corporate Income Tax

Tax residents

Companies with a registered seat or place of management in the Czech Republic are treated as Czech tax residents and are subject to Czech corporate 
income tax on their worldwide income. Permanent establishments and branches of foreign companies are generally taxed on Czech-source income only.

Permanent Establishments of Foreign Companies

A permanent establishment is interpreted as a facility, including e.g., an office, workshop, point of sale, place of extraction of natural resources, etc., 
located in the Czech Republic. A “deemed” permanent establishment is created in the Czech Republic if any commercial, managerial, advisory or other 
services are provided by employees of a foreign entity in the Czech Republic for more than six months in any twelve successive calendar months. This also 
applies to a construction site in the Czech Republic. 

The presence of a person empowered to conclude binding contracts for a foreign entity may give rise to a permanent establishment. The rules may be 
modified by a double-taxation treaty. 

Tax Base and Rates

The tax base is generally the difference between income and expenses, as adjusted for tax purposes. The accrual and matching principle must be followed. 

The corporate tax rate is 19%. A special tax rate of 5 % applies to basic investment funds. The tax rate amounts to 0 % for a fund of a pension company 
or a pension insurance institution.

Tax Period

Generally, the tax year is the calendar year. Tax payers may establish a fiscal year that is different than the calendar year. A fiscal year must be 
12 successive calendar months. To change the fiscal year, the taxpayer must file a notification letter with the relevant Financial Office in advance.

Filing deadlines

Taxpayers must file an annual tax return within three months following the end of the tax period (i.e. by 1 April for a calendar year). A three-month 
extension of the filing deadline is available to taxpayers represented by a registered tax advisor; this three-month extension is automatically granted 
to taxpayers subject to a statutory audit. The filing deadline can be extended to up to 10 months if the tax return includes taxable income which has 
been assessed abroad.

Payment of Tax

The final tax liability is assessed in the annual tax return and must be paid by the same due dates as those for filing the tax return. Advance payments 
are required from all taxpayers except those whose last known tax liability was CZK 30,000 or less. Taxpayers make advance payments either biannually 
or quarterly, depending on the amount of their previous tax liability.
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Tax losses

Assessed tax losses can be carried forward and offset against future profits for a maximum period of five years. Utilisation of tax losses is not possible if there has 
been a significant change in the ownership of the company intending to utilise the tax loss, unless the company satisfies the “same business” test. A significant 
change in the ownership is defined as a change in more than 25% of the registered capital or voting rights or when a shareholder gains decisive control. 

Transfer pricing and the arm’s length principle

Transactions between related parties must be at arm’s length. The tax authorities can adjust the tax base and assess penalties if the taxpayer is not able 
to prove that arm’s-length prices were used in related-party transactions. In addition, for tax non-residents from outside the EU, expenses in excess 
of the arm’s length price are classified as a deemed dividend and taxed accordingly unless a double-taxation treaty disallows such taxation. Starting 
in 2014, companies are obliged to file together with their corporate income tax return a separate disclosure including overview of transactions with 
related parties. 

While there are no specific documents requested for transfer pricing purposes, Czech authorities generally expect that OECD Transfer Pricing Guidelines be met.

Binding rulings

Tax payers can obtain a binding ruling on the application of transfer pricing policy (APA), utilisation of tax losses, determination of costs attributable to 
taxable or non-taxable income, differentiation between technical appreciation and repairs and maintenance, assessment of R&D costs which can be used 
for special deductions from the tax base, differentiation between costs of use of immovable assets by individuals for private and business purposes.

Implementation of the European Anti-Tax Avoidance Directive 

The following rules should enter into force with effect from 1 January 2020:

• Taxation of a controlled foreign company („CFC rules“), which should help to avoid double taxation => A taxpayer of corporate income tax 
who is a tax resident in that country must include in its tax base all passive income or income from artificial transactions of its controlled foreign 
company, if its tax burden is less than the half of the tax that would be paid by the company as a tax resident of the taxpayer’s Member State; and

• Notification about income arriving abroad to tax administrator => applies to the Czech taxpayer, who also makes a payment of income from 
sources in the Czech Republic to the Czech non-resident taxpayer, from which income the tax is withheld at the special tax rate, even if such income 
is exempt from the taxation or double tax treaty stipulates that it is not subject to taxation in the Czech Republic. 

• Taxation when relocating property without changing ownership => refers to the transfer of assets between a company and its permanent 
establishment, the transfer of a business or operating activity carried out by a permanent establishment to a permanent establishment situated in 
another country or the transfer of assets in the event of a change in the tax residency of the company; and

• Solution of hybrid mismatches, i.e. the consequences of different legal qualifications, where the tax-legal nature of an entity or instrument 
is qualified differently in the countries concerned.
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Thin capitalisation rules

Until 2018 the thin capital debt/equity ratio was 4:1 (6:1 for insurance companies and banks), i.e., financial costs on the portion of a related-party 
loan above four times the recipient company’s equity were tax non-deductible for the recipient. Thin capitalisation rules also applied to so-called 
“back-to-back” credits and loans (credits and loans between related parties provided through an unrelated intermediary). When paid outside the EU, 
excess interest is reclassified to dividends and taxed accordingly, unless a tax treaty disallows such taxation. 

From 1 January 2020, in connection with the implementation of the European ATAD guidelines, the profit or the difference between the revenues and 
costs of corporate tax taxpayer will be increased by the amount corresponding to the positive difference between the excess loaned costs and the limit 
on the acceptability of the excess loaned costs, when the profit or difference is higher than:

a. 30 % of EBITDA, or
b. CZK 80,000,000

Non-deductible loaned costs can be transferred to other tax periods. The rule will apply to both loans from affiliated and non-affiliated persons. 

Country-by-Country reporting

As an action within the international fight against tax evasion, the Czech Republic introduced a new notification obligation in the form of 
„Country-by-Country reporting“(“CbCR”) entered into force in September 2017. The Act No. 164/2013 Coll., establishes the obligation for Czech entities 
which are part of a multinational group reporting annual consolidated revenues of over EUR 750 million to submit a Notification to Specialized Tax Office. 
In the Notification, it is necessary to specify the ultimate parent entity of this group and further the entity, which will submit the CbCR for this group.

The Czech ultimate parent entities of these types of multinational groups will need to submit the so-called Country-by-Country Report, a report 
containing data arranged by country, for this group.

Withholding Tax

A final withholding tax of 15 % is levied, for example, on:

• Dividends and other profit distributions
• Decrease in share capital, dissolution of reserve fund or a similar fund, previously increased from profit
• Liquidation surplus payments
• 
An exemption from withholding tax is available under rules similar to those in the Parent/Subsidiary Directive for dividends paid to qualifying tax 
residents of the EU, Switzerland, Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein under the condition that the recipient holds at least a 10 % share in its subsidiary 
for at least 12 months and the respective companies have a required legal form. 

A final withholding tax is further levied, for example, on the following payments when made by Czech companies to foreign parties: 

• Interest (15 %)
• Royalties (15 %)
• Management fees (15 %)
• Director’s fees (15 %)
• Financial lease payments (5 %)

Interest and royalty payments between directly related enterprises (more than 25% for more than 24 months), which are tax residents in the EU, 
Switzerland, Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein are exempt from tax. Exemptions based on the Interest and Royalty Directive have to be approved 
by the relevant tax authority in advance. 
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The withholding tax rate can also be reduced in accordance with the relevant double tax treaty. 

Payment of income subject to withholding tax to those countries where no double tax treaty or no treaty on the exchange of information was concluded 
is subject to a 35 % withholding tax. 

Participation exemption

The conditions for exemption from taxation of capital gains from the sale of shares in a qualifying subsidiary are the same as to the conditions for tax 
exemption of dividends, and the exemption applies to the transfer of shares in a qualifying subsidiary that is a tax resident in an EU member state, 
Norway, Iceland, Liechtenstein or a double taxation treaty country.

Direct expenses related to holdings in a subsidiary are not tax-deductible. This includes e.g. interest on loans used in relation to the acquisition 
of a subsidiary and the share acquisition costs. The indirect holding costs are explicitly set at 5 % of received dividends unless lower actual costs can 
be proven by the tax payer.

Investment incentives

Investment incentives can now be obtained for 10 years in the form of a tax holiday. The permissible public subsidy rate in all Czech regions except 
the City of Prague is 25%. In 2019, an amendment to the Investment Incentives Act will enter into force, which will introduce more strict conditions 
for obtaining investment incentives. Investment incentives will be more focused on projects with higher added value and projects linked to the creation 
of more positions for skilled workers.

Further information on investment incentives and other forms of support is available at the website of CzechInvest (Czech Investment and Business 
Development Agency) - http://www.czechinvest.org. 

Double deduction of research and development costs

Under certain conditions R&D costs may be used to reduce the tax base twice – once as tax deductible costs and a second time as an R&D allowance. 
Unutilised R&D allowance can be carried forward for up to three immediately consecutive years subject to specific conditions. The R&D allowance is 
increased from 100% to 110% on incremental R&D costs. 

Deductions to support professional education

Companies providing professional education to pupils and students can utilise a deduction in the amount of CZK 200 per pupil/student per each hour. 
If assets are acquired for professional education, the tax base can be reduced twice: first by utilising tax depreciation and second up to 110 % of the 
acquisition value in the year of acquisition. 

Accelerated depreciation in the first year

Czech tax law allows acceleration of the depreciation of some tangible assets in the year in which the assets are put into use, provided the taxpayer 
is the first owner of the asset and other conditions are met. The first-year depreciation can be increased up to 20 % depending on the type of asset 
and the taxpayer’s business activity.

Mergers

Provisions incorporating the Merger Directive allow Czech companies to carry out tax-neutral contributions of businesses or its parts, share exchanges, 
mergers and de-mergers or spin-offs. In addition, subsequent to the contribution of a business or its part, merger or de-merger, the tax losses of the 
contributing entity or the one ceasing to exist as a result of the merger are transferred to the legal successor company to the extent they were generated 
by the same activities. The Czech company must be a joint-stock or limited liability company.
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IV. 02. Taxation of Individuals – Personal Income Tax

Residency

An individual is considered resident for tax purposes in the Czech Republic if either of the following conditions is met: 

• The individual possesses a permanent home in the Czech Republic. The possession of a long-term visa does not itself make an individual a tax 
resident in the Czech Republic. 

• The individual is present in the Czech Republic for 183 or more days in a calendar year. This includes the days of arrival and departure. 

If a foreign national is considered resident for tax purposes in the Czech Republic and at the same time he/she is a tax resident of a country with which 
the Czech Republic has concluded a double-taxation treaty, the determination of tax residency under the treaty applies (subject to Czech interpretation 
of the treaty). 

Czech tax residents are taxable on their worldwide income, subject to restrictions by the applicable double taxation treaty (if any). Czech tax non-
residents are generally taxable only on their Czech-source income. 

Taxable income

Taxable income includes the following: 

• Income from dependent services (employment).
• Income from independent services (entrepreneurial income).
• Income from capital (interest, dividends, etc.)
• Rental income.
• Other income.

Employment income: Income from dependent services includes income and related remuneration from employment. Taxable remuneration from 
employment includes all monetary and non-monetary remuneration and certain in-kind benefits. The tax base of employment income is “super gross 
salary”, which includes gross salary and the statutory social security and health insurance contributions paid by the employer. In the case of income from 
foreign resources, the “super gross salary” includes the deemed statutory social and health insurance contributions according to Czech law (i.e. 34 % 
from the gross income subject to cap). 

Income from independent services: This type of income includes income of entrepreneurs, independent consultants and other self-employed 
individuals. Expenditures required to “generate, assure and maintain” the taxpayer’s income are deductible when calculating taxable income. Deductible 
expenses are the same as those permitted under corporate income tax rules. Alternatively, a lump-sum deduction may be applied. 

The lump-sum deduction depends on the type of activities and ranges from 30 % to 80 % of taxable income, and all the lump-sum categories are capped. 
From the year 2018 the cap that can be applied amounts to CZK 1,000,000, taxpayers can also apply the tax relief for children and wife without own 
income. Social security and health insurance contributions paid by the entrepreneur are tax non-deductible.

Income from capital: Income from capital, i.e., dividends, and other yields from securities, limited liability companies or limited partnership interest 
and profit shares from silent partnerships are taxable income. In many circumstances the entity paying the income to the individual withholds Czech tax 
(generally 15 %), and this constitutes the final tax liability on the income.

Rental income from movable and immovable property: Taxable income is the difference between rental income and related tax-deductible 
expenses or a flat 30 % deduction from rental income with the lump-sum deduction capped at CZK 300,000. Czech-source rental income from movable 
property earned by individuals who are in the Czech Republic for less than 183 days in a calendar year is taxable at a special rate of 15 %, unless the 
relevant double-taxation treaty provides otherwise. 
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Other income: “Other income” includes income from the sale of the individual’s own real estate, moveable property, shares, participation, securities, 
occasional income, prizes in sporting or advertising competitions, and prizes from lotteries. Exemptions are available for gains that arise from the 
disposal of assets which have not been used for commercial purposes and that have been held for a certain minimum period. For shares, the minimal 
required holding period to receive a tax exemption on capital gains is generally five years. For shares, the minimal required holding period to receive 
a tax exemption on capital gains is generally five years, but in some cases this period is reduced to 3 years. 

Income received free of charge such as gifts, heritage, falls also to other income. These kinds of income were subject to special taxes in the past. 

Tax base

The overall tax base is calculated by adding together all (taxable) sources of income. In order to calculate the overall tax base, annual income from 
employment (net of exemptions and deductions) is added to other income, e.g., profits from entrepreneurial activities, capital income, and rental income. 
The overall tax base does not include Czech-source income from which tax is withheld at source, e.g., dividends, interest and share of profits. Losses 
arising from one source of income are offset against income from any other source, with the exception of employment income. In other words, it is not 
possible to offset losses arising from capital, entrepreneurial or rental sources against employment income. Various deductible items and tax relief might 
be utilised in a tax return. 

Tax rate

There is a flat personal income tax rate of 15 %. Employment income and income from independent services exceeding CZK 119,916 per month is subject 
to solidary surcharge amounting to 7 %. 

Tax Period

The tax period is generally the calendar year. Entrepreneurs may choose a different fiscal year in the same way as corporations.

Tax returns

The filing deadline of the tax return for personal income tax is the same as those for the corporate income tax return.

If an individual has no income other than employment income or a director’s fee drawn from one Czech payer at a time, or from different Czech payers 
in subsequent intervals, and he is not claiming certain special deductions, he is not required to file an annual tax return. Tax payers whose annual 
employment income exceeds CZK 1,438,992 (48 times the average monthly salary) are obliged to file a personal income tax return.

Payment of tax

The tax liability is assessed in the annual tax return and must be paid by the same due dates as those for filing the tax return. If a tax refund is claimed 
in the tax return, the Financial Office must make the refund within 30 days after the return is filed, unless there is to be a formal audit of the tax return.

Tax on employment income is normally deducted by way of withholding by the employer. For other income, a taxpayer must make advance payments 
on the estimated tax liability for the tax year. The frequency and percentage of advance payments depend on the taxable income reported in the last filed 
tax return.

Tax registration of foreign nationals

All foreign nationals assigned to the Czech Republic by a foreign employer with a service permanent establishment in the Czech Republic must register 
for income tax purposes and file annual income tax returns. 
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Social Security and Health Insurance Contributions

Social Security and Health Insurance Contributions are obligatory for an individual employed by a Czech company. Furthermore, a employee working 
in the Czech Republic for a foreign employer is subject to social security and health insurance contributions in the Czech Republic if EU regulations or 
a bilateral social security treaty apply (unless the assignee is an A1 holder or the holder of a Certificate of Coverage). 

If EU regulations do not apply and no bilateral social security treaty exists, the obligation to contribute to Czech social security and health insurance 
schemes has to be reviewed individually.

Health Insurance: Health Insurance covers both health and medical care and is administered independent of the state budget. An individual can choose 
a licensed health insurance company to which the health insurance contributions will be paid. If an individual is not covered by the mandatory Czech 
health insurance scheme, he may contribute voluntarily on a commercial basis.

Social Security: Social Security contributions provide funding for three separate funds: pensions, unemployment and sickness. 

Calculation of the contributions: The mandatory contributions of employees are calculated from the individual‘s remuneration, which is similar to the 
payroll tax base.

Cap: There is a capped annual base for the social security payments of employees and private entrepreneurs. The cap for social security contributions for 
2018 amounts to 48 times the average monthly salary, i.e. CZK 1,438,992. The cap for health insurance contributions was cancelled. 

Rates:

Mandatory social security contribution rates

• Employee: 6.5 %
• Employer: 25 %
• Private entrepreneur: 29.2* %

Mandatory health insurance contribution rates

• Employee: 4.5 %
• Employer: 9 %
• Private entrepreneur: 13.5 %
 

* A private entrepreneur has the option of contributing sickness insurance in the amount of 2.3 %. 

IV. 03. Value-added Tax

Tax rates

The standard VAT rate is 21 % and applies to most goods and services. The first reduced rate of 15 % applies only to certain services and essential goods 
and a second reduced rate of 10 % applies to medications, books and baby food.

Taxpayers may ask the Ministry of Finance for a binding ruling in respect of the correct application of the tax rate. 



37SURVIVAL KIT to South Moravia – 2019

Tax period

The tax period for value-added tax is one calendar month.  Depending on the amount of turnover reached in the previous calendar year, a tax payer may, 
generally after two years from registration, decide to apply a calendar quarter as the tax period.

Registration and tax returns

VAT registration is mandatory for a Czech entity if its turnover of supplies with the place of supply in the Czech Republic exceeds CZK 1,000,000 (approx. 
EUR 38,000) within any twelve consecutive calendar months. If a Czech entity acquires goods from another EU member state exceeding CZK 326,000 
(approx. EUR 12,500) or purchases services from a non-established entity with a place of supply in the Czech Republic, it becomes identified for Czech 
VAT purposes. 

Besides an entity with a local establishment, a foreign entity or entity from another EU member state can be obliged to register for VAT in the Czech 
Republic as well. 

VAT returns must be completed and submitted electronically together with payment of the related VAT within 25 days of the end of the tax period. 
Identified persons and VAT payers not established in the Czech Republic are only obliged to submit the VAT Return for tax periods where taxable 
transactions were effected. If an excess VAT deduction occurs, the Financial Office should refund this overpayment within 30 days of the VAT return 
being filed. If the VAT return is filed electronically, the Financial Office generally refunds the overpayment within 15 days. This period can be extended if 
the Financial Office initiates a tax audit. In practice, the Financial Office mostly conducts tax audits of newly established companies, companies seated 
outside the Czech Republic or in cases of unusually large VAT overpayment occurred.

EC sales lists for goods sold or transferred to another EU member state, triangulation supplies, or services provided to other EU countries must be 
submitted electronically for each calendar month (or in case of services provided by a quarterly VAT payer, for each calendar quarter) within 25 days of 
the end of the given month.

The Czech Republic also allows some recovery of VAT incurred prior to VAT registration. Careful structuring of an inward investment venture will ensure 
that VAT paid by the business is recovered to the greatest extent possible and as rapidly as possible.

Group VAT registration 

A group of related companies can register as a single VAT entity. Group registration enables the reduction of the administrative burden for some 
companies and may improve cash flow.

Recovery of Czech VAT 

There are procedures to allow recovery of Czech VAT incurred by foreign entities or entities from other EU member states for business purposes. There is 
naturally some restriction in recovery, but it generally follows the same principles applied to any other entity operating in the country. The Czech Republic 
will only provide VAT refunds to foreign entities if they are established and VAT-registered in other EU member states or established in a country with which 
a reciprocal refund arrangement is concluded (i.e., currently: Macedonia, Norway and Switzerland). Correct administration has to be followed in order to 
receive the VAT refund: application for a refund for the calendar year in which the supply was effected can be made by an entity established in another EU 
member state no later than by 30 September of the following year through the electronic portal of that EU member state. Entities established in a third 
country with a reciprocal refund arrangement have to file a written application in Czech at the Czech Tax Office, by 30 June of the following year. 
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VAT on goods and services from abroad

VAT on goods imported from countries outside the EU is accounted for by the importer using the import VAT deferral system, the same VAT rate, as 
the one that would apply to a domestic supply of those goods is valid. Goods purchased from another EU member state are subject to acquisition VAT 
accounting. In both cases it means that the person importing/acquiring the goods is obliged to self-charge the output VAT through its own VAT return 
and, at the same time, is entitled to claim the input VAT through the same VAT return subject to general deduction rules.

Under certain conditions, the sale or transfer of goods to the Czech Republic triggers an obligation on the part of a foreign company to register for VAT 
purposes in the Czech Republic.

Services provided to a person eligible to pay tax are generally considered effected where the recipient of the service has his seat, establishment or place 
of business and are subject to the reverse charge mechanism in the hand of the recipient. Beginning on 1 January 2010, the place of supply of specific 
services is determined in compliance with the provisions of Council Directive 2008/8/EC.

VAT Control Statement

Selected entities (VAT payers) are obliged to provide data related to realised or input taxable supplies with a local place of supply (including advance 
payments) and data related to taxable supplies under special a scheme for investment gold. These data are reported in the VAT Control Statement which 
is additional evidence to the VAT return.

The VAT Control Statement has to be submitted electronically in the prescribed form within 25 days of the end of the given month (only natural persons 
follow their deadline for submitting VAT return).

Registration of sales

Starting from December 2016 registration of sales has come into effect. The new system should increase efficiency in controlling and preventing 
fraudulent actions relating to sales where cash and similar payment methods are used. Selected VAT payers (i.e. entities that pay or are obliged to 
pay income tax in the Czech Republic) will be obliged to electronically submit their sales records to the Tax Administration and issue receipts to their 
customers. 

The system of sales registration is being introduced gradually:

• Since 1 December 2016 - persons providing catering and accommodation services;
• Since 1 March 2017 - persons performing retail and wholesale business;
• Since 1 July 2019 at earliest - other business activities with exception of those included in the next phase;
• Since 1 July 2019 at earliest - selected crafts and business activities (e.g. husbandry, transport, freelancers).

VAT on supplies between related parties

The VAT base for supplies of goods or services to related parties (under specific conditions) is a common market price.
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Local reverse charge

A local reverse charge mechanism applies to supplies of investment gold, immovable properties in particular cases specified in Act on VAT, scrap, 
construction and assembly work classified under codes 41 to 43 of CZ-CPA and provision of workers for these purposes and to delivery of goods provided 
as security in the execution of such a security.

The VAT liability for such supplies is transferred to the recipient of the supply, who may at the same time claim this input VAT at the same VAT return 
subject to general input VAT deduction rules. 

The local reverse charge is temporarily extended in 2017 also to supplies of selected goods as emission permits, precious metals, mobile phones, 
integrated circuits, portable automatic data processing machines, game consoles, cereals and technical crops, delivery of gas and electricity to a trader 
specified in Section 7a Subsection 2 of Act on VAT, delivery of gas and electricity certificates, provision of telecommunication services. This is applicable 
only if the total amount of the tax base exceeds CZK 100,000.

Mini One Stop Shop

From 2015, all telecommunication, broadcasting and electronically supplied services will be taxable at the place where the customer is established, has his 
permanent address or usually resides (this rule is now also valid for providers from the EU). To avoid unnecessary administration, a provider with its seat 
or establishment in the Czech Republic can, subject to other conditions, register with the so-called Mini One Stop Shop scheme in the Czech Republic. This 
scheme would then allow them to submit a special single quarterly VAT return and pay tax from all selected services provided within the EU at one place.

Unreliable payer, unreliable person 

Starting from 1 July 2017, apart from the institute of unreliable payer, a new institute in the form of unreliable person is introduced. If a person that is not 
a payer seriously violates their obligations relating to tax administration, the tax administrator shall decide that such a payer is an unreliable person. If 
an unreliable person becomes a payer, they shall also become an unreliable payer at the same time. If an unreliable person or unreliable payer becomes 
a group member, such a group shall also become an unreliable payer at the same time. If the registration of an unreliable payer that is a group is 
cancelled, the members of such a group shall become unreliable payers on the day following the day when such group ceased to be a payer. 

Liability for unpaid VAT

VAT can be exacted from the recipient of the supply, if the price does not comply with the arm’s length principle or if the supplier is identified as an 
unreliable payer in a public registry run by the Financial Office. Liability for unpaid VAT also applies if the price for the supply is paid to a foreign bank 
account or, for supplies exceeding CZK 540,000 to a Czech bank account not stated in a public registry run by the Financial Office. The joint liability also 
applies if a supplier of fuel is not stated as a fuel distributor in a special registry.

Liability of recipients of taxable supplies if the consideration for such transaction is provided in virtual currency 

Effective from 1 July 2017, the amendment of Act on VAT broadens the range of situations when the recipient of taxable supply shall be reliable for any 
unpaid tax if the consideration for such transaction is provided in virtual currency. 

Contact persons: 
Tomáš Urbášek, PricewaterhouseCoopers Česká republika, s.r.o., náměstí Svobody 20, 602 00 Brno, tel.: +(420)  724 369 349, e-mail: tomas.urbasek@pwc.com  
Petr Mašek, PricewaterhouseCoopers Česká republika, s.r.o., náměstí Svobody 20, 602 00 Brno, tel.: +(420) 724 369 356, e-mail: petr.masek@pwc.com 
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Breakdown of double-taxation treaties

The Czech Republic has concluded the following double-taxation treaties with respect to taxes on income and property:

Tab. 15: Breakdown of double taxation treaties

Country Comes into force Effective date Collection of Laws

Albania 10 September 1996 1 January 1997 270/1996 Coll.

Armenia 15 July 2009 1 January 2010 86/2009 Coll. (int.tr.)

Australia 27 November 1995
CR: 1 January 1996
A: 1 July 1996, WHT 1 January 1996

5/1996 Coll.

Austria 22 March 2007 1 January 2008
31/2007 Coll., correction 39/2007 Coll.
Protocol 100/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Azerbaijan 16 June.2006 1 January 2007 74/2006 Coll.

Kingdom of Bahrain 10 April 2012 1 January 2013 59/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Barbados 6 June 2012 1 January 2013 69/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Belarus 15 January 1998 1 January 1999
31/1998 Coll.
Protocol 99/2011 Coll. (int.tr.)

Belgium 24 July 2000 1 January 2001
95/2000 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol ratif. 17 March 2014

Bosnia and Herzegovina 12 May 2010 1 January 2011 58/2010 Coll. (int.tr.)

Brazil 14 November 1990 1 January 1991 200/1991 Coll.

Bulgaria 2 July 1999 1 January 2000 203/1999 Coll.

Canada 28 May 2002 1 January 2003 83/2002 Coll.

Chile 21 December 2016 1 January 2017 5/2017 Coll. (int.tr.)

China 4 May 2011 1 January 2012
65/2011 Coll. (int.tr.)
Does not apply to Taiwan

Colombia 6 May 2015 1 January 2016 39/2015 Coll. (int.tr.)

Croatia 28 December 1999 1 January 2000
42/2000 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol 82/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Cyprus 26 November 2009 1 January 2010 120/2009 Coll.

Denmark 17 December 2012 1 January 2013 14/2013 Coll. (int.tr.)

Egypt 4 October 1995 1 January 1996 283/1995 Coll. 

Estonia 26 May 1995 1 January 1996 184/1995 Coll. 

Ethiopia 30 May 2008 1 January 2009 54/2008 Coll.

Finland 12 December 1995 1 January 1996 43/1996 Coll.

France 1 July 2005 1 January 2006 79/2005 Coll.

Georgia 4 May 2007 1 January 2008 40/2007 Coll.

Germany 17 November 1983 1 January 1984 18/1984 Coll.

Greece 23 May 1989 1 January 1990 98/1989 Coll.

Hong Kong 24 January 2012
CR: 1 January 2013
HK: 1 April 2013

49/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Hungary 27 December 1994 1 January 1995 22/1995 Coll.

Iceland 28 December 2000 1 January 2001 11/2001 Coll. (int.tr.).

India 27 September 1999
CR: 1 January 2000
I: 1 April 2000

301/1999 Coll.

Indonesia 26 January 1996 1 January 1997 67/1996 Coll.

Iran 4 August 2016 1 January 2017 47/2016 Coll. (int.tr.)

Ireland 21 April 1996
CR: 1 January 1997
I: 6 April 1997 / 1 January 1997

163/1996 Coll.

Israel 23 December 1994 1 January 1995 21/1995 Coll.
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Country Comes into force Effective date Collection of Laws

Italy 26 June 1984 1 January 1985 17/1985 Coll.

Japan 25 November 1978 1 January 1979 46/1979 Coll.

Jordan 7 November 2007 1 January 2008 88/2007 Coll.

Kazakhstan 29 October 1999 1 January 2000 3/2000 Coll. (int.tr.)

Korea 3 March 1995 1 January 1995, WHT 3 March 1995 124/1995 Coll.

The Korean People's Democratic Republic 7 December 2005 1 January 2006 3/2006 Coll. (int.tr.)

Kuwait 3 March 2004 1 January 2005 48/2004 Coll. (int.tr.)

Latvia 22 May 1995 1 January 1996 170/1995 Coll.

Lebanon 24 January 2000 1 January 2001 30/2000 Coll. (int.tr.)

Lichtenstein 22 December 2015 1 January 2016 8/2016 Coll. (int.tr.)

Lithuania 8 August 1995 1 January 1996 230/1995 Coll.

Luxembourg 31 July 2014 1 January 2015 51/2014 Coll. (int.tr.)

Macedonia 17 June 2002 1 January 2003 88/2002 Coll. (int.tr.)

Malaysia 9 March 1998
CR: 1 January 1999
M: 1 January 2000

71/1998 Coll.

Malta 6 June 1997 1 January 1998 164/1997 Coll.

Mexico 27 December 2002 1 January 2003 7/2003 Coll. (int.tr.)

Moldova 26 April 2000 1 January 2001
88/2000 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol 97/2005 Coll. (int.tr.)

Mongolia 22 June 1998 1 January 1999 18/1999 Coll.

Morocco 18 July 2006 1 January 2007 83/2006 Coll.

Netherlands 5 November 1974 1 January 1972
138/1974 Coll. (int.tr.) 
Protocol 112/1997 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol 58/2013 Coll. (int.tr.)

New Zealand 29 August 2008 1 January 2009 75/2008 Coll. (int.tr.)

Nigeria 2 December 1990 1 January 1991 339/1991 Coll., correction 371/1999 Coll. (int.tr.)

Norway 9 September 2005 1 January 2006 121/2005 Coll. 

Pakistan 30 October 2015
CZ: 1 January 2016
PAK: 1 July 2016

58/2015 Coll. (int.tr.)

Panama 25 February 2013 1 January 2014 91/2013 Coll. (int.tr.)

Philippines 23 September 2003 1 January 2004 132/2003 Coll. (int.tr.)

Poland 11 June 2012 1 January 2013 102/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Portugal 1 October 1997 1 January 1998 275/1997 Coll.

Romania 11 August 1994 1 January 1995 180/1994 Coll.

Russia 18 July 1997 1 January 1998 278/1997 Coll., Protocol 56/2009 Coll. (int.tr.)

Saudi Arabia 1 May 2013 1 January 2013 42/2013 Coll. (int.tr.)

Serbia and Montenegro 27 June 2005 1 January 2006
88/2005 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol 26/2011 Coll. (int.tr)

Singapore 21 August 1998
CR: 1 January 1999
S: 1 January 2000

224/1998 Coll., Protocol ratif. 24 June 2014

Slovakia 14 July 2003 1 January 2004 100/2003 Coll. (int.tr.)

Slovenia 28 April 1998 1 January 1999 214/1998 Coll.

South Africa 3 December 1997 1 March 1998 7/1998 Coll.

Spain 5 June 1981 1 January 1982 23/1982 Coll.

Sri Lanka 19 June 1979 1 January 1979 132/1979 Coll.

Sweden 8 October 1980
1 January 1981
Capital : 1 January 1982

9/1981 Coll.

Switzerland 23 October 1996 1 January 1996, WHT: 1 December 1996 281/1996 Coll., Protocol 99/2013 Coll. (int.tr.)

Syria 12 November 2009 1 January 2010 115/2009 Coll.
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Country Comes into force Effective date Collection of Laws

Tajikistan 19 October 2007 1 January 2008 89/2007 Coll.

Thailand 14 August 1995 1 January 1996 229/1995 Coll.

Tunisia 25 October 1991 1 January 1992 419/1992 Coll.

Turkey 16 December 2003 1 January 2004 19/2004 Coll. (int.tr.)

Turkmenistan 18 March 2016 
Additional legislative process needed 
leading to the entry into force 
of the Treaty

Ukraine 20 April 1999 1 January 2000 103/1999 Coll., Protocol ratif. 24 June 2014

United Arab Emirates 9 August 1997 1 January 1998
276/1997 Coll.
Information 122/2004 Coll. (int.tr.)

United Kingdom 20 December 1991
CR : 1 January 1992
UK : 6 April 1992

89/1992 Coll.

United States 23 December 1993 1 January 1993, WHT : 1 February 1994 32/1994 Coll., correction 370/1999 Coll. (int.tr.)

Uzbekistan 15 January 2001 1 January 2002
28/2001 Coll. (int.tr.)
Protocol 92/2012 Coll. (int.tr.)

Venezuela 12 November 1997 1 January 1998 6/1998 Coll.

Vietnam 3 February 1998 1 January 1999 108/1998 Coll.

Yugoslavia (Bosnia and Herzegovina) 17 April 1983 1 January 1984 99/1983 Coll. (int.tr.)

The Czech Republic also negotiated agreements on the exchanging of tax information with Andorra, Aruba, the Bahamas, Belize, Bermuda, the British 
Virgin Islands, the Cayman Islands, the Cook Islands, Guernsey, Isle of Man, Jersey, Monaco and San Marino. Treaties with  Ghana, Cameroon, Kosovo, 
Oman, Senegal and St. Maarten are currently in the ratification process. Negotiations with Botswana, Gabon, Iraq, Kyrgyzstan, Mauritius, Seychelles and 
Taiwan are ongoing. 
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V. Employment and Labour Regulations

V. 01. Employment Contract, Commencement and Termination of Employment

An employment relationship is established on the basis of conclusion of an employment contract or by appointment. Prior to conclusion of the 
employment contract, the employer is obliged to acquaint the given natural person with the rights and obligations ensuing for the latter from the 
employment contract and with the working conditions and conditions of remuneration under which the natural person shall perform the work. In cases 
stipulated by a special legal regulation, the employer is obliged to ensure that the given natural person undergoes an initial medical examination prior 
to concluding the employment contract. If a special legal regulation or the articles of association require that a certain working position be occupied 
on the basis of an election made by the competent body, the election shall be considered to be a prerequisite preceding the conclusion of an employment 
contract. An employment relationship shall be established by appointment only in exceptional cases.

In the employment contract, the employer is obliged to agree with the employee on the type of work for which the employee is hired, place 
or places of performance of work and the date of commencement of work. If the employment contract does not stipulate the regular workplace 
for the purposes of travel allowances, the place of performance of work stipulated in the employment contract shall be deemed to be the regular 
workplace. However, if the place of performance of work is stipulated beyond the scope of a single municipality, the municipality where the employee’s 
business trips most often begin shall be considered to be the regular workplace.

The employer is obliged to conclude the employment contract in writing. However, the lack of written form does not make the contract void. 
The employer is obliged to submit one counterpart of the written employment contract to the employee. An employment relationship is established 
on the date that was agreed as the date of commencement of work in the employment contract. If the employee fails to commence work on the agreed 
date without being prevented from its commencement by an impediment to work, or if s/he fails to notify the employer of such an impediment within 
one week, the employer may withdraw from the employment contract.

An employment relationship shall exist for an indefinite term unless its specific term has been explicitly arranged. An employment relationship 
between the same parties for a fixed term may be arranged for a term not exceeding three years from the date of commencement of the employment 
relationship, and the employment relationship may not be renegotiated or extended more than twice; this also applies to each additional employment 
relationship for a fixed term agreed within the mentioned period by and between the same parties. After expiry of three years of termination of the 
preceding employment relationship for a fixed term, that employment relationship for a fixed term is further disregarded.

This does not apply if serious operational reasons or reasons arising from the special nature of the work exist on the employer’s part due to which the 
employer cannot be fairly required to propose establishment of an employment contract for an indefinite term to the employee. The above reasons 
shall be specified in more detail and other details of the procedure provided in a written agreement of the employer with the trade union or an internal 
regulation of the employer where there is no trade union.

Where a trial period has been arranged, this period may not be longer than 3 consecutive months from the date of commencement of the employment 
relationship or 6 months from the same date for a senior employee. It must be arranged by the date which was agreed as the date of commencement 
of work. A trial period must be arranged in writing, otherwise it is not valid. A trial period may not be further extended with the exception of extension 
by the period of impediments to work as a result of which the employee does not perform work during the trial period. A trial period may not be 
arranged  for a period longer than one half of the arranged term of the employment relationship.

If the employment contract does not stipulate the details of the rights and obligations following from the employment relationship, the employer is 
obliged to provide these details in writing to the employee, at the latest within one month of commencement of the employment relationship. The 
above-mentioned information must include especially the name of the employee and the name and registered office (address) of the employer, a 
detailed specification of the type and place of performance of work, length of holiday to which the employee is entitled, information on notice periods 
and also information on collective agreements that provide for the employee’s working conditions, and specification of the parties to these collective 
agreements, information on salary and the manner of remuneration (including the date of payment of the salary and place and manner of its payment) 
and determination of the weekly working hours and their distribution.

An employment relationship may be terminated by agreement, notice, summary dismissal by the employer or by termination within 
the trial period. An employment relationship concluded for a fixed term shall end upon expiry of the agreed term.
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If an employer and employee agree on termination of the employment relationship, the employment relationship shall end on the agreed date. 
The reasons for termination of the employment relationship must be specified in the agreement on termination of the employment relationship (it must 
be made in writing) if so required by the employee. If the employment relationship is terminated by agreement due to winding-up or relocation of the 
employer’s company or any part thereof, or due to redundancy of the employee, the employee is entitled to severance pay equal to at least

• the amount of his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for less than 1 year
• twice his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for at least 1 year and less than 2 years
• three times his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for at least 2 years
• the sum of three times his/her average monthly earnings and the above amounts if the employment relationship is terminated at a time when the 

employee is subject to a procedure in the account of working hours where it is agreed in the collective agreement that overtime hours worked in the 
account of working hours in a compensatory period which does not exceed 52 weeks may be included, to the maximum extent of 120 hours, in the 
working hours in the next compensatory period. 

If the employment relationship is terminated by agreement because the employee may not further perform the current work due to an accident at work, 
occupational disease or threat of such a disease based on a medical report or if the maximum permissible exposure of the employee has been reached, 
the employee is entitled to severance pay in the amount of at least twelve times the average earnings (however, if the employer is relieved from liability 
for an accident at work or occupational disease, the employee is not entitled to the severance pay).

An employment relationship can be terminated by notice by the employer or by the employee. The notice need to be in writing. The reasons for notice 
cannot be changed later.

An employer may terminate an employment relationship with an employee solely on the following grounds:

• where the employer’s company or part thereof is wound up
• where the employer’s company or part thereof is relocated
• where the employee becomes redundant
• if the employee may not further perform the current work due to an accident at work, occupational disease or threat of such a disease based on 

a medical report or if the maximum permissible exposure of the employee has been reached, the employee is entitled to severance pay in the amount 
of at least twelve times the average earnings (however, if the employer is relieved from liability for an accident at work or occupational disease, 
the employee is not entitled to the severance pay)

• if the employee is unfit to further perform the current work in the long term given his/her state of health
• if the employee does not meet the preconditions stipulated by the legal regulations for the performance of the agreed work or if the employee does 

not meet the requirements for the proper performance of this work without the employer being at fault
• if grounds exist on the employee’s part for which the employer could immediately terminate the employment relationship with that employee, 

or on the grounds of serious breach of working duty following from the legal regulations applicable to the work performed by the employee or 
on the grounds of a recurring minor breach of a duty

• if the employee breaches in an especially gross manner the obligation to comply with the set regime of an insured person who is temporarily 
unfit to work 

The notice period must be the same for the employer and the employee and must equal at least two months. The notice period commences on the first 
day of the calendar month following the delivery of the notice.

An employer may not give notice to an employee especially at a time when the employee has been found temporarily unfit to work, in the 
performance of a military exercise, at a time when the employee is fully released for the discharge of a public office in the long term, at a time when 
a female employee is pregnant or when a female employee is on maternity leave or when a female or male employee is on parental leave, or at a time 
when an employee working at night is found temporarily unfit to perform night work based on a medical report. The prohibition of giving notice does not 
apply to notice given to an employee due to an organisational change caused by winding-up or relocation of the employer’s company or any part thereof, 
or on the grounds on which the employer may terminate the employment relationship by summary dismissal, as well as on grounds of other breach 
of duties following from labour-law regulations pertaining to the work performed.

An employee may give notice to an employer on any grounds or without stating the grounds.

An employer may terminate an employment relationship by summary dismissal only exceptionally, only if the employee has been validly 
convicted of an intentional criminal offence or has breached an obligation following from the legal regulations pertaining to the work performed 
in an especially gross manner.
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An employee may immediately terminate his/her employment if, according to a medical statement, continuance of the work might seriously threaten 
his/her health and the employer has not offered him/her another suitable job within 15 days of submission of such a statement or the employer has failed 
to pay salary or compensation for salary or any part thereof within 15 days of expiry of the payment date. An employee is entitled to compensation for 
salary equal to the length of the period of notice.

Both an employer and an employee may terminate the employment relationship during the trial period in writing on any grounds or without stating the 
grounds. Termination of an employment relationship in the trial period must be made in writing. The employment relationship terminates on the date 
of delivery of the termination unless a later date is indicated therein.

An employment relationship of a foreigner or a stateless natural person ends, unless it has already ended in some other manner, on the 
date when his residence in the territory of the Czech Republic is to terminate pursuant to an enforceable decision on revoking a residence permit, on 
the date of legal force of a judgement imposing a sentence of banishment from the Czech Republic on this person, or on expiry of the term for which 
an employment permit, employment card or a long-term residence permit for the purpose of performance of an employment requiring a high level 
of qualification was issued.

If an employee fails to commence work on the agreed date without being prevented from its commencement by an impediment to work, or if the 
employer is not notified of such an impediment within one week, the employer may withdraw from the employment contract.

V. 02. Working Hours

The working hours equal 40 hours per week and depend on the nature of the workplace and age of employees. It is stipulated that the length of working 
hours of employees

• working underground in mining for coal, ores and industrial minerals, in mining construction and at mining workplaces of geological prospecting, 
equal 37.5 hours per week,

• with a three-shift and continuous work regime, 37.5 hours per week;
• with a two-shift work regime, 38.75 hours per week,
• for employees under 18 years of age, the duration of a shift on individual days may not exceed 8 hours and, in several basic employment 

relationships, the duration of the set weekly working hours may not exceed, in aggregate, 40 hours per week.

Overtime Work

An employer may order an employee to work overtime only on the basis of serious operational reasons. Overtime work ordered from an employee 
may not exceed eight hours in individual weeks and 150 hours in a calendar year. Beyond the said scope, overtime work may only be 
performed exceptionally and only with consent of the employee. The maximum limit for overtime work which may not be exceeded equals 8 hours per 
week and a total of 416 hours per calendar year. After deducting the possible “ordered overtime work” of 150 hours per week, the remaining maximum 
equals 266 hours of overtime work, the performance of which must be agreed with the employee.

The number of hours of maximum permissible overtime work during a year does not include overtime work in respect of which the employee was 
provided with compensatory time off.

Annual Leave

The extent of annual leave equals at least 4 weeks in a calendar year. The employees of employers who do not perform business activities are entitled 
to a leave of five weeks. The employer is obliged to specify the time of taking leave based on the written schedule of taking leave with the prior consent 
of the relevant trade union and works council so that the employee can take the leave, as a rule, at once and by the end of the calendar year. Where 
leave is provided to an employee in several parts, at least one part must equal a minimum of two weeks unless the employee agrees with the employer 
otherwise. The employer is obliged to notify the employee of the specified time of taking leave at least 14 days in advance unless the employer agrees 
with the employee on shorter notice.

For the period of taking leave, an employee shall be entitled to compensation for salary in the amount of his/her average monthly earnings.

The employer is obliged to specify the taking of leave for the employee so that the leave is taken in the calendar year in which the entitlement to it arose 
unless the employer is prevented from doing so by impediments to work on the employee’s part or urgent operational reasons. If the employee could not 
take annual leave in the calendar year due to urgent operational reasons or because the employer failed to specify its taking, or due to impediments to 
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work, the employer is obliged to specify it so that the leave is ended not later than by the end of the following calendar year. If the annual leave is not 
specified by the employer for the employee by 30 June of the next calendar year, the employee is also entitled to specify the time of taking the leave. 
The employee is obliged to notify the employer of the taking of leave at least 14 days in advance unless the employee agrees with the employer on 
a different period of notice. If the employee fails to take the leave by the end of the next calendar year, the entitlement to the leave shall expire.

An employee shall be entitled to compensation for salary or pay for untaken leave only if his/her employment relationship ends.

V. 03. Collective Redundancy

Collective redundancy means the ending of employment relationships within a period of 30 calendar days based on notices given by the employer due 
to winding-up or relocation of the employer’s company or any part thereof or due to redundancy of an employee, in relation to at least:

a. 10 employees for an employer employing from 20 to 100 employees, or
b. 10 % of the employees, for an employer employing from 101 to 300 employees, or
c. 30 employees, for an employer employing more than 300 employees. 

Prior to giving notice to the individual employees, the employer is obliged to notify the trade union or council of employees of its intention 
in writing not later than 30 days in advance.

The employer is also obliged to inform the competent labour office of the reasons for these measures, the total number of employees, the number and 
professional structure of the employees with whom the collective redundancy is to be concerned, the period during which the collective redundancy will 
take place, the proposed criteria for the selection of employees made redundant and severance pay and any other rights the employees subject to the 
collective redundancy may have.

The employer is obliged to demonstrably deliver to the competent labour office a written report on its decision on the collective redundancy and on the 
results of negotiations with the trade union or the council of employees. In the report, the employer is obliged to specify the total number of employees 
and the number and professional composition of those employees with whom the collective redundancy is concerned. One counterpart of the report shall 
be delivered by the employer to the trade union or council of employees. The employment relationship of an employee shall end by notice not sooner than 
upon expiry of 30 days from delivery of the employer’s written report to the competent labour office.

Severance Pay

If the employment relationship is terminated with an employee by notice of termination given by the employer by reason of termination or relocation of 
the employer’s company or any part thereof, or due to redundancy of the employee or by agreement for the same reasons, the employee is entitled, upon 
termination of the employment relationship, to severance pay equal to at least

• the amount of his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for less than 1 year
• twice his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for at least 1 year and less than 2 years
• three times his/her average monthly earnings if his/her employment relationship with the employer lasted for at least 2 years
• the sum of three times his/her average monthly earnings and the above amounts if the employment relationship is terminated at a time when the 

employee is subject to a procedure in the account of working hours where it is agreed in the collective agreement that overtime hours worked in the 
account of working hours in a compensatory period which does not exceed 52 weeks may be included, to the maximum extent of 120 hours, in the 
working hours in the next compensatory period. 

An employee whose employment relationship is terminated by notice given on grounds of an accident at work, occupational disease or threat of such 
a diseases or reaching the maximum permissible exposure or by agreement on the same grounds is entitled to severance pay equal to at least twelve 
times the average earnings. (If the employer is relieved from its liability for an accident at work or occupational disease in full or in part, the employee 
is not entitled to severance pay). The collective agreement or an internal regulation may stipulate that the severance pay may be increased by additional 
multiples of average earnings and may stipulate other conditions under which an employee is entitled to an increased severance pay. The severance pay is 
provided after termination of the employment relationship on the next payment date unless the parties agree on some other date; however, an employee 
whose rights and obligations under labour-law relationships passed to another employer in organisational changes is not entitled to severance pay.
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V. 04. Salary and Salary Grades

An employee is entitled to a salary for the performed work, which may not be less than the minimum salary. Salary for these purposes does not include 
salary for overtime work, extra pay for work in a working environment that is unfavourable and unhealthy, work at night and work on holidays and work 
at night and on Sunday.

Salary or pay shall be payable after the performance of work, not later than in the calendar month following after the month in which the employee 
became entitled to salary or any component thereof. The employer shall determine a regular date of payment of salary within the above period. Salary 
shall be paid during the working hours at the workplace unless some other time and place of payment have been agreed. When drawing up the monthly 
account of salary, the employer is obliged to submit to the employee a written document containing information on the individual components of the 
salary and on the performed deductions.

Minimum Salary

The minimum possible salary was proclaimed in a Regulation of the Government of the Czech Republic and published in the Collection of Laws (currently 
in Government Regulation No. 567/2006 Coll., hereinafter the Regulation). As of 1 January 2019, the minimum salary for employees remunerated by 
a monthly salary equals CZK 13,350 (in a weekly working time of 40 hours) and CZK 79.80 per hour for employees remunerated by hourly salary. Lowest 
Levels of Guaranteed Salary

Lowest levels of guaranteed salary

The lowest levels of guaranteed salary for the set 40 working hours per week are structured into 8 groups by complexity, responsibility and difficulty 
of the work performed, as follows:

Group 1: CZK 79.80 per hour (CZK 13,350 per month) 
Group 2: CZK 88.10 per hour (CZK 17,740 per month) 
Group 3: CZK 97.30 per hour (CZK 16,280 per month) 
Group 4: CZK 107.40 per hour (CZK 17,970 per month) 
Group 5: CZK 118.60 per hour (CZK 19,850 per month) 
Group 6: CZK 130.90 per hour (CZK 21,900 per month) 
Group 7: CZK 144.50 per hour (CZK 24,180 per month) 
Group 8: CZK 159.60 per hour (CZK 26,700 per month)

Where the set weekly working time is other than 40 hours, the hourly rates of the minimum salary and the lowest possible levels 
of guaranteed salary shall be increased in proportion to the reduction in the weekly working time. For an employee who has agreed on 
a shorter working time or who has not worked for the relevant working hours corresponding to the set weekly working hours in a calendar month, 
the rate of the minimum salary and the lowest level of guaranteed salary shall be decreased in proportion to the hours worked.

Amount of Extra Pay for Work in an Unfavourable Working Environment

The amount of extra pay for work in an unfavourable working environment equals at least 10% of the basic rate of minimum salary stipulated in Section 
2 for every unfavourable element under Section 2.

V. 05. Public Holidays, School Year

Public holidays and other holidays are proclaimed by law in the Czech Republic. The following days are declared to be public holidays:

1 January  Restoration of the Independent Czech State, Establishment of the Czech Republic in 1993 
8 May   Victory Day, End of World War II 
5 July   Saints Cyril and Methodius Day 
6 July   Jan Hus Day 
28 September Czech Statehood Day, St. Wenceslas Day 
28 October  Independent Czechoslovak State Day 
17 November Struggle for Freedom and Democracy Day
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In labour-law terms, the following “other holidays” have the same meaning:

1 January  New Year 
19 April 2019 Good Friday 
22 April 2019 Easter Monday 
1 May   Labour Day 
24 December Christmas Eve 
25 December Christmas Day 
26 December St. Stephen’s Day

Public holidays and other holidays are non-working days.

Holidays in the school year 2018/2019 (in elementary schools, secondary schools, elementary art schools and conservatories)

Beginning of the school year:   3 September 2018 
End of the first half-year:   31 January 2019 
End of the second half-year:   28 June 2019 
Autumn holidays:    29 to 30 October 2018 
Beginning of Christmas holidays:   22 December 2018 
End of Christmas holidays:   2 January 2019 
Half-year holidays:    1 February 2019 
Spring holidays:    11 February – 17 February 2019 (spring holidays depend on where the school is located; the above dates  
      apply to the districts of Blansko, Brno-city, Brno-suburb, Břeclav, Domažlice, Hodonín, Karviná, Louny,   
      Prague 1-5, Tachov, Vyškov and Znojmo) 
Easter holidays:    18 to 19 April 2019 
Beginning of the main holidays:   29 June 2019 
End of the main holidays:   1 September 2019 
Beginning of the school year 2019/2020:  2 September 2019

V. 06. Social Security and Health Insurance

Premiums for social security comprise pension insurance premiums, sickness insurance premiums and contribution to the state employment policy.

The amount of insurance premiums shall be determined as a percentage rate of the “assessment base” and equals:

• on the employer’s part 25 % of the assessment base (of which 2.3 % for sickness insurance, 21.5 % for pension insurance, 1.2 % for the state 
employment policy);

• for an employee 6.5 % of the assessment base;
• for a self-employed person

 » 29.2 % of the assessment base (of which 28 % for pension insurance, 1.2 % for the state employment policy) for a self-employed person 
participating in pension insurance,

 » 2.3 % of the assessment base for a self-employed person who participates in sickness insurance;
• for a person who voluntarily participates in pension insurance 28 % of the assessment base;
• 2.3 % of the assessment base for a foreign employee. 

The payer of premiums is obliged to calculate the relevant amount of premiums and pay the amount to the account of the district social 
security administration.
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Premiums for Public Health Insurance

• 9 % of the assessment base for an employer (paid by the employer for an employee).
• 4.5 % of the assessment base for the employee (paid by the employee in the form of deduction from salary made by the employer).
• 13.5 % of the assessment base for a self-employed person.
• 13.5 % of the minimum salary for a person who has no income from employment or independent gainful activities (self-employed persons) during 

the entire calendar month and premiums are not paid on their behalf by the State. 

The payer of premiums is obliged to calculate the relevant amount of premiums and pay the amount to the account of the competent health 
insurance company.

V. 07. Some Other Important Provisions

• Employers with more than 25 full-time employees are obliged to employ persons with disabilities in such a number as to satisfy the mandatory ratio 
of these persons in the employer’s regular staff. The mandatory ratio is 4%. 
This obligation can be fulfilled by employers employing or purchasing products or services from organisations employing more than 50% 
employees with disabilities, by placing orders with these employers, or by taking products or services from self-employed persons with disabilities 
not employing any employees; or by placing orders with these persons; or by payment to the state budget or by a combination of the above methods. 
Employers who employ more than 50% of employees with disabilities and self-employed disabled persons may, for the purposes of fulfilment of the 
above obligation, provide their products and services or fulfil the placed orders in a calendar year only up to an amount corresponding to 36 times 
the average monthly salary in the national economy in the first to third quarter of the preceding calendar year for every recalculated employee with 
a disability employed in the previous calendar year.

• The amount of the payment to the state budget for every person with a disability whom the employer should employ equals 2.5 times the average 
monthly salary in the national economy for the first to third quarter of the calendar year in which the obligation to meet the mandatory ratio of 
persons with disabilities arose. The amount of average salary for the first to third quarter is proclaimed by the Ministry on the basis of data from 
the Czech Statistical Office through a communication published in the Collection of Laws. The mandatory payment for each missing employee with 
a disability was CZK 71,902,50 in 2017.

Vacancy Reporting

• An employer may notify the competent regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic of vacancies and their characteristics. Vacancies 
means newly created or vacant jobs for which the employer intends to obtain employees or intends to fill them with temporarily assigned employees 
of an employment agency. The employer may make this notification also to the locally competent municipal trade licence department.

• A regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic keeps records of vacancies which include the identification details of the employer, 
basic characteristics of the vacancy, i.e. specification of the type of work and place of work, qualifications and requirements set for the position, 
basic information about work and salary conditions and information whether the vacancy is reserved or suitable for a disabled person. The records 
also contain information on whether the employment is for an indefinite or fixed term and its anticipated duration. The records may also contain, in 
particular, information on accommodation possibilities, travelling to work and other information that the employer requires to be published.

• A regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic does not offer and publish offers of employment that are of a discriminatory nature or 
at variance with labour-law and other legal regulations or unethical. It also does not offer and publish vacancies at an employer on whom a penalty 
has been imposed for breach of an obligation following from labour-law regulations or for breach of an obligation following from the special legal 
regulations which are inspected by the State Authority for Labour Inspection or the Area Labour Inspectorate, for a period of 3 months from the date 
when the decision on imposition of the penalty comes into legal force.

Monitoring of Compliance with Labour-Law Regulations

Monitoring in the area of employment is performed by the State Authority for Labour Inspection, area labour inspectorates, customs offices, the General 
Directorate of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic and regional branches of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic.

The State Authority for Labour Inspection or the area labour inspectorates inspect compliance with the labour-law regulations (i.e. legal 
regulations on employment and legal regulations on the protection of employees in case of the employer’s insolvency) at employers, legal entities and 
natural persons who perform activities under the Employment Act and at natural persons who are provided with services under the Employment Act. 
They also inspect whether and to what extent an employer assigns work to its employees for whom the employer receives a contribution supporting 
employment of persons with disabilities and with whom a place other than the employer’s workplace was arranged as the place of work in the 
employment contract.
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They also inspect compliance with the obligations following from the legal regulations, under which employees, the competent trade union body or 
council of employees or the representative for occupational safety and health protection incur rights or obligations in labour-law relations, including 
legal regulations on employees’ remuneration, compensation for salary or pay and reimbursement of employees’ expenses. Furthermore, they inspect 
compliance with the obligations following from the legal regulations stipulating the working hours and periods of rest, legal regulations for ensuring 
occupational safety, legal regulations for ensuring safety of operation of technical equipment with an increased degree of danger to life and health 
and legal regulations on the safety of operation of reserved technical equipment, legal regulations on the employment of female employees, juvenile 
employees, employees taking care of children, as well as employees who have demonstrated that they predominantly by themselves, in the long term, 
take care of a natural person who is considered to be a person dependent on the assistance of another natural person at level II (medium dependency), 
level III (high dependency) or level IV (full dependency) pursuant to a special legal regulation and pursuant to legal regulations on the performance 
of artistic, cultural, sporting and advertising activities by children. They also inspect compliance with the obligations following from the legal regulation 
stipulating the obligation to make a public invitation or perform a selection procedure for filling the position of officer or for filling the position of senior 
officer of a territorial self-governing unit; they also inspect whether the public invitation was made or selection procedure performed and how. 
In addition they also inspect fulfilment of obligations arising from regulations governing childcare in groups of children.

The State Authority for Labour Inspection and the area labour inspectorates also inspect compliance with collective agreements in their parts that 
regulate individual labour-law entitlements of employees following from legal regulations and internal regulations. They also inspect internal regulations 
if they give rise to employee rights.

The State Authority for Labour Inspection and the area labour inspectorates also perform inspections in cases stipulated by the special legal regulation.

The customs authorities inspect whether foreigners perform their work for legal entities or private individuals on the basis of employment and whether 
they do so in accordance with an issued work permit, an employee card, a card of an internally relocated employee, a residence permit for an internally 
relocated employee issued by another member state of the European Union, or a blue card, if these are required.

They also inspect whether employers fulfil their obligation to inform the relevant regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic when 
employment is taken up by a citizen from the European Union, his/her family member, a family member of a Czech citizen, a foreigner who is not required 
to hold a work permit or a foreigner who is required to hold a work permit, an employment card, a card of an internally relocated employee or a blue 
card; and whether they fulfil their informing duty if a factual situation occurs during the employment due to which a foreigner no longer needs any 
of the above permits.

Last but not least, they inspect whether employers fulfil their obligation to inform the relevant regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic 
if a foreigner who had been granted a work permit, an employment card or a blue card, did not take up the employment or terminated the employment 
before the expiry of the period for which the permit authorisation had been issued.

The General Directorate of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic inspects compliance with agreements on the provision of material assistance 
for the creation of new jobs and material assistance for re-training or training and performance of targeted nationwide schemes.

A regional branch of the Labour Office of the Czech Republic inspects the amount of the average net monthly earnings, within the scope required 
for determining the amount of unemployment benefits and re-training support.

 

Labour Office of the Czech Republic, Regional branch in Brno, Rosice contact office 
Tyršova 75, 665 01 Rosice u Brna, Czech Republic 
JUDr. Daniela Kubišová, e-mail: daniela.kubisova@bo.mpsv.cz

Employment and Labour Regulations50
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VI. Visa and Integration after Arrival

VI. 01. Visa

Visa is a permit to enter, stay, and leave the territory of the Czech Republic or the Schengen area, provided that the terms and conditions stipulated by 
the Czech law and/or the European Community laws have been met. All applicants must meet all the required conditions to be granted a visa. Every 
alien requiring a visa travelling with an individual travel document must possess his/her own visa.

Visa is issued into a passport (travel document) of a foreigner in a form of a visa sticker. Every applicant, incl. a child, is issued an individual visa sticker. 
If the child does not have an own passport and is inscribed in the parent´s passport, two visa stickers are issued into the passport of the parent.

List of Schengen Area Members States

The Schengen Area consists of the following countries (as to 1. 11. 2017):

• Austria
• Belgium
• Czech Republic
• Denmark (excluding Greenland 

and the Faroe Islands)
• Estonia
• Finland
• France (excluding overseas departments 

and collectivities)
• Germany (excluding Heligoland)
• Greece

• Hungary
• Iceland
• Italy
• Latvia
• Liechtenstein
• Lithuania
• Luxembourg
• Malta
• The Netherlands (excluding Aruba, Curacao, 

St. Martin, Bonaire, Saba and St. Eustatius)
• Norway (excluding Spitsbergen)

• Poland
• Portugal (including the Azores and Madeira)
• Slovakia
• Slovenia
• Spain (including Balearic Islands 

and Canary Islands)
• Sweden
• Switzerland

Types of Visa

Forms of stay 
on the territory 

of the Czech Republic 
for third-country nationals Departure order

Custody for a foreign child

Permanent residence permit

Long-term stays (over 3 months)

Long-term visa:
• visa for over 90 days (type D)
• diplomatic or special visa

Short-term visas:
• unified (‘Schengen’) visa (type C)
• airport (transit) visa (type A)
• visa with limited territorial validity

Long-term residence permit

Short-term stays (up to 3 months) With a visa

Without a visa

Permanent 
Residence

Temporary 
Residence
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Short-term Visa

Are issued for a stay in the Czech Republic / Schengen Area for up to 90 days. Are issued as:

1. Airport transit visa (letter “A“ visa)
 » airport transit visa can be issued for one or two entries

2. Short-term visa for stay up to 90 days (letter “C“ visa) for the purpose of:
 » tourism
 » visit (invitation)
 » culture
 » sport
 » study
 » health
 » employment and training
 » scientific research
 » business journey
 » official/political purpose

Long-term Visa

Issued for a stay in the Czech Republic for over 90 days. Authorize the holder to travel and stay in other Schengen Area States on a short-term basis 
(up to 90 days within any 180 days). Issued as:

1. Visa for a stay over 90 days (letter “D” visa) for the purpose of:
 » visit (invitation)
 » entrepreneurship
 » study, internship
 » scientific research
 » family
 » sport
 » culture
 » health
 » other

2. Long-term visa for the purpose of collecting a long-term residence permit (letter “D” visa) for the purpose of
 » employment – employee card and blue card
 » unification of family
 » study
 » scientific research
 » stay of a resident of another EU Member State

3. Long-term visa for the purpose of collecting a permanent residence permit (letter “D” visa)

Employee Card

What is an employee card?

A new type of single permit, which authorises its holder to stay in the territory of the Czech Republic for the purpose of employment on a long-term 
basis and to perform work in the job, for which the card was issued. It replaces the visa for a stay of over 90 days for the purpose of employment, the 
permit for long-term residence for the purpose of employment and the Green Card, which will no longer be issued. Blue Cards will continue to be issued. 
An employee card is a plastic card with biometric features.
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A foreign national who has an employee card is entitled:

• to reside in the territory of the CR and, at the same time,
• to work in the job for which the employee card was issued, or
• to work in the job for which the Department for Asylum and Migration Policy of the Ministry of the Interior granted consent (in connection with 

changing employer, changing job, taking up employment with an additional employer or in an additional job). 

For how long a period of time is an employee card issued?

For the duration of the employment but not for longer than 2 years, with the option of repeated extension of validity.

For whom is an employee card intended?

For foreign nationals from any country in the world. But not for

• the citizens of the Member States of the EU/EEA and Switzerland and
• their family members from among the citizens of other countries who are holders of a residence card of a family member of a citizen of the EU/EEA 

and Switzerland or who applied for issuance of such a card. 

For what types of employment is the card intended?

For all types of employment regardless of the level of required professional qualifications.

Where can I apply for an employee card?

You must file the written application in person at your local embassy of the Czech Republic. If you are already staying in the territory of the Czech 
Republic on a visa for a stay of over 90 days or on a permit for long-term residence for some other purpose, you can file the application with an office 
of the Ministry of the Interior.

When will I receive my employee card?

If you file an application for an employee card abroad and your application is granted, the embassy will issue a visa for a stay of over 90 days for 
the purpose of collecting an employee card for you. Before the visa is entered, you will be asked to submit a travel medical insurance certificate 
valid for the period from the date of entry into the territory of the Czech Republic to the date on which you are to acquire public medical insurance 
in the Czech Republic.

After your arrival to the Czech Republic, visit an office of the Ministry of the Interior for the purpose of providing the biometric data necessary for 
production of an employee card not later than within 3 working days. After acquisition of the biometric data, a certificate confirming compliance 
with the conditions for issue of an employee card will be issued to you.

Can I, as a holder of an employee card, chase employers or change to a different job?

Yes but you must file a written application for consent with such a change with an office of the Ministry of the Interior and your application 
must be approved.
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Special Cases – Employment Permit

A foreign national who wishes to stay in the CR on a long-term basis for the purpose of employment with an employee card must apply with the relevant 
regional office of the Employment Agency of the CR for an employment permit only if,

• he/she has been posted by his foreign employer based outside the territory of the EU/EEA or Switzerland to perform work in the CR (to perform tasks 
here arising from a contract entered into between this employer and a Czech legal entity or a Czech natural person), or

• he/she is a seasonal employee performing work dependent on seasons of the year, employed for a period not exceeding months in a calendar year; or
• he/she works as an intern in an employment relationship with an employer in the Czech Republic, or
• an international agreement so provides in his/her case. 

In these cases, a foreign national will apply for an employment permit for a job which is not included in the central register of job vacancies that can 
be filled with holders of employee cards.

An employee card can be issued for a foreign national for the period of validity of his/her employment permit. Renewal of the validity of his/her 
employment permit is a condition for possible renewal of the validity of his/her employee card.

After his/her arrival to the Czech Republic, a foreign national can start performing a job, if he/she has a valid employment permit and a visa for a stay 
of over 90 days for the purpose of collecting an employee card.

In case you are partner, member or statutory body of a business company or a cooperative and you perform tasks arising from the type 
of activity of this legal entity you will still need employment permit to perform this activity. However it is not possible to issue the employee card 
for the purpose of performance of these activities or even to prolong the validity of employee card.

If you were issued employee card for this purpose in the past you can find yourself other job different from performance of activities in a range 
of the business activities of your company or cooperative and apply for the consent of the Ministry of Interior with the change of employer or job position. 
To get employee card or a consent of the Ministry of Interior with the change of job position for the performance of tasks arising from the business 
activity of the company or cooperative is possible only when you are not member of such cooperative, partner or member of statutory body of 
such company.

Special Cases – Free Access to the Labour Market of the Czech Republic

The right of free access to the labour market of the CR is held, for example, by a foreign national who

• acquired secondary or tertiary vocational education or tertiary vocational education at a conservatory or university education in the Czech Republic, 
or who

• wishes to be employed in the Czech Republic as a pedagogice employee or an academic employee of a university or as a cleric of a church 
or a religious organisation registered in the Czech Republic, or who

• has been posted to the Czech Republic by his/her foreign employer based in some other Member State of the EU/EEA or Switzerland 
as part of provision of services, or for whom

• a valid international agreement so provides. 

An employee card can be issued for a foreign national for the duration of contractual employment according to the submitted documents  
(such as a contract of employment) but not for longer than 2 years, with the option of repeated extensit of its validity.

Where can I get more information on an employee card?

• On the website of the Ministry of the Interior – www.mvcr.cz/cizinci
• Or on the information line of the Ministry of the Interior – phone: +420 974 832 421, +420 974 832 418 (Monday–Friday; 8.00 a.m.–3.00 p.m.), 

e-mail: pobyty@mvcr.cz
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What is a blue card

An EU Blue Card is a new residential status designed for a long-term stay involving the performance of a highly skilled job (§ 42i of the Act on the 
Residence of Foreign Nationals). An EU Blue Card entitles a foreign national to stay and perform a job, i.e. the foreign national does not need a separate 
work permit.

Duly completed university education or higher vocational education, the duration of which was at least 3 years, is deemed to be a high level of skills.

An application for an EU Blue Card is to be filed by a foreign national at a Czech embassy as well as, in selected cases, at a Ministry of the Interior office 
inside the Czech Republic, that is if you are already in the CR on a long-term visa or long-term residency permit, or are a holder of a Blue Card issued by 
another EU state and you apply within 1 month of entering the CR. You must file your application personally.

Notice: Physicians, dentists, and pharmacists who have not acquired professional qualification in another EU member state and wish to practice 
their medical profession in the Czech Republic must successfully complete an approbation exam The same requirement also applies to the practice 
of a non-medical healthcare profession.

 

The South Moravian Regional Centre to Support the Integration of Foreigners 
Mezírka 1, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 533 433 540, e-mail: cizincijmk@kr-jihomoravsky.cz, www.cizincijmk.cz

Ministry of the Interior of the Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 974 832 421, +420 974 832 418, e-mail: pobyty@mvcr.cz, www.mvcr.cz/cizinci 
Monday–Friday: 8:00 a.m. – 15:00 a.m.
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VI. 02. List of States Whose Citizens Are Required to Have Visa

1. List of States whose citizens are required to possess visa to travel to the Schengen Area – based on Regulation (EC) No 539/2001, as amended. 

4  Travel documents from the Federal Republic of Somalia are not recognised by the Czech Republic for the purposes of residence and entry 
to the territory of the Czech Republic.

• Afghanistan
• Algeria
• Angola
• Armenia
• Azerbaijan
• Bahrain
• Bangladesh
• Belarus
• Belize
• Benin
• Bhutan
• Bolivia
• Botswana
• Burkina Faso
• Burundi
• Cambodia
• Cameron
• Cape Verde
• Central African Republic
• Chad
• China
• Comoros
• Congo-Brazzaville
• Congo, Democratic Republic
• Cuba
• Djibouti

• Dominican Republic
• DPR Korea
• Ecuador
• Egypt
• Equatorial Guinea
• Eritrea
• Ethiopia
• Fiji
• Gabon
• Gambia
• Ghana
• Guyana
• Guinea
• Guinea-Bissau
• Haiti
• India
• Indonesia
• Iran
• Iraq
• Ivory Coast
• Jamaica
• Jordan
• Kazakhstan
• Kenya
• Kosovo
• Kuwait

• Kyrgyzstan
• Laos
• Lebanon
• Lesotho
• Liberia
• Libya
• Madagascar
• Malawi
• Maldives
• Mali
• Mauritania
• Mongolia
• Morocco
• Mozambique
• Myanmar
• Namibia
• Nepal
• Niger
• Nigeria
• Oman
• Pakistan
• Papua-New Guinea
• Philippines
• Qatar
• Russia
• Rwanda

• Sao Tome and Principe
• Saudi Arabia
• Senegal
• Sierra Leone
• Somalia4

• South Africa
• South Sudan
• Sri Lanka
• Sudan
• Surinam
• Swaziland
• Syria
• Tajikistan
• Tanzania
• Thailand
• Togo
• Tunisia
• Turkey
• Turkmenistan
• Uganda
• Uzbekistan
• Vietnam
• Yemen
• Zambia
• Zimbabwe

(as to 1. 11. 2018)

2. Territorial and autonomous units which are not recognized as states by at least one of the Schengen Area State: 

• Palestinian Authority 

3. Kosovo as defined by the United Nations Security Council Resolution 1244 of 10 June 1999. 

4. As for the holders of diplomatic and service passports, the visa regime may be of different nature. In this case we kindly recommend you to contact 
the competent Embassy/Consulate General of the Czech Republic. 

Please be aware of the fact that the travel document of the foreigner must have been issued within last ten years and must be valid 
at least three months after the departure from the Schengen area.
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VI. 03. Visapoint

On 31 October 2017, the VISAPOINT system terminated its operation. Starting on 1 November 2017, registrations of appointments to submit an 
application for a visa/residence permit will not be executed using the VISAPOINT system anymore.

A new system of registration to submit an application for a visa/residence permit has been officially started on 1 December. Detail information is on the 
Embassy/ Consulate General website.

VI. 04. Integration after Arrival

FAQ

Do I have to report to the Foreigners’ Police (also translated as Alien Police) upon arrival in the Czech Republic? 
(Both EU and third-country nationals)

Foreigners are obliged to report their place of residence in the Czech Republic to the police (Alien Police Inspectorate, Cejl 62b in Brno) within 3 (non-EU 
nationals) or 30 (EU nationals) working days of arrival; this obligation does not apply to foreigners younger than 15, members of embassy or consulate 
staff of a foreign country or of an international governmental organization accredited in the Czech Republic, members of their family registered by the 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, or foreigners for whom the Ministry has arranged accommodation. 

The obligation to report one’s place of residence to the police does not apply to foreigners who fulfilled this obligation with the entity providing them 
accommodation. The reporting duty of a foreigner is deemed to have been fulfilled once the foreigner has filled out their “guest card”. Ask at the 
reception desk of your hotel/hostel/dormitory whether they have registered you with the Alien Police.

After registration you only need to contact the Alien Police in matters concerning short-term visas up to 90 days and invitation letters for guests 
visiting from third countries. All the rest of the residence agenda (long-term visa, certificate of temporary residence, temporary, long-term and 
permanent residence permits) is processed with the Ministry of the Interior (MOI) - Department for Asylum and Migration Policy - Odbor Azylové 
a Migrační politiky (OAMP), Hněvkovského 65 in Brno. This includes reporting any change in residence status, family status, residence address and such 
within the usual 30 days.

How can I apply for or extend my long-term visa or residence permit? (third-country nationals)

Foreigners who need a visa or permit to stay in the Czech Republic have to first specify a purpose for their residence in the CR and apply for the 
appropriate visa at some Czech embassy. The purpose of stay might be studies, employment, business, research, family reunification, culture or other. 
The Czech Embassy is only authorized to receive an application for a long-term visa; the competent authority for processing it is the MOI. During the 
procedure the Czech Embassy communicates with the applicant, invites him/her for a hearing, calls on him/her to pick up the visa, and so on.

Following the long-term visa, after some time spent in the CR, application for a long-term residence permit (or its extension) is filed at the relevant 
MOI office on the territory of the Czech Republic (Hněvkovského 65 in Brno). Application for a long-term residence permit can be filed as soon as 
120 days before the expiration and no later than on the last day of validiy of a long-term visa and for the same purpose of stay. The same applies 
for extension of the long-term residence permit, but a change in the purpose of stay is permitted in certain situations. 
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Do I always have to carry my residence card with me?

Yes, you have to carry your passport with your visa or residence card with you at all times. Even EU nationals have to have a passport or national ID 
always present with them unless carrying temporary residence card. In case of loss, destruction or damage, a foreigner has to report this to the police 
or the authority that has issued the document within 3 working days from the day on which the event occurred. Once issued Czech residence card, 
you can leave your passport or national ID at home.  

Do I have to have a Czech driving licence?

Holders of a driving license issued by any of the European Union member states can drive with their original EU driving license for the full period 
of its validity. 

Exchange of the EU driving license for a Czech driving license is possible only after six months’ residence. Professional and personal links to the Czech 
Republic must be proved, and the individual must be in possession of a Czech birth identification number as well as a a temporary residence card.

A holder of a valid driving license issued by a foreign (non EU) country may drive in the Czech Republic with:

• a foreign driving license pursuant to the Convention on Road Traffic (Vienna 1968) or pursuant to the Convention on Road Traffic (Geneva 1949) 
for the period of its validity. 

In this case, a foreign national having permanent or temporary residence in the territory of the Czech Republic for a period of longer than 1 year is 
obliged to apply for the issuing of a Czech driving license to replace the driving license issued by the foreign country, and this must be done within 
3 months of the day when the permanent or temporary residence for a period of longer than 1 year was granted to him/her.

• an international driving license issued in addition to the foreign national driving license in case this is not in accordance with the Convention on 
Road Traffic (Vienna 1968) or the Convention on Road Traffic (Geneva 1949). The only limit here is the validity of the international driving license.

Do I have to register an imported car?

A vehicle must be registered if a foreign national‘s stay exceeds 185 days. At all times, the vehicle has to have a valid limited liability insurance 
“green card”. To purchase limited liability insurance in the CR is possible only for vehicles registered in the CR. A vehicle can only be registered in the 
name of a foreign national with temporary long-term or permanent residence. This registration is done at the Brno City Municipality’s Vehicle License 
and  Registration Section (Kounicova 67).

How do I get Czech health insurance?

It is not only common sense but the legal obligation of every foreigner to have health insurance valid for the territory of the CR. There is a public health 
insurance system regulated by government and accessible to all EU nationals and employed foreigners. 

In the case of EU citizens, national EU health insurance cards EHIC – with the blue international background - are good for urgent health services, 
but in case of a longer stay it is a better idea to sign up for Czech insurance and exchange the original insurance card for a local card valid for all health 
care including preventive checkups, hospitalization, etc. Registration in the public system, outside of employment, is possible only after obtaining the 
temporary residence certificate for EU nationals. Employees are automatically insured to the public health insurance system by the employer.

Foreigners from outside the EU can enter the public health insurance system only when registered by a Czech employer or after obtaining permanent 
residence status (after five years). Otherwise they must prepay commercial health insurance with lower coverage limits with some of the commercial 
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health insurance companies in the CR (currently six) that are authorized to issue such policies. Valid health insurance is a legal requirement in order to 
apply for or extend residence status.

How do I find a doctor?

It is one thing to have valid health insurance; finding a competent doctor who, in addition to professional skills, speaks some foreign language(s) 
is a completely different task. Your health insurance company is obliged to tell you who the contracted doctors and medical facilities near your place 
of residence are, but it would be very unlikely to know their language capacities. In such a situation you must shop around, ask your colleagues or friends 
or contact the Brno Expat Centre for a contact list included in one of the Centre’s free to download Infosheets. It is important to find a reliable doctor 
as soon as possible and register with him/her. The doctor than becomes your “family doctor”, keeps your file, does preventive checkups and refers you 
to specialists for further examination or treatment when needed. The same goes for a dentist, gynecologist or pediatrician. You can always visit the 
nearest doctor when you are sick and they have to accept any patient in need under the Hippocratic Oath. Out of office hours, you can always go to the 
Emergency Hospital at Ponavka 6 or to the Children’s Hospital at Cernopolni 9. There are 24-hour non-stop pharmacies at Koliste 47 (around the corner 
from the Emergency Hospital) and opposite the Main Train Station at Basty 2. 

What is the public transport system like?

Brno’s municipal public transport system is often rated the best in the country, known for its extensive and frequent services at reasonable prices, 
especially for those who opt for a monthly/quarterly/yearly pass.  Though there is no metro – the city isn’t really large enough to justify this – the 
Brno transport authority’s palette of vehicles includes trams, buses, trolley-buses and even boats - on the Brno Reservoir. In addition, it is part of an 
integrated system within the South Moravian region by which special fares extend to include fast trains and selected express trains in tariff-integrated 
sections of railway lines operated by Czech Railways. Full information in English on all aspects of this system can be found by going to www.dpmb.cz. 
All transportation timebtables are available on www.jizdnirady.cz or idos app.

How can I find accommodation?

Most foreigners – at least when they first arrive here – opt for renting a flat or house. There are two elementary options to locate and rent a flat/house – 
either with a reputable real estate agency or independently on your own. Good agencies will make sure that the person leasing the flat is legally entitled 
to do so, and that the lease contract contains all the necessary, and standard, provisions. The usual fee (commission) charged by an agency is equivalent 
to one month’s rent. Independent home search and negotiation with the proprietor may be cheaper, but it is often longer and riskier. You may want to 
have a lawyer at least check the contract for any hidden traps before signing. Home search servers, work place notice boards, Facebook groups and 
online forums have many up-to-date accommodation offerings. 

How do I find a school for my children?

In the Czech Republic, pre-school facilities – optional – cater to children aged 3 to 6. Compulsory education begins at 6, and lasts till the age of 15. 
Then comes the secondary education level, which lasts for 4 years. Secondary schools are of three types: grammar schools, secondary technical schools, 
and secondary vocational schools. Beyond this there are two options: what is called the “upper specialized” level (two years, for education of a type 
given by community colleges) and the tertiary level (i.e. universities, offering standard Bachelor’s, Master’s and doctoral programmes). 

Except for the pre-school level, the Czech educational system is overwhelmingly public. At all levels, from primary through secondary to tertiary, the 
public system is free of charge, while institutions in the private sector are fee-paying. Educational institutions that offer teaching solely in a language 
other than Czech will be private, and hence charge fees. This also holds true for degree programmes at universities that are taught in English. 

Public kindergartens have been overfull in recent years and prefer to accept older children (close to the beginning of primary school – 4, 5 years). 
Children who are five years of age (in their last year of their kindergarten attandance) are obliged to go to a kindergarten. It is necessary to look 
for a place in a kindergarten early on in the spring for the following school year. Alternatives are private kindergartens with various methods and 
focuses that are ready to accept younger children and the overflow from public kindergartens. Many specialize in alternative educational methods 
and communicate in foreign languages. 
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Except for the International School of Brno with both primary and secondary level and American academy with secondary level education , where 
teaching is in English according to the Cambridge international curriculum, all other primary and secondary schools instruct students in Czech. A few 
schools offer selected classes in English/French/German/Spanish. Three primary schools offers an integration programme for foreign children, dedicating 
more effort and time to the Czech language and cultural integration. 

How many foreigners live in the city/region?

Brno hosts over thirty thousand foreigners and the number for the South Moravian region is almost double that. Three major nationalities – Ukrainian, 
Slovakian and Vietnamese – count for more than half of them. Then it breaks down into much smaller portions for over a hundred nationalities. 
A rough estimate of foreign highly skilled professionals and their family members puts their number at around 6,000, employed in the large international 
companies, research centres and the academic world; many are also self-employed. About the same number of foreign students (not counting Slovakians) 
can be found studying at the  six public universities in Brno. It is easy to connect with the international crowd in the city at frequent meetings and 
social events. Various organizations host meetings and parties. For all foreigners living and working in the city, the Brno Expat Centre organizes regular 
seminars, informal meetings, tours and trips designed to promote networking among newcomers and locals and make foreigners feel at home in the city.

 

Brno Expat Centre 
Moravské náměstí 3, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 530 332 123, e-mail: info@brnoexpatcentre.eu, www.brnoexpatcentre.eu
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VII. Co-operation with South Moravian Institutions

VII. 01. CEITEC – Central European Institute of Technology

Central European Institute of Technology (CEITEC) is a centre with a focus of research in the fields of Life Sciences, and Advanced Materials and 
Technologies. CEITEC was established in 2011 with a strong foundation of six prominent universities and research institutes, with long-lasting traditions. 
CEITEC is located in Brno, Czech Republic. 

So far, CEITEC has managed to build up a cutting-edge research centre, which performs among the best European institutes. CEITEC’s success can be 
attributed not only to its high-tech technologies, but also to a leading team of scientists from the Czech Republic and abroad. CEITEC’s achievements are 
also a result of its adherence to international standards of quality in research, which are regularly evaluated by an international committee. Among the 
main priorities of CEITEC are a motivating and dynamic international scientific environment, state-of-the-art research infrastructure, and a policy of open 
communication and equal opportunity.

Research Areas

The multi-departmental nature of CEITEC and the extent to which the fields of Life Sciences and Advanced materials and Technologies are integrated 
make it the first research centre of its kind in the Czech Republic. The high-tech technologies at its disposal will facilitate synergistic study in the subjects 
of Life and Material Sciences on all currently available levels of complexity, starting with individual atoms, through molecules, ensembles and cells, 
to whole organisms.

Core Facilities

CEITEC core facilities offer the research community access to cutting-edge equipment. CEITEC’s goal is to be a central hub for shared resources that 
provides academic and industrial scientific investigators the use of instrumentation, and technology development and services.

New modern laboratories with first-class instruments, technologies, and service facilities are based in the University Campus of Masaryk University 
in Brno – Bohunice and the Brno University of Technology Campus “Pod Palackého vrchem“. Core facilities provide specialized research, greater 
expertise, high-quality facilities for advanced education, and close cooperation. Thanks to the combination of knowledge and resources of the six 
participating institutions, it is possible to attain highquality results faster, and with greater involvement of the industry.

International Management

In addition to integration into the international research network, CEITEC is also unique in its management system, which is based on experience of the 
most important research institutions worldwide. CEITEC works with the most significant global institutions; recognised foreign experts are members of 
the research teams and hold key managerial positions. In addition, the evaluation of the management of the centre is conducted by prominent foreign 
experts and is based on strict international standards. World experts have expressed interest in working at CEITEC, as well as successful Czech scientists, 
who have a place to return from abroad. 

For more information about CEITEC, please visit www.ceitec.cz /www.ceitec.eu.

 

CEITEC – Central European Institute of Technology 
c/o Masaryk University, Žerotínovo nám. 9, 601 77 Brno, Czech Republic 
e-mail: info@ceitec.cz, www.ceitec.cz
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VII. 02. Faculty of Mechanical Engineering of the Brno University of Technology

With almost 4,500 students and 15 specialised institutes, the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering is the second largest faculty of the Brno University 
of Technology and the largest engineering faculty in the Czech Republic.

Since its foundation in 1900, it has offered education in traditional branches of mechanical engineering, applied sciences and interdisciplinary fields, 
including materials, mathematical, process and physical engineering, mechatronics, biomechanics, industrial design, etc. The study is structured into 
three subsequent levels – Bachelor‘s, Master‘s and doctoral ones. All study branches are accredited in Czech and English, some of them are carried out 
in cooperation with foreign universities (France, Germany, Italy). Each year over 1,000 graduates leave the faculty with excellent prospectus at the labour 
market.

Close cooperation with Czech industrial partners and companies abroad – mainly by means of collaborative and contractual research, development 
and orders, expertise and consultancy services – is among the priorities of the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering. Significant is close cooperation with 
the Czech Technology Park and South Moravian Innovation Centre supporting innovation and star-ups by means of technology incubators in the region. 
SME‘s as well as leading international and Czech companies are of considerable importance for the Faculty – Skoda Auto, CEZ, Bosch, Honeywell, Tescan, 
Mubea, Koyo Bearings, POSCO, Volkswagen, etc.

The Company Day, being organized each year in the first half of March, is a place for meeting of students and company professionals and HR specialist. 
Some companies are donors of the Industrial Company Award when the best Bachelor‘s and Diploma thesis are underlined, or they attend faculty Open 
Days for the applicants.

The FME offers the following to industrial partners

• Job offers
• Student placement offer / internship
• Company expert lecturing
• Bachelor‘s / Diploma project topic
• Research project – partnership
• Sponsorship to selected student activity
• Sponsorship to faculty scholarship fund
• Sponsorship – Industrial Company Award
• Member of a final examination committee
• (Bachelor‘s, Master‘s, doctoral studies)
• Advertisement of a company (faculty facilities)
• Advertisement of a company (institute facilities)
• Presentation of a company during Faculty Open days (for applicants)
• Presentation of a company during Company Day (for university students)
• Joint presentation of technical disciplines for secondary school students/pupils/public; Researcher‘s Night; any other promotion activity of the FME

 

Faculty of Mechanical Engineering, Brno University of Technology 
Technická 2896/2, 616 69 Brno, Czech Republic 
Ing. Hana Petrušková, phone: + 420 541 142 217, e-mail: petruskova@fme.vutbr.cz, www.fme.vutbr.cz
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VII. 03. AdMaS – Advanced Materials, Structures and Technologies

Faculty of Civil Engineering, Brno University of Technology

The AdMaS Centre is a modern science centre and comprehensive civil engineering research institution. The centre focuses on research and development 
in the field of advanced building materials, structures and technologies and their application in civil engineering, and also in the transport systems and 
infrastructures of cities and municipalities.

The mission of the AdMaS Centre is to facilitate the application of the current results of basic research in practice via applied research, the result being 
new or improved building materials and technologies. These will have quantitatively higher useable properties, or lower production costs, and have 
limited negative impacts on the environment (during the production as well as the whole lifespan of the material).

The AdMaS Centre project has been developed with funding from the Operational Programme Research and Development for Innovation, a programme 
for the distribution of European structural funds.

Structure

The centre covers two research programmes. These programmes are further divided into five research groups:

1. Development of Advanced Building Materials
 » Microstructure of Building Materials
 » Technology of Building Materials

2. Development of Advanced Structures and Technologies
 » Structures and Traffic Constructions
 » EGAR – Environmental and Geo (Geotechnics and Geodesy) Applied Technological Research
 » Mathematical Modelling

Particular Areas for Co-operation

For producers of building materials

• Development of novel energy-saving and environment-saving substances and advanced building materials with better utility parameters and longer 
lifetimes.

• Design and verification of novel raw material sources – usable by-products, easily renewable sources, recycled materials.
• Progressive methods for determining the elemental composition and concentration of components, for verifying the microstructure, thermal, 

technical and other features.
• Utilisation of modern destructive and non-destructive methods for determining mechanical, physico-chemical and endurance parameters of building 

materials. 

For construction companies and engineers

• Optimisation of efficient materials usage in building constructions considering their lifespan and financial viability.
• Design of progressive building structures and technologies aimed at increased reliability, lifespan and economic efficiency.
• Experimental verification of short- and long-term behaviour of structures with a possibility of thermal, static and dynamic loading; fire resistance.
• Utilisation of geodetic, photogrammetric and metrological support of building activities and research. 
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For owners and administrators of buildings, cultural monuments, for investors

• Diagnostics and verification of structure features, using both destructive and non-destructive testing methods; virtual testing and mathematic 
modelling.

• Measurement of cracks, proposals of static buildings protection.
• Measurement of microclimate and thermal properties of buildings and component parts of buildings. 

For territorial administrative units and public institutions

• Modern technologies for wastewater draining and cleaning, drinking water treatment and distribution, new methods for energy recuperation from 
wastewater.

• Measuring and modelling traffic flow, emissions and noise load.
• Energy, ecology and sustainable development concept of urban settlements and regions.
• Consulting and research in the field of Smart Cities.

 

AdMaS Centre, Faculty of Civil Engineering, Brno University of Technology 
Veveří 331/95, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 541 148 011, e-mail: admas@fce.vutbr.cz, www.admas.eu
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VII. 04. Centre SIX – Sensor, Information and Communication Systems

SIX research centre was established to support the innovation potential of companies which actively exploit communication, information and sensor 
technologies in different areas of life.

The mission of the Centre is e.g.:

• supporting the quality of life of the aging population (sensing life functions and wireless transmission of information),
• reducing the danger of terroristic attacks (sensing marks of dangerous substances and wireless warning),
• controlling traffic using the concept of an intelligent highway (mutual communication among cars and stationary units),
• timely diagnosis of nervous diseases using the analysis of speech. 

Implementation of the SIX centre was started on 1st August 2010 and was completed in December 2012. In January 2013, the full research operation 
of the centre was started. The SIX Research center performs the research of technologies to be applied in communication, information and sensor 
systems in a near future in the close cooperation with the strategic industry partners and companies to fulfill the mission of the centre.

Please visit www.six.feec.vutbr.cz for more information about Centre SIX – Sensor, Information and Communication Systems.

 

SIX Research Centre – Sensor, Information and Communication Systems 
Department of Radio Electronics, Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology 
Technická 3082/12, 616 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
E-mail: six@feec.vutbr.cz, www.six.feec.vutbr.cz
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VII. 05. NETME Centre – New Technologies for Mechanical Engineering

NETME Centre aims to address key challenges of society across diverse range of industries. The centre is a 50M € investment in applied R&D with 
220 staff members and its own unique facilities, all located in an 8,500 m² dedicated area.

NETME benefits from over a century long tradition in higher education and research in mechanical engineering. The faculty of mechanical engineering is 
the largest higher education institute in its field.

Focusing on major industrial areas such as:

• Aerospace Engineering
• Automotive Engineering
• Power Engineering
• Industrial Technologies 

NETME is uniquely positioned to compile portfolio of technologies and research groups to tackle your challenge.

To solve your challenges we also have access to:

• 500 researchers at the Faculty of Mechanical Engineering.
• 1,400 researchers at Brno University of Technology covering all major engineering fields.
• 6,000 researchers and 700M € worth of capital expenditure into R&D in Brno municipality. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us for more information and any cooperation enquiries.

 

NETME Centre, Faculty of Mechanical Engineering, Brno University of Technology 
Technická 2896/2, 616 69 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 541 144 981, e-mail: info@netme.cz, www.netme.cz
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VII. 06. CVVOZE – Centre for Research and Utilisation of Renewable Energy

CVVOZE is a research centre at the Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology. It covers almost the full 
spectrum of electrical engineering disciplines (electrochemistry, electromechanics, electrotechnology, electrical power engineering) and links them to 
the topical subject of renewable energy sources and their efficient use in production, transport and power engineering.

The research centre accommodates three programmes:

• Electromechanical Energy Conversion – concentrates on increasing the efficiency of the existing electrical machines used in environmentally-friendly 
transportation, and on development of conceptually new machines including development and optimisation of new control systems utilising modern 
signal processors.

• Chemical and Photovoltaic Energy – focuses on research into electrochemical sources, photovoltaic cells and on development of their efficient and 
reliable applications.

• Generation, transmission, Distribution and Use of Electrical Energy – aims its activities at research and development of new devices for electrical 
energy distribution featuring improved energetic and environmental parameters leading to better quality of electricity and higher reliability of its 
delivery, including electrical network safety. 

The Centre continues the long-term tradition of research and development done under the faculty’s name and aspires to become a respected institution 
of European significance.

Please visit www.cvvoze.cz for more information about CVVOZE, Centre for Research and Utilization of Renewable Energy.

 

Centre for Research and Utilization of Renewable Energy 
Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Communication, Brno University of Technology 
Technická 3082/12, 616 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
prof. RNDr. Vladimir Aubrecht, CSc. (CVVOZE director), phone: +420 541 146 715, e-mail: aubrecht@feec.vutbr.cz, www.cvvoze.cz
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VII. 07. CMV – Materials Research Centre

The project consists of two research programmes:

1. Inorganic materials
2. Transport systems and sensors 

Inorganic materials: the objective is to create an instrumental and knowledge base for the silicates industry (inorganic binding agents, building 
materials, ceramics and refractory materials).

Transport systems and sensors: preparation and property characterisation of systems for controlled or targeted transport of biologically active 
substances and of sensors based on organic materials and conductors usable in diagnostics, medicine or healthcare in general, for example. Users 
may include pharmaceutical, cosmetic, biotechnological or food industries as well as companies dealing with sensory, diagnostic, environmental or 
agrochemical technologies.

Particular Areas for Co-Operation with Industries

Inorganic materials

• Preparation of materials based on inorganic composites and produced in large volumes, where production technique changes may bring 
significant benefits

• Preparation of inorganic materials with high stability under mechanical stress and in aggressive environments
• Understanding technological processes used in binders and ceramics production and making them more efficient
• Reducing the environmental load generated by production of inorganic materials (raw materials demand, waste management and 

emission processes)
• Reducing the energy demand in high-temperature processes used in the preparation of ceramics and binders
• Use of raw materials from other chemical, metallurgical or power-generating productions
• Production of high-tech materials and precursors for demanding (such as medical) applications
• Development, innovation and preparation of materials and testing samples in the preparative silicate laboratory
• Characterisation of chemical and chemical-structural composition of inorganic materials 

Transport systems and sensors

• Preparation of functional nanomaterials and nanotechnological equipment for medical, “life science” and sensor applications
• Studies of interactions in colloidal systems and nanosystems to detect their ability to bond biologically active substances into a stable complex 

enabling transport of the useful active substance to its destination. Design of systems for potential practical applications and preparation 
of functional samples or samples for subsequent (mainly biological or medical) tests

• Preparation of novel functional materials with substantial sensory, electrical and optical features; construction of system prototypes for 
commercial applications

• Characterisation of physico-chemical, electrical and optical characteristics of colloids, nanomaterials, thin layers and materials for organic electronics

 

Materials Research Centre 
Faculty of Chemistry, Brno University of Technology 
Purkyňova 464/118, 612 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
prof. Ing. Miloslav Pekař, CSc. (CMV director), phone: +420 541 149 330, e-mail: pekar@fch.vutbr.cz, www.materials-research.cz
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VII. 08. Technology Transfer Office of Masaryk University

Masaryk University (MUNI) has long recognized that the natural role of a high-quality and modern university is linked to the ability to foster collaboration 
with industry and applications. That is why the University founded its own specialized centre, Technology Transfer Office (TTO) in 2005. Our mission is to 
help our researchers´ ideas cross the borders of the University and bring the knowledge and technologies into practice.

TTO supports cooperation between the scientific community and industry by building the University‘s internal environment and defining internal rules. 
It initiates opportunities for meeting scientists with company representatives or finding resources for collaborative research. TTO plays a role of an 
intermediary, provider of services and both legal and administrative support, manages contracts and supervises their implementation. With its services 
TTO contributes to the mutually beneficial development and implementation of commercially interesting results of scientific work into the everyday life.

TTO supports the development of the functional environment for technology transfer by diverse mix of activities. Some target the academic public - such 
as student education, workshops, round tables, traditional TT Day and more. Others are directed to the general public, in particular to build long-term 
partnerships in the field of applied research. The biggest event of this kind is the Business Research Forum, which takes place every two years. TTO also 
represents the University at conferences and trade fairs where it presents interesting projects and technologies to potential investors. 

The Technology Transfer Office also supports the transfer of knowledge into practice through direct financial support. It allocates resources for the 
industrial and legal protection of selected inventions (e.g. by patenting) and introduces motivational rules for rewarding originators. Along with modern 
trends, it supports promising technologies in an early stage of development by securing appropriate financial resources necessary for the development 
or verification of the functionality of these technologies (a.k.a. Proof of Concept).

Masaryk University and its TTO are an integral part of the regional framework; business activities, development of technological and start-up 
companies and business incubation are carried out in close cooperation with the South Moravian Innovation Centre and other institutions in the 
South Moravian Region.

Our services

We are an expert service-providing office of Masaryk University with many years of experience. The TTO team consists of business development 
managers, project managers, lawyers and economic-administrative support. Our services are intended both for Masaryk University employees and 
for external companies or other institutions and organizations.

Services for Companies/Application Partners 

• offering technologies for licensing
• seeking scientific partners for contractual research and further cooperation
• assisting in preparation of grant applications, innovation vouchers, etc.
• obtaining secondary financial resources for contractual research
• utilizing research, development and laboratory capacities of Masaryk University
• providing legal requisites for contractual research
• providing expert consulting in the area of technology transfer
• taking part in setting up effective protection of intellectual property
• providing commercial forms of training/education

Services for MUNI empoyees 

Intellectual Property

• providing protection of intellectual property resulting from research
• providing authors of inventions with administrative and legal support
• cooperating on application of knowledge and technology
• providing assistance concerning dividing incomes from technology transfer
• consulting in the area of intellectual property rights
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Business Development

• seeking commercial partners for contractual research 
• identifying subsidiary financial resources to secure contractual research
• negotiating and drafting contracts (licenses, confidentiality, etc.)
• supporting business innovations and starting spin-off companies
• offering and selling technologies and knowledge (inventions, know-how, software, etc.)

Promotion and Training

• training scientists and students: intellectual property, business, project management
• organizing seminars, workshops and consultations
• presenting research results and offers of technologies at conferences, workshops and fairs
• presenting results of technology and knowledge transfer at Masaryk University

Up-to-date information about our activities are published on the website www.ctt.muni.cz/en, social networks https://www.facebook.com/CTT.muni.cz 
and in the periodical Interface newsletter http://www.ctt.muni.cz/en/newsletter-interface. 

 

Technology Transfer Centre, Masaryk University 
Office: Komenského square 2, Brno, Czech Republic 
Mailing Address: Žerotínovo Square 617/9, 601 77 Brno, Czech Republic 
CRN: 00216224, DIČ: CZ00216224 
Phone: +420 549 498 016, e-mail: ctt@ctt.muni.cz, www.ctt.muni.cz
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VII. 09. JIC – South Moravian Innovation Centre

JIC (South Moravian Innovation Centre) supports innovative businesses, the competitiveness of south moravian companies and 
the creation of qualified jobs in the region.

JIC services are used by people with great ideas, quickly growing startups as well as established technology companies.

Companies which have passed through JIC programmes have created 2,000 new jobs and hundreds of additional places in follow-up services. 
In the 14 years of its existence, more than 200 innovative companies has backed by JIC.

JIC empowers people to create and grow businesses that change the world. At the same time, JIC is making South Moravia one of the most innovative 
European regions.

JIC Programmes and Services

#chcipodnikat

• JIC is offering a series of courses for all those who already have a business idea, but who first wish to put it to the test, and for those who haven’t a clue how to 
start up a business. The course consists of seminars and workshops conducted by JIC consultants, and is suitable for all types of projects at the idea stage. 

JIC ENTER (www.jic.cz/en/enter)

• JIC ENTER is a programme for people with innovative ideas who want to start their own business.
• Participants in this programme can check to see if their idea has any potential. The JIC supports them in their first steps and offers them 

an opportunity to develop their business skills by providing seminars, workshops and consultations with mentors.
• Companies develop their business under expert supervision in a co-working space where they meet with other programme participants. 

JIC STARCUBE (www.jic.cz/en/starcube)

• International accelerator JIC STARCUBE is designed for startups and technology oriented teams who want to focus more intensively on their 
business idea.

• A two-month programme full of workshops and consultations with experts and successful entrepreneurs is intended for teams from all over 
the world. Successful graduates of JIC STARCUBE include, for example, the companies GINA, Kiwi.com (former Skypicker), Videoflot and Reservio. 

JIC MASTER (www.jic.cz/en/master)

• Programme for innovative technology companies less than three years old with an ambition to become an important player in the market both here and abroad.
• The JIC MASTER programme helps companies to set the appropriate strategy, identify the business’ weak points and build solid foundations for foreign expansion.
• Participants are guided through the programme by consultants, JIC experts and also by the entrepreneur in residence, who combines the role of 

active business leader and consultant.
• The JIC MASTER programme is intended for technology companies connected to the South Moravian Region who have been selling a product or 

service for not more than three years and who already have paying customers. 

JIC PLATINN (www.jic.cz/en/platinn)

• JIC PLATINN is a programme for established companies from south moravia who are interested in innovative opportunities for further development.
• JIC PLATINN is designed for technology companies older than 3 years with more than 10 employees. A carefully selected expert will conduct 

an analysis of the company, identify its growth potential and help apply innovation and changes in practice.
• This JIC programme, based on the Swiss model Platinn, is currently inspiring many European regions to establish their own coaching schemes.

JIC VENTURES

• The subsidiary company JIC VENTURES s.r.o. was established with the aim of investing in current and former JIC programmes participants.
• This company helps approved companies develop more quickly by making investments ranging from tens to the lower hundreds of thousands euros. 

It plans to use returns on shares to support other JIC clients. It operates either as a sole investor or invests jointly alongside other investors.
• www.jic.cz/en/ventures/
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FABLAB BRNO

• The newly established FABLAB BRNO digital workshop offers a 24-hour access to machines for everyone wishing to test their modern technology or 
work on a project. FABLAB BRNO, located in the JIC INMEC building, organizes events and workshops on mechanics, 3D printing and IoT to help them 
develop their technical skills. During these workshops, students, aspiring entrepreneurs and DIY enthusiasts are encouraged to create their school, artistic, 
business, or other projects. Those with an entrepreneurial plan and potential can further develop their projects under one of the JIC programmes.

• www.fablabbrno.cz/en

INTEMAC

• The INTEMAC research centre in Kuřim helps companies conduct research and development in the fields of machine tools, production technology 
and mechanical engineering and is devoted to I 4.0.

• The company Intemac Solutions, s.r.o., which operates the INTEMAC centre, is a JIC subsidiary.
• http://www.intemac.cz/en

The JIC Runs Three Buildings in Brno

JIC clients can draw on comprehensive support facilities, including space for meetings, research and business. The JIC rents offices and laboratories 
to startups and established companies in three buildings.

JIC INMEC

The JIC base is located near the Czech Technology Park and is a direct neighbour of the Central European Institute of Technology (CEITEC BUT). There are 
laboratories and co-working spaces. Currently there is a new FabLab being formed – an open workshop equipped with digitally controlled machines.

JIC INBIT

The biotechnology incubator on the Masaryk University campus offers opportunities to cooperate with top class laboratories.

JIC INTECH

BUT Technology Incubator II is occupied by technology companies which have been provided with support facilities for developing their technologies.

Accreditation and International Networks

The JIC is a holder of the prestigious BIC accreditation, which is granted by the European Business & Innovation Centre Network (EBN) on behalf of 
the European Commission. The JIC is a member of the following international networks: European Business & Innovation Centre Network (EBN) and 
Enterprise Europe Network (EEN).

 

JIC, association of legal entities 
Purkyňova 649/127, 612 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 511 205 330, e-mail: jic@jic.cz, www.jic.cz/en
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VII. 10. JCMM – South Moravian Centre for International Mobility

The South Moravian Centre for International Mobility (JCMM) is specialized nonprofit organization whose founders and members are the Region of South 
Moravia, the Brno University of Technology, the Masaryk University, the Mendel University in Brno and the University of Veterinary and Pharmaceutical 
Sciences Brno.

Our Mission

• Supporting talented students from their secondary school education up to Ph.D. study
• Providing assistance to secondary school teachers in work with talented students
• Creating conditions to attract talented students from abroad
• Bringing world class researchers to the region

Our Programmes

• For secondary school students
 » Providing personal development grants to talented students.
 » Bringing talented students together with researchers – e.g. internships in research institutes, implementation of first research projects 

(High-School Expert Activity – SOČ), lectures, seminars.
 » Organising other out-of-school educational activities for students – e.g. education events, interdisciplinary contests.

• For secondary school teachers
 » Cooperating closely with secondary school teachers from our region – sharing information about activities for talented students, searching for 

talents etc.
• For university and PhD students

 » Providing career development grants to bachelor degree students.
 » Providing a 3-year scholarship to talented PhD students so that they can focus fully on science.

• For foreign students
 » Providing a 1-year start-up scholarship to third-country nationals who wish to study at partner universities in the South Moravian Region and 

have not studied in the Czech Republic before.
 » Providing administrative support to students, i.e. assistance with enrolment, diploma recognition, visa procedure etc.
 » Assisting students to prepare for study in the Czech language through lectors in Russia.

• For researchers
 » SoMoPro, a mobility programme, offers grants of 1- up to 3- years to fund the stay of international researchers in the region and to reintegrate 

Czech researchers returning from abroad.
 » As part of the EURAXESS service, our Centre advises foreign researchers on how to easily integrate into life in South Moravia (pre-arrival 

and post-arrival individual counselling services – visa, accommodation, healthcare, schools, kindergartens etc) and organises leisure-time 
integration activities (trips for researchers in South Moravia etc.).

How Can We Help Businesses?

• If you wish to identify talented and motivated secondary school to post-graduate students (both Czech and foreign) and offer them internships, 
excursions or technical lectures, please do not hesitate to contact us.

• You may become an evaluator of post-graduate projects. 

For more information, please visit our website at www.jcmm.cz.

 

South Moravian Centre for International Mobility 
Mezírka 1, 602 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 541 211 043, e-mail: info@jcmm.cz, www.jcmm.cz
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VII. 11. ISOB – International School of Brno

The International School of Brno provides education in English to students from 3 to 18 in an internationally-minded environment. Our aim is to provide 
our students with all the skills they need to continue their education anywhere in the world. The school follows the Cambridge International Program 
(Primary, Secondary and High school programs – IGCSE) and IB Diploma program, an internationally recognized curriculum that focuses on the 
development of communication skills, creativity, independence and self-motivation.

To ensure that all ISB students are comfortable and confident, we offer language support for students of all levels of English fluency, whether they 
are just beginning to speak English or they would like to continue with their progress. We are also offer support to students with some Special 
Educational Needs.

ISB is an Accredited member of the Council of International Schools (www.cois.org).

Student progress is assessed using tools and tests issued by Cambridge International in order to assure an engaging experience, the maximum number 
of students in a class is 15.

School day runs from 8:30 a.m. to 3 p.m. with before and after school services available (including sport, art and language activities).

Registration at ISB is possible throughout the entire year.

 

International school of Brno 
Čejkovická 10, 628 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Mgr. Jan Švihálek (ISOB director), phone: +420 544 212 313, GSM: +420 776 490 120, e-mail: info@isob.cz, www.isob.cz
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VII. 12. BEC – Brno Expat Centre

The Brno Expat Centre – funded by the City of Brno – acts as a service office catering for the needs of foreign highly skilled professionals who are living 
or working in Brno or plan to do so.

Mission

To create an environment where newcomers feel welcome and quickly make connection with the city and its citizens.

Services

Relocating, Consulting and Assisting

The BEC offers advice and assistance to international employees, entrepreneurs and researchers in all areas related to settling down and enjoying life 
in Brno. That includes various formalities and paperwork, contact with local authorities and any daily living issues. As part of public service, the BEC 
experienced assistants provide expats with in-depth consulting, guidelines and contacts, as well as interpret in meetings with authorities and other 
service providers. Partner companies enjoy priority services and extra benefits for their employees and their family members, such as on-site welcome 
seminars for newcomers and full support in relocation process. 

Our professional English, French and German speaking staff is ready to help and find contacts in a wide variety of areas including:

• residence permits;
• medical services;
• social security;
• trade licensing;

• financial issues;
• language courses;
• apartment rentals;
• driving license;

• vehicle registration;
• schools and kindergartens;
• leisure, sports and hobbies;
• arts and culture.

Community Events Organizing

The BEC organizes public seminars, informal meetings, trips, tours, sport tournaments, wine and tea tastings, and such. These social gatherings help 
foreigners to network and integrate within the local community, connect to other foreigners in similar situation and make friends with locals. 

Sharing Knowledge and Contacts Online

The BEC operates an informative website www.BrnoExpatCentre.eu with practical guidelines, current information relevant to expats, event invitations, 
and contacts. There are infosheets and inquiry forms available free of charge. Our social media groups on Facebook and LinkedIn associate over 
5,000 foreigners living in Brno.

Visit the website, become a member and sign up for our monthly newsletter at www.brnoexpatcentre.eu.

 

Brno Expat Centre 
Moravské náměstí 3, 60200 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 530 332 123, e-mail: info@brnoexpatcentre.eu, www.brnoexpatcentre.eu
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VIII. Practical Information: Working and Living in South Moravia
The first thing to remember about settling in South Moravia is that the people here, the lifestyle, the environment and the culture are a world apart from 
not only your home country, but also from Prague, which you may have already heard. The second thing to know is that the local “expatriate scene” 
is rather small (compared to e.g. Prague or Vienna), and is based on personal networking rather than plainly visible and institutionalized organizations. 
In other words, the many foreign citizens happily residing here are largely immersed in all the region has to offer – in many cases “more Czech than 
the Czechs themselves”.

The third thing to know is that much of what you encounter here will seem strange and that it is better to try to understand Czech mentality rather 
than expecting them to change overnight just because you expect them to be different. This is why we recommend that every newcomer grab a copy 
of Hašek’s century-old novel “The Good Soldier Švejk”, and read, laugh, understand!

This Section discusses the aspects of life that the foreign community must come to terms with here in South Moravia. You may experience difficulties and 
frustration if only for the language barrier or some other reason. But we hope that this text will help you overcome such problems. We also aim to offer 
a tried-and-true selection of friendly, efficient services that should meet your expectations. The ultimate choice is always yours. However, the selection 
we present here is based on a survey carried out among foreign investors in Brno and South Moravia, and we believe that their recommendations will 
come handy to you. The authors of this text can not always guarantee that you will also be satisfied with their service. We do however believe that in this 
way, the likelihood of you being happily steered on your way to successful businesses in South Moravia will increase.

VIII. 01. Practical Information

Currency, Money

The currency in the Czech Republic is the Czech Crown or koruna česká (abbreviated to CZK or Kč), which is divided into 100 heller or haléř (abbreviated 
to h). Coins come in the denominations 1 Kč, 2 Kč, 5 Kč, 10 Kč, 20 Kč and 50 Kč; notes in 100 Kč, 200 Kč, 500 Kč, 1,000 Kč, 2,000 Kč, and 5,000 Kč. 
The prices in the shops quoted are rounded to the nearest Crown.
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Opening a Bank Account

Opening an account in Crowns or a foreign currency at a local bank can be done relatively easily at virtually any bank. You can have a bank account of 
your own on condition that you are 18 years old – except for a few specific products. These include e.g. student accounts that you can open from 15 years 
of age in the presence of a statutory representative. Foreigners must submit a permit to stay in the CR.

You will be asked for two proofs of identity when opening an account. As for foreigners, the banks differentiate between foreigners coming from 
EU-member countries and the rest of the world. EU foreigners usually present an identification document issued and valid in the EU (ID card of an EU 
member state), possibly their passport. The second document is, similarly to CR citizens, e.g. a birth certificate, driving licence or residence permit issued 
by the Ministry of Interior CR. For foreigners from non-EU countries, the key document is their passport and the other documents are the same as for EU 
citizens. Banks always prefer documents with photographs.

Generally banks in the Czech Republic can be divided into the large ones that offer a wide range of financial services but where a range of service 
charges are charged (e.g. ČSOB, Česká spořitelna, Komerční banka and Unicredit Bank), and the smaller low-cost ones (e.g. Air Bank, Fio, Equa and 
mBank). These do not offer so many financial services, but if you are looking for the basic services and with low or absent service charges, these are 
the right ones for you.

Banks

• Air Bank (www.airbank.cz)
• Česká spořitelna (www.csas.cz)
• Československá obchodní banka (ČSOB; www.csob.cz)
• Fio bank (www.fio.cz)
• MONETA Money Bank (www.moneta.cz)
• Komerční banka (KB; www.kb.cz)
• mBank (www.mbank.cz)
• UniCredit Bank (www.unicreditbank.cz)
• Equa bank (www.equabank.cz)

Bank ATMs

Almost every bank or branch office has an ATM too, most of them accepting major credit cards (VISA being the most wide-spread one). The most 
frequent ATMs are those of Austrian-owned Erste Bank – Česká spořitelna which are present in practically every town of any size (5,000 inhabitants +). 
Withdrawing money should therefore not pose any major problem at any time, and the nearest ATM will never be farther than 10 or 20 Km no matter 
where you are in the region. However, most of banks in the Czech Republic do charge a withdrawal fee in case you are withdrawing money from another 
bank’s ATM. Also if you are withdrawing money from your own bank’s ATM, they could still charge you something.



Practical Information: Working and Living in South Moravia78

Electricity

Electricity here is the standard continental 230 volts AC. Most European appliances should work as long as you have an adaptor for European style 
two-pin round plugs

Phones

Telephone Numbers

• All national subscriber (landline) telephone numbers have a uniform length of 9 digits.
• We do not dial a 0 at the start of any call within the Czech Republic.
• All emergency calls, additional services and access codes for choice of operator begin with the number 1.
• All national subscriber numbers in the fixed network begin with the numbers 2, 3, 4 and 5.
• The numbers of mobile operators, access to the Internet and other additional services of all fixed operators begin with the numbers 6, 7, 8 and 9.
• Telephone numbers in South Moravia begin with numbers 51, 53, 54.
• When making an international call, you have to dial 00 or symbol “+” followed by the country code.
• The country code of the Czech republic is 420. 

Tab. 16: Useful free telephone numbers

Emergency call (for all types of emergencies) 112

Rescue 155

Fire 150

Police of the CR 158

Municipal police 156

Mobile Phones

There are currently three main mobile operators in the Czech Republic. More information on tariffs and services is available on Websites of individual 
operators:

• O2 (www.o2.cz)
• T-Mobile (www.t-mobile.cz)
• Vodafone (www.vodafone.cz) 

There are lot of mobile virtual operators in the Czech Republic and you can use them as well. The list of them you can find at (only in czech): 
http://mobilni-operatori.eu.

Post Offices

Most post offices (pošta) are open from 8 am to 6 pm Monday to Friday, and Saturdays until noon. The post office next to the Brno main railway station 
(Nádražní 418/1) features a 24-hour, 7-day a week service.

Post offices could be pretty baffling institutions for foreigners, with separate windows for just about every service. Look out for the right sign to avoid 
queuing unnecessarily: Letters can be sent at “listovní služby”, parcels – “balíky”, stamps – “známky”. However, it is usually easier to arrange sending 
someone speaking Czech or to just take them with you.

Tab. 17: The postage varies according to the weight of the letter or parcel you wish to send (1. 11. 2017)

postcard, letter within the Czech Republic from 19 Kč*

postcard, letter abroad from 35 Kč*

* 50 g – standard

For more information please visit www.ceskaposta.cz.
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Apart from using post office, the following might be also helpful for fast delivery:

• DHL (www.dhl.cz)
• PPL (www.ppl.cz)
• Toptrans (www.toptrans.cz)

Police

There are two separate police forces in the Czech Republic: the Police of the Czech Republic – PCR – e.g. its national police force (Policie České republiky), 
and municipal police forces (Městská policie). They can be distinguished by their uniforms; the PCR wear grey trousers with blue jackets and 
the municipal police wear black uniforms. The PCR deal with such areas as criminal and traffic offenses (thefts, burglaries, homicides, as well as car 
accidents, fines and so on). The municipal police have limited powers to maintain law and order within the bounds of their municipality. The most likely 
contact with them is when you park your car in an inappropriate place.

VIII. 02. Traveling Around the Country and Abroad

Trains

The railway system of Czech Railways (ČD – České dráhy) is one of the densest in Europe. Trains go just about everywhere, and you can choose 
from many types of trains. Fares are calculated by the distance, but in many cases you can use various discounts. There are two kinds of train fares: 
“common fare” and “customer fare”. To obtain the customer fare you have to buy an In-customer card. You can buy it at railway station ticket offices, 
and you will need a passport-sized photograph.

Czech Railways offer a whole range of price reductions, for example for groups (minimum 2 persons to maximum 30 persons) or for return tickets. 
Moreover, there exists a special price reduction for an In-customer card holders for traveling from Brno to Prague or from Prague to Brno (and from/to 
other selected cities). Price lists and detailed information on price reductions and rail passes can be found at the ČD official website: www.cd.cz/eshop. 
You’ll find the train time schedule at www.idos.cz (English and German version also available).

There are two main types of train (vlak): rychlík trains are the faster ones, which stop only at major towns; osobní, or ordinary trains, stop at every 
single station on the line and the average travel speed is about 40 km an hour. Other fast trains go by the name of expres or spěšný. Faster trains are 
the international expresses – known as InterCity and EuroCity. The fastest and the most expensive are the SuperCity trains, where you pay the fare and 
the seat reservation.

First-class carriages (první třída) exist on all fast trains; tickets are more expensive but should guarantee you a slightly more comfortable seat on a busy 
train. For all international services (and any other trains marked with an “R” on the timetable), you can buy a seat reservation (místenka).

Buses

Buses go almost everywhere, and from town to town they are often faster than the train. Although not exactly executive travel, in most cases these will 
do if you want to avoid driving your own car. Bear in mind, though, that in rural areas timetables are often designed with the working and/or school day. 
During the week this can mean departures at 6 am, returning at around 3 pm, with completely different services at weekends.

In many towns and villages, the bus station is adjacent to the train station, though you may be able to pick up the bus from the centre of town.

A detailed railway and bus time-table is available both in English and German at the Website of IDOS Universal: www.idos.cz. (When searching 
connections, fill in the names of destinations in Czech, for example “Praha” instead of “Prague”). This site offers even combinations of train and bus 
connections to all destinations in the country, including the most peripheral villages.



Practical Information: Working and Living in South Moravia80

Air Travel

Brno has an international airport, currently serving mostly for charter and cargo flights. There are following operational winter lines (4Q 2017):

• Brno – London / Stansted (Ryanair)
• Brno – Mnichov (bmi regional / Lufthansa)
• Brno – Milano / Bergamo (Ryanair) 

You can get easily to the Airport Brno –Turany (www.brno-airport.cz) by the bus line No. 76. This bus connection runs daily from 5:30 a.m. till 10:30 p.m. 
every 30 minutes. The duration is approximately about 20 minutes depending on traffic. You need the ticket for two zones. You can check the time table 
here: http://www.idsjmk.cz/jrady/E76.pdf.

Prague (200 Km, www.prg.aero) and Vienna (110 Km, www.viennaairport.com) are the nearest airports with comprehensively networked flights for all of 
South Moravia. Low-cost airlines are opening up new routes and chances to save money, particularly from Bratislava (www.airportbratislava.sk) and Prague.

Some of the more frequently used ticket offices (Low Cost):

• EasyJet (www.easyjet.com)
• Ryanair (www.ryanair.com)
• Wizz Air (www.wizzair.com)

Taxis

Taxis are plentiful and fairly cheap for westerners. Beware, however, that foreigners are seen as easy prey by some taxi drivers (especially in Prague; 
Brno taxi drivers have a better reputation than those in Prague but it is good to have a basic feel for the price levels). Ensure that the taxi has its 
number, company name, and prices printed on the doors. If it does not, the driver is already breaking the law. Once in the taxi, make sure that the meter 
(taxametr) is switched on. At the end of the ride, the driver should present a receipt (potvrzení).

Here are some of the most reputable taxi firms in Brno:

• City taxi (+420 542 321 321, www.citytaxibrno.cz)
• Taxi Impuls (+420 724 006 666, www.taxi-impuls.cz)
• Drink & Drive (+420 608 717 141, www.drink-drive.cz) 

The most obvious place to get a taxi in Brno is in front of the main railway station (Hlavní nádraží) and on the corner of Česká and Joštova streets at 
the end of the Česká pedestrian zone.

Traffic Channels from Brno to Main Destinations

Prague

• By fast train: about 20 times/day; you can get to Prague in about 3 hrs. Be sure to check the timetable beforehand – some rides are longer by 
30 minutes or more.

• By bus: Frequent connections running all day (takes 2 hrs 30 minutes). 
Direct Brno–Prague coach lines are mostly run by:
 » Student Agency (+420 800 100 300, www.studentagency.cz, ticket office: Hotel Grand Old Bus Station) 

The station of the Student Agency company is located by the main Brno railway station, opposite the Hotel Grand (Benešova st.) – the so-called 
“Old bus station”. The price of a one-way ticket is around 200 Kč.

The Brno main railway station (Brno hlavní nádraží) and the Central Bus station (ÚAN) in Zvonařka are only about a five minutes walk from each other 
and close to the centre of Brno.
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Bratislava (Slovakia) – 110 Km

• By fast train: about 10 times/day (the fastest takes 1 hour 30 minutes – EC trains)
• By bus: frequent services all day long (takes approximately 2 hrs)
• By car you can get there in 1 hour 30 min. 

Vienna (Austria) – 127 Km

• By fast train: four times a day (1 hour 45 min – EuroCity trains)
• By bus: nine times a day (2 hours 30 min)
• By car you can get there in 2 hours

Public Transport in Brno

Brno has an excellent public transportation system. 11 lines of trams (tramvaj), 42 lines of buses (autobus) and 12 lines of trolley buses (trolejbus) during 
the day and 11 night lines will take you almost everywhere in the city within a few minutes.

There are two zones in Brno (100 and 101) and other zones in the surroundings of Brno. In any case, if you travel just in Brno, you don’t need to watch 
the zones because the tickets in Brno are for both of zones 100+101. For travelling in the surroundings of Brno, the best way is to buy a map of the zones 
for better orientation (public transportation offices in Brno). For general information, see the line network map on the inside cover of this booklet.

Trams, trolley busses and busses run usually from dawn until around midnight, some bus lines run all the night, at 60 or 30-minute intervals (signified by 
a blue-yellow number on the bus stop and the digit starting with numer 9).

From 11:00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m. at every hour on the hour, all buses leave in all directions from the Brno main station. However, there are differences 
between weekdays and weekends. Nighttime buses goes more often and till 6:00 a.m. only on Saturday, Sunday, holidays and 31/12.

Tickets

Tickets must be bought beforehand from tobacconists, or from the yellow ticket machines scattered around the city (usualy at the station). It is also 
possible to buy them from the drivers, but this will include a surcharge of a few extra Crowns. The tickets must be validated in the electronic devices once 
you are on board. There are no conductors, only plain-clothes inspectors, who will fine anyone without a ticket.

Tickets costing 20 Kč are valid for 15 minutes (without possibility of changing the line), tickets costing 25 Kč are valid for 60 minutes (with the possibility 
of changing the line), presuming that the regular fare applies to you (i.e. you are not below 16 years of age, you do not accompany a child of 3 years of 
age or less, or are not a holder of special pass for disabled or retired people). The same tickets are valid for the city’s buses connecting the centre and 
suburbs. You should also buy a special ticket for oversized luggage.

Other tickets are available – from a 1-day ticket (90 Kč), 5-day ticket (250 Kč), 14-day ticket (420 Kč) and a 1-month ticket (750 Kč). Anybody can use 
these types of tickets for zones 100+101.

You may also be interested in purchasing a pass – choose from a one-month pass (550 Kč), quarterly pass (1,370 Kč) or one-year pass (4,750 Kč). You can 
buy these passes at public transportation office in the center or in some local selling stands, and you will need passport-sized photo. The pass is related 
to one’s name and can’t be used by a different person.

The public transportation office at Novobranská 18 will give you complete information about Brno mass transport. Open: workdays from 6:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m., Sat from 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., dpmb@dpmb.cz, www.dpmb.cz.

Apart from Brno, other cities and towns in South Moravia do not have such an elaborate system of public transport, although most sizeable towns 
(over 10,000 inhabitants) have a few local public transport bus lines (no trams or trolleybuses).
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Driving

Road conditions in South Moravia are generally not bad – the region has one of the highest densities of motorways in the Czech Republic: D1 from 
Prague to Brno and further to Vyškov and towards Olomouc, although the stretch of D1 from Prague to Brno is notorious for traffic jams caused by many 
accidents due to heavy traffic. Still this tends to be the most convenient and fastest way of getting to the capital city. D2 from Brno to the south – via 
Břeclav to Bratislava. There is also a first stretch of high-speed (four-lane) road R52 from Brno to the south towards the Austrian border, which currently 
ends in Pohořelice (some 20 km south of Brno) but should eventually connect Brno with Vienna. If you want to travel on any motorway or high-speed 
road in Czech Republic, you will need a motorway tax sticker (dálniční známka) – see the map below for motorway and high-speed roads for which 
the sticker is required.

Tab. 18: Motorway tax stickers 2018 and 2019 (prices in CZK)

Motorway tax stickers Vehicle

Validity Total weight under 3.5 tons Total wight 3.5 tons < > 12 tons Total weight over 12 tons

1 year (R) 1,500 Electronic toll Electronic toll

1 month (M) 440 Electronic toll Electronic toll

10 days 310 Electronic toll Electronic toll

Source : Czech motorway internet page, www.ceskedalnice.cz, 2018
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Motorway tax stickers are available at all the border crossings and most post offices and filling stations in the Czech Republic. Failing to display 
the sticker will result in a hefty fine of several thousand Crowns. The second part of the sticker should be saved for control. On both parts of the sticker 
there should be the vehicle registration number.

Starting 1 January 2010, an electronic toll was imposed on all vehicles above 3.5 tons of total weight. The total weight of the vehicle, rather than that 
of the vehicle combination (trailers) as was the previous practice, is the main criterion in deciding whether the vehicle must use a highway sticker or 
a toll unit.

Speed limits are 130 kph on motorways (speeding runs you the risk of being fined), 90 kph on other roads and 50 kph in all cities, towns and villages. 
Rules and regulations are stringent, radar speed checks are common and spot fines are rather heavy.
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The basic rules are:

• driving on the right;
• compulsory wearing of seatbelts; and children under 12 must travel in the back;
• the “don’t drink and drive” rule is very stringent in the Czech Republic. It is against law to have any alcohol in your blood when you are 

driving whatsoever;
• don’t overtake a tram when passengers are getting on and off if there is no safety island for them;
• give right of way to pedestrians crossing the road at zebra crossings;
• motor vehicles must use their lights night and day all year long;
• cyclists up to 18 years of age must use an approved protective helmet;
• a child weighing less than 36 kg or whose height does not exceed 150 cm can only be transported in an approved car safety seat;
• driving under the influence of alcohol and drugs is considered a criminal offense;
• when passing a cyclist, the driver must use turn signals to indicate lane changes.

Parking in Brno

As in many other cities, sometimes it is very hard to find a parking space in the centre. You can leave your car in one of the parking garages where you 
can rent a parking space for a longer period.

• Parkovací dům Domini Park, non-stop, 361 parking places, drive-in from Husova street (official address: Panenská 1, Brno), 8. floor – parking 
places for cars with alternative drive (LPG, CNG)

• Parking u Janáčkova divadlo, non-stop, 400 parking places, www.garazejanackovodivadlo.cz, www.jd-parking.cz, parking places for cars with 
alternative drive (LPG, CNG), charging stations for electric vehicles (ČEZ company)

• Garáže Galerie Vaňkovka, 7:00 a.m. – 11:00 p.m., 1,000 parking places, Ve Vaňkovce 1, www.galerie-vankovka.cz, parking places for cars with 
alternative drive (LPG, CNG), charging stations for electric vehicles (E.ON company)

• Parkovací dům Pinki park, non-stop, 88 parking places, Kopečná 24, http://www.bkom.cz/kopecna/index.html
• Parkovací dům Rozmarýn, non-stop, 208 parking places, Kounicova 2a, www.parkovani-brno-centrum.cz
• Garáže Hotel Slovan, non-stop, 140 parking places, Mezírka 13, www.hotelslovan.cz

VIII. 03. Leisure

Arts & Culture

South Moravia’s chequered history, being at the “crossroads of Europe”, has always been marked by many nations with aspirations of making it their 
own. It has been attacked, conquered and liberated time and again from hordes of aspiring imperialists. This has meant that in cultural terms, South 
Moravia combines the better aspects of what the invaders left behind with the immovably deep-rooted Moravian culture. This has provided a mix of 
cultural options unrivalled anywhere else in terms of variety, quality, widespread popularity and, of course, cost. Language of course may be a barrier, 
but what we will do here is guide you to the sources of information, rather than the actual venues, enabling you to clearly judge for yourself.

Moravia loves its festivals, and just about every genre in the arts and culture seems to be celebrated in some way. The best way to find out about 
these is to keep your eyes open for posters (the main arts advertising media in Brno) and check out the Jižní Morava section of Mladá Fronta Dnes, 
especially for events outside of Brno. More up-to-date information can be found in the Information centre of the Brno (TIC Brno, www.ticbrno.cz) 
or at www.gotobrno.cz.

A useful contact is also the Multiplex Cinemas, Olympia Centre & Velký Špalíček which are the two largest multi-screen cinemas in Brno; 
www.cinemacity.cz. The alternative cinema scene is representated mainly by two cinemas: Art (Cihlářská 19, 602 00 Brno, www.kinoart.cz; because 
of the reconstruction (11/2017) at TIC Gallery, Radnická 4, Brno) and Lucerna (Minská 19, 616 00 Brno, www.kinolucerna.info).
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You can find some more information on cultural events in the region in a free Cultural Bulletin (Kulturní bulletin) published monthly by Regional 
Development Agency of South Moravia (in Czech and German only). You can subscribe to it by sending an email to: lucie.karpiskova@rrajm.cz.

There is also a network of tourist information centres scattered around the region of South Moravia, most of which are very helpful and keen. However, 
their information service will usually cover only the immediate surroundings of the town where they are located, and some of them may have difficulty in 
answering queries in foreign languages.

Festivals

Many festivals take place in South Moravia every year, especially in Brno, and they represent all kinds of culture from “high” to folk. The most numerous 
are festivals of all different kinds of music, but there are some interesting film and other festivals too. Here are some of the better known ones that take 
place regularly on an annual basis, but we strongly encourage everyone interested to check for up-to-date information with one of the tourist information 
centres or at the posters around the region. You can also try the Website of the City of Brno www.brno.cz, in the Leisure section. They have a list of 
leisure activities (section Culture – Calendar of Events) in and around the city, provided in German and English, and a number of other useful hints.

Festivals elsewhere in South Moravia

• Folk Festival and the “Ride of the Kings” (jízda králů), Vlčnov, late May – one of the most spectacular folk festivals in this part of Europe, 
attracting large numbers of tourists and ethnologists. Some of the most interesting folk costumes can be seen here together with folk bands 
and choirs.

• Ivančice Asparagus Festival, Ivančice, May – a small, 2-day festival that tries to revive the old traditions of growing this delicious vegetable.
• International Folk Festival, Strážnice, late June – the largest folk music festival in the country with an international reputation. It attracts music 

lovers, musicologists as well as tourists from a number of countries.
• Horňácké slavnosti (folk festival), Velká nad Veličkou, July – a more humble but cosier version of the festival in Strážnice with the added bonus 

of the unique musical tradition of Horňácko, a distinct etnographic region on the Czech–Slovak border, which gave the nation some of its most 
renowned folk musicians.

• Znojemské vinobraní (Znojmo Wine Harvest Festival), Znojmo, September – the largest festival of wine and wine-making in the country. 
Apart from a number of concerts, a parade in historical costumes and street preformances, this is one of the best opportunities to sample the best 
of South Moravian wines.

• Pálavské vinobraní, Mikulov, September – next famous festival of wine and wine-making in the country.
• Anniversary of the Battle of Three Emperors, Slavkov (Austerlitz), Tvarožná, Pozořice, beginning of December – a number of events organised 

at different locations of the former battlefield commemorates one of the most epic battles fought on Czech territory, in which the French Emperor 
Napoleon I defeated the united armies of Austrian Emperor Franz I and Russian Tsar Alexander I in 1805. The most spectacular is the reconstruction 
of the battle that usually takes place in Tvarožná and attracts as many as 1,000 volunteers from all across Europe dressed up in period 
military uniforms.

Foreign Culture Centres and Networks

South Moravia and especially the city of Brno are also home to a number of expatriate groups and ethnic minorities, many of whom have established 
their own associations and clubs. Some are more active than others, but most of them tend to offer a good opportunity to meet with one’s co-nationals 
and tap into new networks of contacts.

• Alliance Francaise Brno, Moravské náměstí 15, 602 00 Brno, info@afbrno.cz, www.alliancefrancaise.cz/brno/
• Association of Friends of Italy (Společnost přátel Itálie), Přístavní 14 b, 635 00 Brno, PhDr. Pavel Ciprán, +420 728 664 613, ciprian@spilberk.cz, 

www.prateleitalie.eu
• British Council, Solniční 12, 602 00 Brno, +420 545 211 069, info.brno@britishcouncil.cz, www.britishcouncil.cz
• German Culture Association – Brno region, (Německé kulturní sdružení – Region Brno), Jana Uhra 12, 602 00 Brno, www.freunde-bruenns.com
• Greek Community in Brno (Řecká obec v Brně), Radnická 8, 602 00 Brno, : +420 542 216 125, robrno@robrno.cz, www.robrno.cz
• Polish Club in Brno (POLONUS – Klub Polski) (Polský klub v Brně), Radnická 8, 602 00 Brno, polonusbrno@post.cz, www.polonusbrno.org
• Southern Slavs Friends Society (Společnost přátel jižních Slovanů), Mikulovská 211, 691 44 Lednice, info@spjs.cz, www.spjs.cz
• Union of Hungarians Living in the Czech Lands (Cseh-és Morvaorsyági Magyarok Szövetsége) (Svaz Maďarů žijících v českých zemích), Radnická 8, 

602 00 Brno, +420 602 471 167, info@mkic.cz, www.mkic.cz
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Eating & Drinking

The main types of place where you can get a meal and/or a drink are as follows (The Czech name for the type is often, though not necessarily, found in 
signs advertising the individual places): Restaurants (“restaurace”) offer a full range of food and a good selection of beers and wines. Pubs (“hospoda” 
or “hostinec”) have a similar range, though probably a smaller selection of food, beers and wines, and cheaper prices. Beer halls (“pivnice”) usually 
have a more limited menu, comprised of mostly “typical” Czech meals, sometimes they may not serve any meals at all; usually they serve no wine either 
(or only the cheapest kind) but the draft beer is mostly very cheap here. Winebars (“vinárna”) and wine cellars (“vinný sklep”) will have a good menu, 
and an excellent selection of (mostly South Moravian) wines. Beer (usually available) will probably be bottled rather than served on tap. Buffets (“bufet”) 
offer a reasonable range of meals; as they are (mostly) stand-up places, prices are very low – a Czech version of fast-food of sorts, but usually not in 
the most appealing environments. Cafés (“kavárna”) are quite varied; in Brno there has been recently an upsurge in the number of cafés and the choice 
is reasonably good, although you can usually find one or two cafés in most district towns too. The larger ones have a good menu but most offer only 
snacks – and, of course, their speciality: a selection of cakes, ice-cream sundaes and sweet things in general. Bars (“bistro”) only provide snacks and 
drinks and should be used as a last resort only. Discos (“disco”, though the word is not very common in the names of places) usually offer nothing but 
drinks and loud music.

Tipping, in the normal sense of the word, is not done. Instead bills are “rounded up” by the customer. For example, if the bill for the meal comes to, say, 
84.50 Kč, you might leave 85 or 90 Kč. The normally expected rounding by Czech standards is between 5 to 10 % of the price. Not leaving any tip at all is 
not regarded as impolite, but will most probably be interpreted as dissatisfaction with the service.

Restaurants

Based on the recommendations of foreigners living in Brno and South Moravia we recommend the following places.

Restaurants in Brno

• BORGO Agnese, Kopečná 43, 602 00 Brno, +420 515 537 500, www.borgoagnese.cz
• Butcher’s Brno, Dobrovského 29, 612 00 Brno, +420 541 240 685, www.mexicana.cz
• Havana restaurant, Masarova 9, 628 00 Brno – Líšeň, +420 775 599 528, www.havana-restaurant.cz
• Koishi, Sushi and seafood restaurant, Údolní 11, 602 00 Brno, +420 777 564 744, www.koishi.cz
• Lucullus Restaurant, Hotel International, Husova 16, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 122 111, www.hotelinternational.cz
• Pivovarská restaurace Brno, Mendlovo nám. 20, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 420 130, www.pivovarskabrno.cz
• Konfit restaurant & wine, Veveří 125, 616 00 Brno, +420 541 235 035, www.konfitrestaurant.cz
• Restaurace a pivnice Pegas, Jakubská 4, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 210 104, www.hotelpegas.cz
• Restaurant Don Miguel’s, Palackého třída 35/620, Brno-Královo Pole, +420 541 248 967, www.donmiguels.cz
• Pavillon Restaurant, Jezuitská 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 213 497, www.restaurant-pavillon.cz
• Satyam Restaurant, Křížkovského 33, Brno, +420 775 265 292, www.satyam.cz
• Skanzeen, Slovakia-Wallachian restaurant, Pekařská 80, Brno, +420 543 244 962, www.skanzeen.cz
• Sabaidy, Thai-Laotian restaurant, třída Kapitána Jaroše 29, 602 00 Brno, +420 545 428 310, www.sabaidy.cz 

Restaurants elsewhere in South Moravia

• Park Restaurant Břeclav, Sady 28. října 16, 690 02 Břeclav, +420 519 322 511, www.park-restaurant.cz
• Penzion Červený Mlýn, Červený mlýn 170, 666 01 Tišnov, +420 739 569 771, www.cervenymlyntisnov.cz
• Restaurant Albero, nám. Svobody 12, 691 42 Valtice, +420 519 352 615, www.alberovaltice.cz 

The Candy Store, Bayerova 8, 602 00 Brno, www.candy-store.cz. Homesick natives of the British Isles may be pleased to know that there is a company 
that supplies English-style bacon and sausages to most places in the Czech Republic.
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Beer & Wine

You’re certainly already aware of the famous quality of Czech beer, and you will see no shortage of pubs. The list of beer places would be endless if we 
really wanted to present an exhaustive summary, but here are some of the more interesting ones.

• Pegas, Jakubská 4, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 210 104, www.hotelpegas.cz
• Plzeňský dvůr, Šumavská 29a, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 212 120, www.plzenskydvur.cz
• Pivovarská Brno, Mendlovo nám. 20, Brno, +420 543 420 130, www.pivovarskabrno.cz
• U Bláhovky, Gorkého 54, 602 00 Brno, +420 543 233 310
• U Čápa, Obilní trh 10, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 210 189, www.pivnice-ucapa.cz
• Zelená Kočka, Kounicova 83, 602 00 Brno, +420 775 566 570, www.zelenakocka.cz
• U Třech čertů, Starobrněnská 7, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 211 056, www.ucertu.cz 

But, don’t forget wine! Moravia is so proud of its wines that it keeps them all for itself. Again, there are numerous places where you can buy good wine, 
and that number is growing in most good restaurants. But the best experience is to go and sample some wines right at on location where the wine is 
made – in the wine cellars of South Moravia. If based in Brno, you can try one of the following:

• Petit Cru, Údolní 11, 602 00 Brno, +420 774 497 787, www.petit-cru.cz
• Vinárna U královny Elišky, Mendlovo nám. 1b, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 212 578, www.ukralovnyelisky.cz
• Moravská vinotéka, Mojmírovo náměstí 26, 612 00 Brno, +420 549 212 680, www.moravska-vinoteka.cz

Cafés

You don’t need a history book to realise that Brno was a bastion of the Austro-Hungarian Empire. The café, that great symbol of imperialist extravagant 
leisure, has made a dramatic comeback in Brno since 1989, and we recommend the places where you will find the best coffee, the best people and 
the most relaxing atmospheres.

• Academia, nám. Svobody 13, 602 00 Brno, +420 221 403 879, www.academia.cz/knihkupectvi 
On the first floor of a large bookshop. Good if you want a coffee and to check out the latest books in English / German / French.

• Café Mitte, Panská 11, 602 00 Brno, +420 734 622 340, www.cafemitte.com
• Coffee Fusion, Jánská 25, 602 00 Brno, +420 604 382 032
• Café Práh, Ve Vaňkovce 1, 602 00 Brno, +420 539 051 130, www.cafeprah.cz. Training café staffed by slightly mentally handicapped people.
• V Melounovém cukru, Františkánská 17, 602 00 Brno, +420 774 422 478
• Café Tungsram, Kapucínské nám. 7, 602 00 Brno, +420 603 444 754

Hotels

These are the hotels that have been recommended by resident foreigners and business people during surveys in recent years.

Hotels in Brno

• Barceló Brno Palace, Šilingrovo nám. 2, 602 00 Brno, +420 532 156 777, brnopalace@barcelo.com, www.barcelo.com
• Grandhotel Brno, Benešova 18–20, 657 83 Brno, +420 542 518 136, www.grandhotelbrno.cz
• Holiday Inn, Křížkovského 20, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 122 111, www.hibrno.cz. Business hotel right by the Exhibition Grounds (BVV).
• Hotel International, Husova 16, 659 21 Brno, +420 542 122 111, www.hotelinternational.cz
• Hotel Slavia, Solniční 17, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 321 249, www.slaviabrno.cz
• Hotel Voroněž, Křížkovského 47, 603 73 Brno, +420 543 141 111, www.voronez.cz. Convenient location for Exhibition Grounds (BVV).

Hotels elswhere in South Moravia

• Hotel Hranični zameček, K Zámečku 16, Hlohovec u Břeclavi, 691 43, +420 519 354 354, www.hranicnizamecek.cz
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• Hotel Pavlov, Klentnická ulice 174, 692 01 Pavlov u Mikulova, +420 519 324 246, www.hotelpavlov.cz
• Penzion Červený Mlýn, Červený mlýn 170, 666 01 Tišnov, +420 739 569 771, www.cervenymlyntisnov.cz

Nightlife

Looking at the streets of the centre of Brno any night of the week, one would wonder how the city ever sleeps… and the answer is – it doesn’t! Moreover 
there are so many bars, clubs, discos, etc., and of such mixed styles that we dare not even begin to name any. Suffice it to say that once you have had 
a meal and some drinks in any of the places listed for food above, you’ll experience no shortage of friendly neighbours to recommend you someplace 
suitable

Sports

Unlike other countries, it does not require VIP-priced membership in elite clubs to gain access to the best facilities. Everything from golf to tennis, squash, 
skiing, swimming, fitness and much, much more is available on a “pay-as-you-play” basis in many locations. More individual sports like cycling or 
water sports (canoeing, rowing, etc.) are also widely popular, though one’s own equipment is a must. Rugby, soccer, baseball – just about everything is 
enthusiastically played here. However, these all take second place over the winter months to the fanatical passion for ice hockey and over the spring and 
autumn to the football – make sure you get yourself taken to a game.

Squash

• Sportovní hala Rosnička, Horákova 7, 616 00 Brno, +420 549 240 047
• Sportcentrum Ivanovice, Černohorská 22, 621 00 Brno, +420 730 899 399, www.sportcentrum-ivanovice.cz

Badminton

• Badmintonový klub RSC Brno, Dědická 33, 627 00 Brno, www.bcrsc.cz
• Sportcentrum Ivanovice, Černohorská 22, 621 00 Brno, +420 730 899 399, www.sportcentrum-ivanovice.cz 

Tennis

• Boby Centrum (indoor and outdoor)
• Lužánky Park (beautiful in summer) 

Baseball

• Draci Baseball Club Brno, Městský baseballový stadion, Sokolova 2h, 619 00 Brno, www.draci.cz
• Technika Brno, Rybkova 31, 602 00 Brno, www.technikabrno.cz 

Fitness

• Boby Centrum, Sportovní 2a, 602 00 Brno +420 853 386, www.fitnessboby.cz
• Fitness Blue Gym, Kotlářská 51a, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 213 450, www.bluegym.cz
• Zone For You, Třída Generála Píky 2026/11, 613 00 Brno-Černá Pole, +420 548 221 010, www.zone4you.cz
• Stabil studio, 739 359 688, info@stabilstudio.cz, www.stabilstudio.cz. Dance, yoga, pilates… 

Swimming

• Kraví hora swimming pool, Brno-Masarykova čtvrť
• Lužánky Olympic Pool, Sportovní 486/4, Brno (beside Boby Centrum)
• Lesná swimming pool, Halasovo náměstí 826/7, Brno-Lesná
• Riviéra, Brno-Pisárky 322/7 (next to the Exhibition centre) 
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Golf

• Golf Club Austerliz, Na golfovém hřišti 1510,684 01 Slavkov u Brna, +420 544 221 963, www.gca.cz
• Golf resort Kaskáda, Na Golfu 1772, 664 34 Kuřim, +420 541 511 711, www.golfbrno.cz 

Bowling

• Planet Bowling, Olympia Centre, U Dálnice 777, 664 42 Modřice, +420 515 534 055, www.olympia-centrum.cz/cz/bowling
• Sport Balkán, Jugoslávská 5, 613 00 Brno, +420 724 744 134, www.sportbalkan.cz 

Roller skating

There is a nice cycling and roller skating path stretching along the Svratka river, starting at the junction of Vídeňská and Poříčí street (or can be easily 
found just behind IKEA in the Avion Shopping Park).

Petanque

• Carreau Brno, Riegerova 4, 612 00 Brno, www.carreau.cz
• Park Lužánky (at Lidická street, Brno) 

Sailing

• TJ Lodní sporty Brno, Rakovecká 30, 635 00 Brno, www.lodnisportybrno.cz

Reading, Press, etc.

One major complaint amongst resident foreigners is literary starvation. Many bookstores do have a section with fiction in English, German or some other 
languages, and most libraries have a rich supply. For foreign newspapers and magazines, we recommend to try newsstands Valmont.

Bookstores

• Academia, nám. Svobody 13, 602 00 Brno, +420 221 403 879, www.academia.cz/knihkupectvi
• Barvič a Novotný, Masarykova 409/26, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 218 014, www.barvic-novotny.cz
• Knihy Dobrovský, Joštova 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 725 941 121, www.knihydobrovsky.cz 

Second-hand bookstores

In all of second-hand bookstores you will find books in German, English, or perhaps even in some other languages. Sometimes you can find old prints and 
maps – if you are lucky, for a very good price.

• AB Antikvariát – Petr Bouda, 602 00 Brno, Kounicova 272/15, +420 549 250 814, www.abantikvariat.cz
• Antikvariát u Jakubské věže, Rašínova 98/1, 602 00 Brno,+420 542 212 393, www.antikvariat-sobotkova.cz
• Antikvariát ALFA – Libor Chloupek, Veselá 238/39, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 211 947, www.antikalfa.cz 

Libraries

You can find quite a rich supply of foreign literature in most major libraries. These are the most important ones in Brno:

• Knihovna Jiřího Mahena – KJM (reading, sections with books in foreign languages) – Kobližná 4, +420 542 532 163, www.kjm.cz
• Moravská zemská knihovna – MZK (academic with books in most European languages; has specialized sections) Kounicova 65a, 

+420 541 646 201, www.mzk.cz
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Religious Communities

In South Moravia, the proportion of believers is higher than the national average. The Czechs as a nation seem to be one of the most “atheistic” in 
Europe. Among believers, the largest group is the Roman Catholics, followed by considerably smaller numbers of Protestants, Orthodox Christians, Jews 
and members of other faiths. There is a wide range of denominations and faiths represented in Brno, though in most cases their language of worship will 
be Czech. We list here only select a few churches that offer services in foreign languages.

Roman Catholic

Roman Catholic Church, Brno Deanery, Petrov 269/8; +420 533 033 111, brno@biskupstvi.cz

Tab. 19: Sunday masses in Brno

Church Time Regular services – Sunday

Kostel sv. Vavřince, Brno-Komín 7:00 a.m. All year, every week, 1st Sunday in month Latin

Jezuitský kostel Nanebevzetí Panny Marie 12:15 p.m. All year, every week, English

Katedrála sv. Petra a Pavla 7:30 a.m. All year, every week, Latin holy mass

Kostel sv. Janů 6:00 p.m. All year, every 2nd Sunday in month, Polish

Kostel sv. Maří Magdalény 10:15 a.m. All year, every week, Greek Catholic liturgy, Slovak

Kostel sv. Tomáše 7:45 a.m. All year, every week, Latin

Protestant

Many Protestant denominations are active in Brno, among them the Czechoslovak Hussite Church, Baptists, Seventh Day Adventists, Church of 
the Brethren, etc. Perhaps the best-known Protestant church building is the historic “Red Church” on Komenský Square, which belongs to the Evangelical 
Czech Brethren Church. It holds regular services on Sundays at 10:00 a.m.

Regarding low interest in services in foreign language it is suitable to contact directly:

• the Czechoslovak Hussite Church, Joštova 7, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 213 866, www.ccshbrno.cz/kontakty/prehled-bohosluzeb or
• the Evangelical Church of Czech Brethren, Opletalova 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 211 453, sekretariat@e-cirkev.cz 

Orthodox

Russian Orthodox Church, Úvoz 62, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 214 030, pravoslavbrno@volny.cz

The single Orthodox church in Brno is situated near Gorazdova street, on the slope of Špilberk castle. Services are held on Sundays at 7:00 a.m., 
9:00 a.m. and at 7:00 p.m. and some other days. Further information can be obtained from the Orthodox Church community office at Úvoz 62 and at 
www.pravoslavbrno.cz (in Czech, Russian, Greek and Ukrainian).

Buddhism

The Brno Centre of the Diamond way, Trtílkova 18, 612 00 Brno, brno@bdc.cz, http://brno.bdc.cz

Joint meditation for the public takes place every day at 8:00 p.m. apart from Fridays and Saturdays. On Tuesdays meditation starts at 7:00 p.m. 
On Thursdays meditation is in English provided there are English-speaking visitors. For newcomers every second Monday there is an introductory lecture 
on Buddhism.
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VIII. 04. Social Infrastructure

Recommended Professional Services in South Moravia

Here are some recommended contacts for the services listed below.

Logistics

• DB Schenker, Blučina 750, 664 56 Blučina, +420 540 030 999, zc.brq@schenker.cz, www.schenker.cz
• PPL jižní Morava, Drčkova 3, 628 00 Brno, +420 225 331 500, info@ppl.cz, www.ppl.cz, DHL partner
• Toptrans Brno, CTPark South (u letiště), ul. K Letišti 1792/1, 664 51 Šlapanice u Brna, +420 548 138 560–1, objednavka@csad.com, 

www.toptrans.cz, for Brno-city, Brno-district and Vyškov
• Toptrans Hodonín, Brněnská 48, 695 01 Hodonín, +420 518 354 219, depo620@toptrans.cz, www.toptrans.cz, for Hodonín, Břeclav
• Toptrans Svitavy, Průmyslová 456/15, 568 02 Svitavy, +420 728 393 641, depo660@toptrans.cz, www.toptrans.cz, for Svitavy, Blansko
• MOSS Logistics, Bratislavská 21, 693 01 Hustopeče, +420 519 305 511, info@mosslogistics.cz, www.mosslogistics.cz
• Q-Logistic, Velkomoravská 464/23, 695 01 Hodonín, +420 723 671 114, company@qlogistic.cz, www.qlogistic.cz 

Recruitment

• Grafton Recruitment, Benešova 14/16, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 424 521, brno@grafton.cz, www.grafton.cz
• Manpower Brno – Perm Office, Panská 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 731 634 083, brnoperm@manpower.cz, www.manpower.cz
• Randstad, Nové sady 25, 602 00 Brno, +420 778 743 772, brno@randstad.cz, www.randstad.cz 

Tax and audit services

• PricewaterhouseCoopers ČR, Náměstí Svobody 20, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 520 111, www.pwc.com/cz
• EY (Ernst & Young), Orlí 36, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 636 424, www.ey.cz
• Deloitte, Holandská 1, 639 00 Brno, +420 246 043 500, www.deloitte.com/cz
• KPMG, Veveří 3163/111, 616 00 Brno, + 420 541 421 311, www.kpmg.com/cz
• Audit Účetnictví, IBC Příkop 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 545 175 887, www.auditucetnictvi.cz
• Top Auditing, Koliště 1965/13a, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 211 237, www.topauditing.cz
• Rödl & Partner, Květná 178/34, 603 00 Brno, +420 530 300 500, www.roedl.com/cz 

Planning and construction

• Kovoprojekta Brno, Šumavská 416/15, 602 00 Brno, +420 532 153 111, kovoprojekta@kovoprojekta.cz, www.kovoprojekta.cz
• PS Brno, Vídeňská 153/119 b, 619 00 Brno, +420 544 509 000, psbrno@ps-brno.cz, www.ps-brno.cz
• Stavos, U Svitavy 2, 618 00 Brno, +420 548 128 272, stavos@stavos.cz, www.stavos.cz 

Real estate (both commercial real estate and housing for expatriates)

• Bravis Reality (www.bravis.cz)
• Gaute (www.gaute.cz)
• Real Spektrum (www.realspektrum.cz)
• Matras & Matras (www.rkmatras.cz)
• Sreality.cz (www.sreality.cz) 
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Legal firms

• Czerwenka & Partner, Minoritská 10, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 422 811, info@czerwpart.cz, www.czerwpart.cz
• Havel, Holásek & Partners, Nového sady 996/25, 602 00 Brno, +420 545 423 420, office@havelholasek.cz, www.havelholasek.cz
• MT Legal, Jakubská 121/1, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 210 351, info@mt-legal.com, www.mt-legal.com
• AK Pavel Kopa, Hlinky 142a, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 217 116, kopa@akkopa.cz, www.akkopa.cz
• AK Jiří Lukeš, Smetanova 9, 602 00 Brno, +420 601 332 309, lukes@ak-lukes.cz, www.ak-lukes.cz
• AK Martina Beránková, Mendlovo náměstí 419/2, 603 00 Brno, +420 607 858 516, info@berankova.com, www.berankova.com 

Many transactions require notary services. A fast, efficient service is found at:

• JUDr. Lubomír Mika, Dvořákova 646/10, Brno, +420 542 213 109, notar@notar-brno.cz, www.notar-brno.cz
• JUDr. Marie Matoušková, Kopečná 19, 602 00 Brno, +420 543 241 774, kancelar@nkmatouskova.cz, www.nkmatouskova.cz 

Interpreters and Translators

You will often feel more confident doing business with an interpreter, and as for translators, you will surely need their services if only for translating 
official documents from your native language into Czech. Many agencies offer these services, but “buyer beware”, as the quality of service can vary 
dramatically. Also remember that translations of official documents must be accompanied by an official (court-certified) translator’s stamp.

• Aspena, Gorkého 15, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 242 186, brno@aspena.cz, www.aspena.cz
• Lintegra, Renčova 21, 621 00 Brno, +420 776 260 685, info@lintegra.cz, www.lintegra.com
• Skřivánek, Veveří 102, 616 00 Brno, +420 543 210 518, brno@skrivanek.cz, www.skrivanek.cz 

Other business networks and chambers of commerce

• Austrian Trade – Marketing Office Brno, Hybešova 42, 602 00 Brno, +420 543 128 274, brno@advantageaustria.org, www.advantageaustria.org/cz, 
contact: Martin Žák

• Brno Chamber of Commerce, Výstavište 1, 648 04 Brno, +420 532 194 911, rhkbrno@rhkbrno.cz, www.rhkbrno.cz
• American Chamber of Commerce in the Czech Republic, Dušní 10, 110 00 Praha, +420 222 329 430, amcham@amcham.cz, www.amcham.cz
• British Chamber of Commerce in the Czech Republic, Na Florenci 15, 110 00 Praha, +420 277 009 937, info@britcham.cz, www.britishchamber.cz
• France–Czech Chamber of Commerce, Pobřežní 3, 186 00 Praha, +420 224 833 090, info@ccft-fcok.cz, www.ccft-fcok.cz
• Czech–German Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Václavské nám. 40, 110 00 Praha, +420 224 221 200, info@dtihk.cz, www.dtihk.cz, 

contact Brno: Ondřej Richter, +420 731 502 683, richter@dtihk.cz
• Chamber of Trade and Industry for CIS Countries, Freyova 27, 190 00 Praha 9, +420 266 721 812, kordacova@komora.cz, www.komorasns.cz
• Nordic Chamber of Commerce in the Czech Republic, Václavské nám. 51, 110 00 Praha 1, +420 774 123 370, info@nordicchamber.cz, 

www.nordicchamber.cz
• Netherlands-Czech Chamber of Commerce, Českomoravská 2420/15, 190 00 Praha, +420 774 002 021, nlchamber@nlchamber.cz, www.nlchamber.cz

Medical Services

With the sincere wish that you may not need these contacts, here are our professionals speaking foreign languages.

Dentist

• MUDr. Pavel Kořínek, Hlinky 92, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 242 673, info@syndenta.cz, www.syndenta.cz
• MUDr. Jindřich Miketta, Kozí 5, 602 00 Brno, +420 515 544 436, info@dentartbrno.cz, www.zubaribrno.cz 

Doctor

• Top Moravia Health, Viniční 235, 615 00 Brno, +420 533 306 460, info@tmhklinika.cz, www.tmhklinika.cz
• EUC Premium, Dům u Červeného draka, Jánská 2, 602 00 Brno, +420 222 300 300, www.eucpremium.cz 

First Aid: 155, 112

More information about doctors you can find at www.znamylekar.cz, but only in Czech language.
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Tab. 20: Emergency Care in the South Moravia

City Hospital Address Services
Surgery hours

Working days Non working days

Brno

Úrazová nemocnice v Brně Ponávka 6, Brno
Adult 5 p.m.–7 a.m. Non-stop

Dental Emergency 5 p.m.–7 a.m. Non-stop

Fakultní nemocnice Brno, 
Pracoviště dětské medicíny

Černopolní 9, Brno Children 5 p.m.–7 a.m. Non-stop

K.E.I. pharma, s.r.o. Koliště 47, Brno Pharmacy Non-stop Non-stop

Boskovice Nemocnice Boskovice Otakara Kubína 179, Boskovice

Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Dental Emergency – 8 a.m.–1 p.m.

Blansko Nemocnice Blansko Sadová 33, Blansko Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Břeclav Nemicnice Břeclav U Nemocnice 1, Břeclav

Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Dental Emergency – 8 a.m.–1 p.m.

Hodonín Nemocnice TGM Hodonín Purkyňova 11, Hodonín
Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Hustopeče Městská nemocnice Hustopeče Brněnská 41, Hustopeče Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Ivančice Nemocnice Ivančice Široká 16, Ivančice Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Kyjov Nemocnice Kyjov Strážovská 1247, Kyjov

Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Dental Emergency – 8 a.m.–1 p.m.

Tišnov Nemocnice Tišnov Purkyňova 279, Tišnov Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Vyškov Nemocnice Vyškov Purkyňova 36, Vyškov

Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Dental Emergency – 8 a.m.–1 p.m.

Znojmo Nemocnice Znojmo MUDr. Jana Janského 11, Znojmo

Adult 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Children 5 p.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Dental Emergency – 8 a.m.–1 p.m.

In case of emergency call 155.

Tab. 21: Emergency Pharmacies in the South Moravia (as to 1. 10. 2016)

Name Hospital Telephone (+420) Address
Opening hours

Working days Non working days

Pohotovostní lékárna Blansko Nemocnice Blansko 516 838 160, 516 838 161 Sadová 1596/33, 678 31 Blansko 7 a.m.–10 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Pohotovostní lékárna Břeclav Poliklinika Břeclav, s.r.o. 519 303 271 Bří Mrštíků 38, 690 02 Břeclav 7 a.m.–6 p.m. 8 a.m.–8 p.m.

Pohotovostní lékárna Brno
K.E.I.pharma, s.r.o.
Lékárna a prodejna 
zdravotnických potřeb Koliště

545 424 811 Koliště 141/47, 602 00 Brno Non-stop Non-stop

Pohotovostní lékárna Brno-Bašty 542 213 531 Bašty 413/2, 602 00 Brno Non-stop Non-stop
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Schools for Children of Other Nationalities

Kindergarten

• International School of Brno, Čejkovická 10, 628 00 Brno, +420 544 212 313, info@iosob.cz, www.isob.cz
• MŠ Fantazie, Voroněžská 5, 616 00, Brno, +420 603 172 066, info@msfantazie.cz, www.msfantazie.cz
• English Nursery Mateřídouška, Jiráskova třída 29, 602 00 Brno, +420 608 886 870, materidouska@skolka.cz, www.skolka.cz 

Primary schools

• International School of Brno, Čejkovická 10, 628 00 Brno, +420 544 212 313, info@iosob.cz, www.isob.cz
• Základní škola, Bakalovo nábřeží 8, 639 00 Brno, +420 543 212 725, www.bakalka.cz
• Základní škola + Kindergarten Chrlice, Jana Broskvy 3, 643 00 Brno, +420 545 219 112, zschrlice@zschrlice.cz, www.zschrlice.cz 

Secondary schools

• International School of Brno, Čejkovická 10, 628 00 Brno, +420 544 212 313, info@iosob.cz, www.isob.cz
• 1. německé zemské gymnázium (German), Mendlovo náměstí 3/4, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 221 790, reditelstvi@skolskykomplex.cz, 

www.skolskykomplex.cz
• Gymnázium Brno-Bystrc (English, Spanish), Vejrostova 2, 635 00 Brno, +420 533 555 100, info@gyby.cz, www.gyby.cz
• Gymnázium Dr. Karla Polesného (German), nám. Komenského 4, 669 75 Znojmo, +420 515 266 160, sekretariat@gymzn.cz, www.gymzn.cz
• Gymnázium Matyáše Lercha (French, German), Žižkova 55, 616 00 Brno, +420 549 122 063, sekretariat@gml.cz, www.gml.cz
• Moravské gymnázium s.r.o. (English), Veveří 30, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 214 125, sekretariat@mgbrno.cz, www.mgbrno.cz

Language Lessons

The advantages of having a basic knowledge of the Czech language cannot be overstated, especially if one wants to truly experience all that 
South Moravia has to offer. In Brno, an English speaker is never very far away, but once one leaves the city boundaries there are fewer to be found. 
The Academy of Czech for Foreigners at Masaryk University offers courses tailored to all levels and timescales, along with its very popular Slavonic 
Summer Schools.

Selected language schools with Czech courses:

• ILC Brno, Sukova 2, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 210 216, info@ilcbrno.cz, www.ilcbrno.cz. English for children.
• Lingua centrum, Husova 7, 602 00  Brno, +420 736 628 977, brno@lingua-centrum.cz, www.lingua-centrum.cz
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Consulates and Representations

• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Angola, Hlinky 110/40, 603 00 Brno, +420 602 710 122, konzulat.angola@nextra.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Austria, Dominikánské nám. 4/5, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 422 608, oest.honkonsulat@bruenn.cz, www.bruenn.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Croatia, Purkyňova 2740/45, 612 00 Brno, +420 541 590 202, consul.brno@gmail.com
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Estonia, třída Kpt. Jaroše 13, 602 00 Brno, +420 542 215 109, bulinsky@bumama.cz, www.bumana.cz
• Consulate of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic, třída Kpt. Jaroše 29, 602 00 Brno, +420 545 428 313, info@konzulat-laos.cz, 

www.konzulat-laos.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Lithuania, Hlinky 40/102, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 244 145, slacalap@seznam.cz
• Consulate General of the Republic of the Philippines, Traubova 6, 602 00 Brno, +420 602 453 273, philcongen.brno@gmail.com
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Poland, Hudcova 78, 612 00 Brno, +420 545 534 268, petr.mrkyvka@law.muni.cz 

No Passport and visa authority.
• Consulate General of the Russian Federation, Hlinky 142 b, 603 00 Brno, +420 543 232 157, emergency +420 724 745 930, gkbrno@iol.cz, 

www.brno.mid.ru
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Slovakia, Příkop 4, 602 00 Brno, +420 511 440 079, info@konzulat.eu
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Turkey, Hlinky 118, 603 00 Brno, +420 532 196 635, martin.cernousek@mfa.gov.tr, honorary-consulate@psg.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Ukraine, Barvičova 56, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 216 973, ua_consulate@volny.cz, www.ukrkonzulat.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Moldova, Hrnčířská 23, 602 00 Brno, + 420 541 201 391, moldovahc@seznam.cz, www.moldova-hc.eu
• Honorary Consulate of the Kingdom of Morocco, Lidická 57, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 425 560, info@brno.consulatdumaroc.cz, 

www.brno.consulatdumaroc.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of Finland, Botanická 834/56, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 554 265, finsky.konzulat@aquatis.cz
• Honorary Consulate of the Republic of El Salvador, Holandská 878/2, 639 00 Brno, +420 537 022 504, info@consuladosalvacz.cz

Regional Institutions

• Czech Statistical Office (Český statistický ústav) – lots of useful statistical data about the region both in Czech and English, Jezuitská 2, 601 59 Brno, 
+420 542 528 111, www.czso.cz

• The South Moravian Region – regional authority (Krajský úřad) – regional government office, should you need it, Žerotínovo nám. 3, 601 82 Brno, 
+420 541 651 111, posta@kr-jihomoravsky.cz, www.kr-jihomoravsky.cz

• Regional Development Agency South Moravia (Regionální rozvojová agentura jižní Moravy), Královopolská 3052/139, 612 00 Brno, 
+420 541 212 125, rrajm@rrajm.cz, www.rrajm.cz

• South Moravian Innovation Centre (Jihomoravské inovační centrum), Purkyňova 649/127, 612 00 Brno, +420 511 205 330, jic@jic.cz, www.jic.cz
• South Moravian Centre for International Mobility (Jihomoravské centrum pro mezinárodní mobilitu), Mezírka 775/1, 602 00 Brno, +420 541 211 043, 

info@jcmm.cz, www.jcmm.cz

 

Regional Development Agency of South Moravia 
Královopolská 139, 612 00 Brno, Czech Republic 
Phone: +420 541 212 125, pavel.beranek@rrajm.cz, www.rrajm.cz
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www.rrajm.cz
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